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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 27 NOVEMBER 2020  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Chaska lson,  good 

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  we ready?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r  we  are  ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  maybe… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe before  we proceed le t  me jus t  ge t  

one i tem out  o f  the  way.   A few weeks ago I  jus t  want  to  10 

make an announcement .  

 A few weeks ago  Ms Dudu Myen i  gave ev idence v ia  

v ideo l ink  in  th is  commiss ion  and in  the  process  o f  her  

ev idence d i sc losed the  ident i t y  o f  a  w i tness whose  ident i t y  

I  had ordered shou ld  no t  be  d i sc losed.  

 Subsequent ly  she  fu rn ished the  commiss ion  w i th  an  

a f f idav i t  in  wh ich  she exp la ined her  conduct .   S ince then 

the  lega l  team has looked a t  her  a f f idav i t .   I  have looked a t  

her  a f f idav i t  and I  have ins t ruc ted  the  lega l  team to  ass i s t  

the  secre ta ry  and  prepare  the  documenta t ion  necessary  so  20 

tha t  the  secre tary  o f  the  commiss ion  can lay  a  c r im ina l  

compla in t  aga ins t  Ms Dudu Myen i  fo r  the  po l i ce  to  

invest iga te  a  poss ib le  cont ravent ion  o f  e i the r  Sect ion  5  o f  

the  Commiss ion ’s  Act  o r  Regu lar  9  o f  the  Regu la t ions o f  

the  Commiss ion  and tha t  p rocess w i l l  be  taken fo rward  
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u rgent ly.  

 Okay tha t  i s  the  end o f  tha t  announcement .   Mr  

Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank  you Cha i r.   Jus t  some 

housekeep ing  before  we beg in  today.   We wi l l  be  work ing  

in  f i les  FOF 2  and 3  today and we need to  ident i f y  some 

annexures.   A t  the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Huh-uh  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cha i r  –  sor ry  Cha i r.   In  FOF 2  

there  is  a  Regu la t ion  10 .6  Not ice  a t  page 390.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  F low o f  Funds Bund le  2?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask  tha t  tha t  no t ice  da ted  

17 September  be  entered as  BB – as  VV3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  page is  i t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Page 390.   390.    

CHAIRPERSON:   You say i t  shou ld  be  Exh ib i t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   VV3.1 .   Then Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The D i rec t i ve  in  te rms o f  Regu la t ion  10 .6  20 

o f  the  Regu la t ions o f  the  Commiss ion  s ta r t ing  a t  page 390  

is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  VV3.1  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Cha i r  there  is  a  second  

exh ib i t  –  a  second 10.6  Not ice  a t  page 395 i f  tha t  can be 

VV3.2?  That  i s  the  no t ice  ca l l ing  fo r  an  a f f idav i t  i t  i s  da ted  
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5  October.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The D i rec t i ve  in  te rms o f  Regu la t ion  10 .6  

wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 395 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  VV3.2 .   I s  

tha t  r igh t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   3 .2 .   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Cha i r  Mr  Makhubo 

fu rn ished an a f f idav i t  in  response to  tha t  second not ice  and 

th is  a f f idav i t  cer ta in ly  does comply  w i th  Ru le  10 .6  Cha i r.   

That  i s  to  be  found a t  page 404.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  one we  w i l l  admi t  a f te r  he  has  

conf i rmed h is  s ignature  i s  i t  no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.   There  is  tha t  a f f idav i t  

and the  supp lementary  w i tness s ta tement  and a  bund le .   I f  

we can reserve .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  we can reserve  3  and 4  fo r  the  

a f f idav i t  and the  w i tness s ta tement .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  I  m igh t  take  you  to  the  

bund le  wh ich  commences on page 610 –  610 o f  Vo lume 2 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Page 610 o f  the  same bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Cha i r  and i f  tha t  can be a  
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bund le  o f  document  descr ibed as  Annexure  VV3.5?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  separa te  documents  tha t  s tand 

a lone?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  a  bund le  o f  documents  f rom 

which  we are  go ing  to  pu t  severa l  documents  to  Mr  

Makhubo in  todays ’ sess ion  Cha i r  l i ke  w i th  Mr  Ramosebud i  

yes terday i t  i s  a  bund le  o f  documents  co l lec ted  by  the  

commiss ion  in  due course .   They w i l l  a l l  be  proven  by  the  

commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   You –  you want  us  to  mark  t he  10 

f i rs t  one and the  o thers  w i l l  be  marked w i th  po in t  

someth ing  –  po in t  someth ing  up  to  the  end? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Cha i r  i f  we cou ld… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then –  bu t  we w i l l  use  the  page  

number  –  pag ina t ion?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay a l r igh t .   D id  you want  me  to  –  to  

jus t  mark  the  f i rs t  one and then say we w i l l  say  po in t  1  o r  

whatever  and then the  res t  w i l l  be  done la te r?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Indeed Cha i r  un fo r tunate ly  i t  i s  20 

go ing  to  po in t  606 or  whatever.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bu t  yes  p lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay a l r igh t .   Exh ib i t  VV s tands –  

remains?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   VV rema ins  yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And then i t  w i l l  be  a f te r  VV what  

w i l l  i t  be? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   3 .5 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   3 .5 .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Cha i r  because there  are  –  

there  i s  go ing  to  be  pag ina t ion  –  tha t  bund le  in  fac t  runs to  

the  end o f  Bund le  2  and th rough the  who le  o f  Bund le  3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Migh t  I  suggest  tha t  we create  a  10 

new annexure  fo r  Bund le  3  so  we do not  end up w i th  

dup l i ca te  page numbers .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes  I  agree ja  I  agree.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And tha t  wou ld  then be VV3.6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay so  I  have 

marked i t  as  Exh ib i t  VV3.5  a t  page  610.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And then  do not  fo rge t  to  le t  Mr  

Makhubo ’s  lega l  team repre  –  p lace themse lves on  record?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Maybe i f  Mr  Mphaga can  do tha t  

now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  maybe you can do i t  f rom there  ja .  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Thank you Cha i r  i t  i s  Advocate  Moses 
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Mphaga SC br ie fed  by  Malanga Incorpora ted .   And Cha i r  

jus t  as  a  mat te r  o f  a lso  exp la in ing  someth ing?  I t  i s  in  the 

found ing  a f f idav i t  –  the  f i rs t  a f f idav i t .   You w i l l  no te  tha t  

the  –  i s  there  a  paragraph wh ich  is  t i t led… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Te l l  me the  page f i rs t?  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Page VV3 MGM016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh use the  b lack  numbers  on  the  top  le f t  

corne r  o f  the  page.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Top co rne r.   Oh I  do  no t  have the  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  have?  10 

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Yes but  i t  i s  jus t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay te l l  me the  red  one i t  i s  f ine .   Te l l  

me the  red  page number.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   VV3 MGM016.  

CHAIRPERSON:   016.   Okay I  jus t  want  to  ge t  –  Mr  

Chaska lson are  you ab le  to  g ive  me the  b lack  number  or  

no t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  wou ld  be  405 Cha i r.   But  I  th ink  

fo r  Mr  Mphaga ’s  benef i t  we need to  ge t  h im a  bund le  w i th  

the  co r rec t  pag ina t ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   O therwise  he  is  no t  go ing  to  be  

ab le  to  fo l low.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  i t  i s  go ing  –  he  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  f ind 

the  r igh t  documents .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we  jus t  a t tend to tha t  now 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Apparent ly  there  is  a  bund le  

here .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja  okay.   405 you sa id .  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Yes Cha i r.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have found i t .  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV MPHAGA SC:   We have consu l ted  w i th  ou r  c l ien t  and  

he does not  want  to  dea l  w i th  those  issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Because they  are  lega l  a rguments .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay,  okay.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   And I  th ink  the  request .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  jus t  to  save t ime.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   The request  fo r  a  ru l ing  I  do  no t  th ink 

i t  i s  conf ident  because there  is  no  app l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

ADV MPHAGA SC:   So  we w i l l  no t  be  dea l ing  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Okay.  

ADV MPHAGA SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much.   Thank you.   Mr  

Chaska lson.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Then  we are  

ready to  commence and we w i l l  need Mr  Makhubo to  be  

sworn  in  bu t  I  unders tood tha t  poss ib ly  be fore  Mr  Makhubo  

is  sworn  in  he  wants  to  make a  s ta tement  to  the 

commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  le t  h im be sworn  in  and le t  us  ge t  

i t  –  le t  us  ge t  tha t  par t  ou t  o f  the  way and then he can – I  

w i l l  a l low h im to  make some remarks  or  s ta tements  a f te r  

tha t .   Un less  there  is  a  par t i cu la r  reason why the  sequence 

shou ld  be  d i f fe ren t?   There  is  no  reason.   Okay p lease  10 

admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion  f i rs t?  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR MAKHUBO:   Mobantoa Geoff rey  Makhubo.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any ob jec t ions to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR MAKHUBO:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  to  be  b ind ing  on  

your  consc ience?  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  

REGISTRAR:   Do  you swear  tha t  the  ev idence you w i l l  g ive  20 

w i l l  be  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  e l se  bu t  the  t ru th ;  

i f  so  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  me God.  

MR MAKHUBO:   So  he lp  me God.  

REGISTRAR:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  Makhubo.  
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MR MAKHUBO:   Good morn ing  Cha i rperson and Mr  

Chaska lson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And thank you fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  

come and ass i s t  the  commiss ion .   Thank you.   I  unders tand  

tha t  you wou ld  l i ke  to  take  about  f i ve  m inutes  to  say 

someth ing  be fo re  Mr  Chaska lson leads your  ev idence.  

MR MAKHUBO:   yes  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  g ive  you tha t  chance now.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Thank you very  much Deputy  Ch ie f  

Jus t ice  and good  morn ing  to  a l l .   I t  i s  a long the  same l ines  10 

Cha i rperson tha t  we wou ld  l i ke  to  apprec ia te  the  

oppor tun i ty  to  appear  be fore  the  commiss ion  and g i ve  

ev idence and ass is t  the  commiss ion  wherever  we can and  

to  say tha t  on  the  record  tha t  we suppor t  fu l l y  the  work  o f  

the  commiss ion .  

 Any re ference to  de lays  in  submiss ion  o f  documents  

or  comments  on  d i f f i cu l t ies  o f  access ing  documents  were  

no t  de l ibe ra te .   Some o f  the  issues occur red  between ten  

and f i f teen years  ago so  –  so  we wanted to  pu t  on  record  

tha t  we are  here  to  answer  quest ions.   C lea r  th ings tha t  20 

are  on  the  pub l i c  d iscourse  and  o f  course  I  mean the  

po l i t i ca l  space there  w i l l  be  po l i t ica l  i ssues but  I  am here  

to  ass i s t  the  commiss ion  where  poss ib le .  

 You know I  have knowledge tha t  I  am duty  bound to  

come and ass is t  the  commiss ion  by  the  pos i t ion  I  ho ld .   
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Even though the  issues tha t  a re  be ing  re fer red  to  p recede  

my t ime in  government  and o f  course  be ing  the  Execut ive  

Mayor  bu t  I  unders tand tha t  the  cu r ren t  ro le  b r ings  

a t ten t ion  to  the  mat te rs  and hab i tua l l y  e leva tes  the  mat te rs  

to  be  mat te rs  o f  pub l i c  impor tance even though they had 

been pr io r  to  me ho ld ing  th is  pos i t ion .  

 So –  so  we jus t  wanted to  pu t  tha t  –  tha t  we a re  

fu l l y  beh ind  the  commiss ion  and we w i l l  suppor t  i ts  work .   

Thank you ve ry  much.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very  much –  thank you very 10 

much Mr  Makhubo we apprec ia te  tha t .   Thank you.   Mr  

Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   Mr  Makhubo i f  

we can poss ib l y  beg in  by  s imp ly  conf i rm ing the  two or  the  

a f f idav i t  and the  s ta tement  tha t  you have submi t ted  to  the 

commiss ion .   I f  I  can  ask  you f i rs t  to  go  to  page 424  o f  tha t  

F i le  2  and jus t  conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  your  s ignature  on  page 

424 a t  the  end o f  the  a f f idav i t?  

CHAIRPERSON:   You –  he  knows tha t  he  must  focus  on  the  

b lack  numbers  Mr  Chaska lson?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You do not  have f i les?   Does i t  

say  2  or  3?   3  oh  I  beg your  pardon le t  me ge t  a  f i le  

th rough to  you.    

MR MAKHUBO:   Which  page is  tha t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   424.  
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MR MAKHUBO:   424.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Any re ference to  page numbers  Mr  

Makhubo w i l l  be  a  re ference to  the  b lack  numbers  a t  the  

top  le f t  corne r  o f  each page.   You can d is regard  the  red  

numbers  un less  Mr  Chaska lson spec i f i ca l l y  re fe rs  to  red  

numbers .  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes i t  i s  my s igna ture .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And tha t  i s  a  s ignature  wh ich  you 

s igned depos ing  to  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 404? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes those are  my in i t ia ls  I  can  conf i rm 10 

tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.   Cha i r  can we ask  

tha t  tha t  a f f idav i t  now be admi t ted  as  VV3.3?  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Moloantoa Geoff rey  

Makhubo s tar t ing  a t  page 404 is  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  VV3.3 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   And then Mr 

Makhubo on –  in  fac t  yes terday on the  26  November  your  

lega l  team furn ished us  a  supp lementa ry  s ta tement  wh ich  

you w i l l  f ind  a t  –  jus t  a f te r  page 606.   I t  i s  numbered  

606.1 .2 .3 .  20 

MR MAKHUBO:   Found i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  I  can  ask  you  jus t  to  

conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  in  fac t  on  page 11 tha t  i s  your  s ignature  

aga in  a t  the  –  a t  the  foo t  o f  there  and I  have been ca l l ing  i t  

a  s ta tement  I  see  in  fac t  i t  i s  an  a f f idav i t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You say ing  page 11 you mean 606.11 

Mr… 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   606.11 indeed Cha i r.   And then  

can I  ask  you jus t  to  conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  tha t  

s ta tement?   Sor ry  be fore  you do –  be fore  you con f i rm the 

cor rec tness can I  take  you jus t  to  page 6  because  I  th ink  

there  may an e r ror  on  606.6  in  pa rag raph 20.   I  th ink  I  do  

no t  want  to  pu t  words in to  your  mouth  bu t  I  th ink  there  is  a  

re ference to  TSS tha t  shou ld  be  a  re ference to  CCMA.   So 

in  paragraph 20 you say:  10 

“ I  have ind i ca ted  in  my found ing  a f f idav i t  

tha t  Mo le lwane Ho ld ings was es tab l i shed  

together  w i th  Obakeng Sh ikhane Du P less is  

Investment  dea ls .   The TSS was  the  on ly  

dea l  conc luded by  Mole lwane Ho ld ings as  

per  the  teaming  agreement  re fe r red  to  in  

parag raph 6 .2  o f  the  year  submiss ion  to  

s ta te  capture . ”  

 I s  the  re ference to  TSS cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes i t  i s .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MAKHUBO:   That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  apo log ise .   Then can I  ask  you 

to  conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  th is  s ta tement?   Th is  a f f idav i t  

oh  sor ry.  
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MR MAKHUBO:   I t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.   And Cha i r  can tha t  

then be admi t ted  as  VV3.4?  

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Moloantoa Geoff rey  

Makhubo s ta r t ing  a t  page 606.1  i s  admi t ted  as  Exh ib i t  

VV3.4 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then Mr  Makhubo before  we get  

in to  the  de ta i l s  o f  you r  s ta tements  there  is  one issue tha t  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  canvass w i th  you in  advance because  i t  i s  an  

issue tha t  i s  o f  par t i cu la r  impor tance to  the  commiss ion  10 

and I  have ind ica ted  to  your  Counse l  and I  want  to  pu t  i t  on  

record  here .   Tha t  I  am genu ine ly  in te res ted  i n  your  v iews  

as  a  –  o r  I  am –  wou ld  hope the  commiss ion  as  someone 

who has been Treasury  Genera l  o f  a  reg ion  on  th is  top i c  

and I  want  to  jus t  make an under tak ing  to  you tha t  you 

speak comple te ly  f ree ly  and I  w i l l  no t  re fe r  to  any  o f  your  

answers  in  th is  sec t ion  o f  your  tes t imony a t  any o ther  po in t  

in  your  tes t imony.   I  am genu ine ly  look ing  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  

your  v iews and not  ta lk ing  about  fac ts  here ,  we look ing  fo r  

v iews and poss ib le  adv ice .  20 

 And the  i ssue tha t  we –  tha t  I  want  to  ra ise  w i th  you  

in  th is  contex t  i s  re la t ing  to  po l i t i ca l  par ty  fund ing  wh ich  is  

why your  exper ience is  a  Treasure r  Genera l  i s  so 

impor tan t .    

 And in  your  second s ta tement  you make a  po in t  
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wh ich  I  th ink  i s  a  –  a  very  good po in t  in  paragraph 26 o f  

tha t  second s ta tement  page 606.8 .   And there  you say:  

“As ind i ca ted  in  my found ing  a f f idav i t  I  was  

e lec ted  as  Treasurer  o f  the  ANC 

Johannesburg  Reg ion  cur ren t ly  ac t ing  as  

the  Cha i rpe rson.   As  a  member  o f  the  ANC I  

am expected to  make cont r i bu t ions towards 

the  movement  a t  a l l  mater ia l  t imes.   

However  as  a  Treasurer  I  have the  

ob l iga t ion  to  ra ise  money and ensure  tha t  10 

the  f inanc ia l  needs and ob l iga t ions o f  the  

ANC in  my reg ion  are  met .   These f inanc ia l  

ob l iga t ions are  no t  on l y  l im i ted  to  the  

opera t iona l  month ly  costs  bu t  many o ther  

cos ts  tha t  a re  re la ted  to  day to  day  

requests  by  ord inary  members  and 

branches.   Some wou ld  re fer  to  f inanc ia l  

ass is tance fo r  a  bur ia l  o f  members . ”  

 I  must  apo log i se  I  am tak ing  you  to  the  wrong –  I  

am tak ing  you to  the  wrong parag raph.   There  i s  a  –  there  20 

is  passage in  your  a f f idav i t  where  you speak to  the  fac t  

tha t  the  ANC needs donat ions to  fund i t se l f  in  cer ta in  

respects .   And  tha t  the  donat ions tha t  i t  d raws a re  

pr imar i l y  f rom b lack  bus iness peop le  because 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:   I t  m igh t  be  parag raph 31 Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you very  much I  –  le t  me 

not  pu t  words in to  your  mouth  Mr  Makhubo.   The Cha i r  has 

d i rec ted  me to  the  co r rec t  parag raph.    

“ In  so  fa r  as  the  fund ing  o f  po l i t i ca l  par t ies  

are  concerned sad ly  the  reg iona l  o f f i ces  are  

no t  rece iv ing  any f inanc ia l  ass is tance l i ke  

the  na t iona l  o f f ice  f rom loca l  –  f rom the  10 

loca l  mun ic ipa l i t y.   Th is  c rea tes  a  ser ious  

f inanc ia l  burden on the  f inanc ia l  needs o f  

reg iona l  o f f i ces .   Fur the r  i t  i s  no t  unusua l  

fo r  the  t reasure r  o f  the  ANC to  make  

requests  fo r  donat ions f rom ind i v idua ls  and  

f rom most ly  b lack  owned compan ies  tha t  

a re  sympathet ic  to  the  ANC.   Most  o f  these  

b lack  compan ies  do  not  rece ive  any work  o r  

tenders  f rom the  pr iva te  sector  bu t  f rom the  

pub l i c  sec tor.   I t  i s  there fore  no t  unusua l  20 

tha t  these compan ies  wou ld  be  enab led  to  

cont r ibu te  o r  donate  mon ies  to  the  ANC 

f rom funds de r ived f rom award  o f  tenders . ”  

 Now I  want  to  ask  you some quest ions in  tha t  

regard  and I  wan t  to  repeat  tha t  I  –  I  am not  go ing  to  re fer  
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to  your  answers  la te r  in  th is  c ross-examinat ion .   Can you –  

can you g ive  us  an  ind i ca t ion  o f  what  the  budget  –  what  

the  annua l  budget  o f  your  reg ion  was when you were  

Treasurer  Genera l?  

MR MAKHUBO:   F i rs t l y  I  was –  I  was ca l led  a  Reg iona l  

Treasurer  no t  the  Treasurer  Genera l .   The ANC on ly  has  

one Treasurer  Genera l  who i s  based a t  head o f f i ce  and 

because we are  a  un i ta ry  s t ruc tu re  the  –  the  fund  ra is ing  

e f fo r ts ,  the  fund ing  po l i c ies  wou ld  be  the  Nat iona l  

Competency and  the  Treasurer  Genera l  wou ld  be  best  10 

p laced to  –  to  speak on the  fund ing  o f  the  ANC genera l l y  

as  an  organ isa t ion .  

 However  as  i t  re la tes  to  –  to  my respons ib i l i t i es  as  

a  Reg iona l  Treasure r  o f  the  ANC the  –  the  budget  wou ld  

d i f fe r  f rom annua l  –  year  to  year  depend ing  on the  

ac t iv i t ies  f rom –  on  tha t  yea r.  

 So we wou ld  normal ly  fund  the  opera t iona l  

expenses o f  the  reg ion  on  a  month  to  month  bas i s  bu t  

there  w i l l  be  peaks.   When there  is  a  confe rence,  when the  

e lec t ions as  we  mobi l i se  fo r  members  to  a t tend cer ta in  20 

events  l i ke  January  8  events  e tce tera  e tce tera  so  o rd inar i l y  

we wou ld  s i t  and  focus a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  year.   I s  

there  a  Youth  League conference,  i s  there  a  Women’s  

League conference.  I s  there  [00 :24 :02]  Mi l i ta ry  Veterans  

Conference s i t t ing  –  Veterans League is  i t  s i t t ing?  Cosas  
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Sasko how do we he lp  them?  So i t  i s  never  a  constant  

amount  i t  depends on the  ac t iv i t ies  p lanned fo r  the  

par t i cu la r  year.  

 And then o f  cou rse  there  w i l l  be  d i f fe ren t  campaigns  

tha t  need to  be  funded and i t  i s  –  you d id  no t  know f rom 

the  s ta tement  o f  the  Pres ident  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  year  

then you wou ld  know what  the  campaign shou ld  be  o f  tha t  

year  and what  g ives  you tha t  we wou ld  fund.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bu t  jus t  rough ly?   I  mean are  you 

ab le  to  g ive  us  a  sor t  o f  –  jus t  an  approx imate  f igu re  o f  say  10 

–  what  was your  las t  yea r  as  Treasurer  as  I  unders tand i t  

was 2000 –  end o f  2018?  Do you  have a  sense o f  what  i s  

the  budget  fo r  the  reg ion  was or  –  fo r  tha t  year?  

MR MAKHUBO:   I  must  th ink  because normal ly  we g ive  a  

repor t  fo r  th ree  years  and I  th ink  because there  were  – 

there  wou ld  have  been e lec t ions and congress there  wou ld  

anyth ing  be tween  30 and 50 mi l l ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  suspect  i t  wou ld  have been  

more  than tha t  because we have seen –  we have seen a  

le t te r  jus t  dea l ing  w i th  e lec t ions tha t  ta lks  about  50  m i l l ion .  20 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes these were  the  2016 e lec t ions  –  very,  

very  d i f f i cu l t .   And o f  course  the  p r ices  and costs  increase  

and the  sor t  o f  ac t i v i t ies ,  the  ta rge t  –  the  ta rge ted  

aud iences –  the  sor t s  o f  events  tha t  were  p lanned were  

very,  very  d i f fe ren t  f rom the  past  e lec t ions bu t  fo r  now you  
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a re  co r rec t  I  remember  v iv id l y  ask ing  fo r  –  f o r  tha t  amount  

o f  money and i t  was not  the  on ly  money we were  t ry ing  to  

source .   But  jus t  spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  –  fo r  tha t  e lec t ion .   I  

thought  you ask ing  me what  i s  on  average the… 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Le t  me te l l  you  where  I  am.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  one second.   Jus t  ho ld .   A l though he 

is  ask ing  the  quest ions Mr  Makhubo you are  te l l ing  me.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  do not .  

MR MAKHUBO:   Okay Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   So  fo r  –  you know for  me to  hear  you 

proper ly  i t  i s  be t te r  as  you g ive  the  answers  you face  th is  

s ide .  

MR MAKHUBO:   Okay Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am in teres ted  in  ge t t ing  a  sense 

o f  a  comple te  budget  inc lud ing  e lec t ions,  inc luded  ad-hoc 

campaigns  How much wou ld  i t  cos t  to  run  a  po l i t i ca l  par t y  

on  the  sca le  o f  the  ANC in  th is  reg ion  over  each o f  those  

years?   And I  am not  –  we a re  no t  go ing  to  ho ld  you  to  tha t  20 

a t  a l l  bu t  we jus t  want  to  ge t  a  sense o f  i t  because … 

MR MAKHUBO:   Ja  I  rea l l y  w i l l  have to  go  back to  my 

records.   He knows tha t  t reasurer  fo r  a  very  long t ime so  

th ings have changed a long the  way.   Cha i rperson I  –  I  was 

f i rs t  e lec ted  in  2008 so  w i l l  have seen d i f fe ren t  [00 :26 :57]  
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i t se l f  chang ing ,  cha l lenges be ing  d i f fe ren t ,  number  o f  

works  inc reas ing .   So I  rea l l y  do  no t  want  to  specu la te  as  

we speak here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  can I  then ask  a  separa te  

quest ion?  How much o f  tha t  budget  i s  funded f rom 

membersh ip  dues  and how much is  funded f rom donat ions?  

Aga in  I  am not  go ing  to  ask ing  fo r  anyth ing  exact  bu t  jus t  a  

b road es t imate .  

MR MAKHUBO:   You know there  was an a r t i c le  by  the  

Treasurer  Genera l  in  the  Sunday  Times a  few weeks ago 10 

who sa id  na t iona l l y  the  ANC gets  about  75% to  80% f rom 

the  –  f rom pr iva te  donat ions.   We pay R20 a  year  as  a  

member.   So i f  you  have 50 000 members  i t  rea l l y  cannot  

sus ta in  even one month .   So –  so  major i t y  o f  ou r  fund ing  in  

Johannesburg  wou ld  come f rom pr i va te  donat ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You see tha t  –  I  mean  tha t  i s  

what  I  wou ld  have imag ined and i t  does seem to  me tha t  

there  i s  a  po ten t ia l  p rob lem there  because the  membersh ip  

to  whom the  organ isa t ion  shou ld  be  accountab le  are  in  

f inanc ia l  te rms noth ing  l i ke  most  impor tan t  const i tuency in  20 

te rms o f  fund ing  the  organ isa t ion .   So tha t  –  wou ld  you  

comment  on  tha t?  

MR MAKHUBO:   I  suppose tha t  i s  the  confe rence  agrees 

on membersh ip  fees and i t  i s  R20.00 per  annum.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sor ry  to  in te r rup t .   I  am not  fo r  a  
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m inu te  suggest ing  the  membersh ip  fees shou ld  be  more  

than R20.00 pe r  annum because I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  

membersh ip  shou ld  be  a  –  i f  the  membersh ip  fee  shou ld  

d isqua l i f y  anyone  f rom be ing  a  member.   I  mean there  is  a  

rea l i t y  tha t  a  la rge  number  o f  members  a re  no t  go ing  to  be  

ab le  to  a f fo rd  much more  than R20.00 as  a  membersh ip  

fee .   But  I  s t i l l  want  to  go  back to  my o ther  –  my ear l ie r  

quest ion  wh ich  i s  i f  you  have a  low membersh ip  fee  to  g ive  

access to  eve ryone what  tha t  means is  tha t  membersh ip  

dues are  go ing  to  be  a  re la t i ve l y  smal l  percentage o f  the 10 

money tha t  you need to  run  the  organ isa t ion .  

MR MAKHUBO:   True  Cha i rpe rson  tha t  the  na ture  I  th ink  o f  

po l i t i ca l  par t ies  and I  wou ld  l i ke  to  th ink  tha t  a l l  po l i t i ca l  

par t ies  in  South  A f r i ca  wou ld  have the  same prob lem o f  

hav ing  to  go  to  the  pr iva te  sec tor  to  ask  fo r  donat ions  

hence I  th ink  Par l iament  has been  debat ing  th is  and there  

was [00 :29 :34]  po l i t i ca l  fund ing  dea l  o r  ac t  now tha t  i s  

wa i t ing  fo r  P res ident  to  s ign  to  regu la te  th is  po l i t i ca l  par ty  

fund ing  over  t ime I  th ink  there  have been NGO’s  and 

po l i t i ca l  pa r t ies  ta lk ing  about  th is  re l iance on the  pr iva te  20 

sector  and the  po tent ia l  p rob lems not  the  rea l  po ten t ia l  

p rob lems i t  m igh t  b r ing .  

 So that  is. . .   I  mean, my answer wi l l  be that ,  i t  is  be ing a 

discussion at  the moment.   I  mean, in par l iament,  I  th ink 

they have discussed,  amongst  pol i t ical  part ies themselves.    
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 There would have been one or two pol i t ical  part ies who 

were against  i t  but  I  th ink i t  was passed through maybe the 

ANC support ing i t .  

 But  there should be some regulat ion of  pol i t ical  party  

funding.   I t  is only nat ional .   Local  government  counci l  does 

not  fund any pol i t ical  party.   I  do not  th ink the province funds 

any pol i t ical  party.    

 So I  am unsure how that  wi l l  be able to cover,  the 

ent i rety of  the needs of  al l  pol i t ical  part ies,  registered 

pol i t ical  part ies,  funding throughout  the count ry.   So I  do not  10 

know what the future wi l l  br ing.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  whi le we are on donat ions.   

That  point  that  you make at  paragraph 31 is,  I  th ink,  a 

part icular ly an important  point .    

 I  mean, we l ive in  a profoundly unequal  society.   And we 

st i l l  carry a massive legacy f rom our apartheid’s past .   And 

so the bulk of  the membership and the supports of  the ANC 

do not  have large amounts of  money.   I t  is not  just  the ANC.  

I t  is also the other  part ies represent ing black South Af r icans.    

 And you make the point  here that  black owned 20 

companies,  general ly,  do not  receive substant ia l  work f rom 

the pr ivate sector but  are dependent  on the publ ic sector.    

 Would you say – I  mean, that  is your point ,  not  mine.   

But  I  – I  mean,  you presumable – you have made i t .   You 

must accept  i t .    
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 What I  want to put  to you is that ,  i f  there is a model  that  

depends on corporate donat ions for  pol i t ical  party funding in 

a society l ike ours where the bulk of  the populat ion is st i l l  

very,  very poor and where the black companies,  because of  

our  legacy,  our  history,  wi th  very few except ions,  are 

dependent on publ ic sector contracts for big cont racts.    

 Is there not  a r isk that  because of  our model  of  pol i t ical  

party funding that  issues of  procurement and party pol i t ical  

funding,  may. . .    

 I  do not  want to suggest  that  they do – that  they do get  10 

confused but  is  there not  a r isk that  i t  can look l ike 

procurement is being di rected for pol i t ical  party  funding 

purposes? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Chairperson,  I  suppose when you say there 

is a r isk,  there is  always a r isk.   Let  me make an example.   

The mining ent i ty would st i l l  government  for l icenses and al l  

that .  

 So do not  real ly procure f rom government di rect ly but  

they need regulatory environment,  they need a part icu lar 

pol icy f ramework,  they need a l icense for carrying on wi th 20 

their  mining operat ions.  

 So in any normal  environment that  r isk could exist  as 

wel l ,  that  whoever is in charge at  that  point ,  would be 

lobbying for a part icular type of  pol icy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Indeed.  
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MR MAKHUBO :    But  i t  is not  di rect ly l inked to procurement.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Your point  is . . . [ indist inct ]  

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    So I  am saying that  business,  general ly,  

whether buying f rom the state or pr ivate sector,  would need 

a part icular pol icy f ramework,  would need a certa in legal  

f ramework.  

 I  mean, there is a cry f rom business about labour laws 

and say,  they are not  encouraging investment and al l  that .    

 So there is a lobby f rom business,  whether  i t  is  10 

procuring f rom pr ivate sector or – not  what is in the pr ivate – 

f rom the publ ic sector which is in the pr ivate sector.  

 So I  am saying the r isk,  for me, is  throughout  that  

government,  by i ts very nature,  is needed for regulatory 

environment and then procurement.  

 When you say there is a r isk of  a d irect  l ink between 

procuring f rom the state and support ing.   I  can say,  i f  we do 

– you take a procurement stand(?) l ist  of  any government 

department and you see,  probably,  how much goes through 

previously whi te owned companies and previously. . .   You wi l l  20 

be shocked.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  would not  be shocked.  We 

have been looking at  the l ist  for a very long t ime.  

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]  

MR MAKHUBO :    The direct  l ink,  I  th ink,  for me.  Yes,  i t  
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remains a r isk but  I  do not  th ink this casual ty(?),  i t  cause an 

effect  there.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  let  me turn i t  around 

because you are talk ing about regulatory f rameworks as wel l  

as procurement.   My real  point  – the real  po int  I  want  to put  

to you and get  your comment on is.    

 Do you not  th ink that  i f  we could move away f rom a 

model  of  pol i t ical  party  funding that  depend on corporate 

donat ions for the most  part ,  we could think of  a d i fferent  

model? 10 

 The potent ia l  for  party  pol icy to be inf luenced by big 

corporat ions,  be that  black or whi te ,  would be much less.    

MR MAKHUBO :    In an ideal  world,  I  th ink that  i t  wi l l  be 

sl ight ly di fferent .   The si tuat ion would be completely di fferent  

-  or  s l ight ly  d i fferent ,  let  me say.   I  st i l l  bel ieve that  for the 

surv ival  of  business,  genera l ly,  that  economics pol i t ics nexus 

somehow and i t  is  wel l  r ight (?).    

 I t  is not  s imi lar(?) in South Afr ica,  Chai rperson.   I t  is 

actual ly why – i f  you look at  models in the Western Europe,  

in the US.   20 

 In fact ,  in the US i t  is actual ly qui te worse that ,  when i t  

is the Republ icans,  you know that  there wi l l  be this lobby of  

the Republ icans for th is pol icy.  

 So I  th ink i t  is  a debate,  genera l ly,  the mult i - latera l  

organisat ions must  be discussing this.   How would you l ist (?) 
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the business inf luence.   Al though you need economics to 

run,  you need the economy to grow.  

 And of  course,  they need pol i t ics to be stable.   They 

need democracy to thr ive.   So they have got  an interest  in 

the stabi l i ty of  the count ry.  

 Businesses has got  interest  in the stabi l i ty of  the 

count ry.   I t  has got  interest  in  the stabi l i ty of  our  po l i t ics(?).   

The body(?) pol i t ics must  be stable.  

 And I  th ink,  in doing so,  some of  them would say:   I  

support  democracy.   I  know companies that  wi l l  say:   I  am 10 

funding every pol i t ical  party that  is in par l iament in 

proport ion to thei r  representat ion.  

 Because they are interested in a stable democracy.   And 

I  th ink they must  have a hand in stabi l is ing our democracy.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  put  a not ion to you and I  

just  want your comments?  What  about  a system, a party  

pol i t ical  f inancing that  was in large parts based on central  

government grounds dispensed according to  audi ted 

membership? 

 So you work out  what a party needs to run on an 20 

eff ic ient  basis and you say i f  a party,  you know, two mi l l ion 

people nat ionwide would need this budget,  i f  i t  – per 

member,  cent ral  government or grant  and pol i t ical  – and 

donat ions f rom the pr ivate sector wi l l  not  be al lowed.  We 

wi l l  cut  that  off .  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 28 of 297 
 

MR MAKHUBO :    Is i t  possible that  the f iscus can absorb 

that  and be able to fund?  I  th ink in  the last  elect ions we had 

60 or so registered part ies and there were others that  could 

not  even raise because they did not  have the funds but  they 

wanted to contest .  

 I  mean, i f  you look at  the IEC Porta l .   I  do not  know how 

many part ies have registered to the IEC but  . . . [ indis t inct ]  for  

those elect ions.    

 I f  the f iscus is  big enough to carry that  and that  is  

enough for  pol i t ical  part ies to run,  i t  wi l l  be disadvantaged 10 

. . . [ indist inct ]  part ies though because they wi l l  get  a smal ler 

proport ion.  

 And I  suppose that  is why the publ ic – the publ ic –  the 

Pol i t ical  Part ies Funding Bi l l  is t ry ing to address that  very 

part  that  you. . .  

 In fact ,  i t  is very speci f ic that  when you fund a pol i t ical  

party over a certa in amount,  you must  d isclose i t .   Everyone 

must  know.  So i t  cannot happen in the dark,  so to  say.   I  

cannot happen in secret .   But  anything below that  amount. . .  

 You know, i f  i t  is a Spaza shop in Soweto,  funds a 20 

branch,  R 10 000,00 for  thei r  act iv i ty.   You know, they do not  

have to – there is no duty to declare.  

 And I  th ink those thresholds,  for me, are qui te important  

that  we set .   I  bel ieve in hybr id.   I  th ink the state must  play a 

ro le.   I  st i l l  th ink that  business – in  fact ,  business must  play 
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a role in funding pol i t ical  part ies.   Regulated,  maybe.  But  I  

th ink the hybrid is  qui te important .  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You see,  i f  state funding is  

dispensed according to audi ted membership – I  mean, there 

remains a quest ion of  whether we would have the machinery 

to do that .   But  i f  i t  was,  part ies would then become much 

more accountable to thei r  members.  

 When a member leaves,  the ANC for  EFF, the grant  for 

that  member goes to the EFF as wel l .   What  is your comment 10 

to that? 

MR MAKHUBO :    You see,  i t  is an ideal  s i tuat ion.   I  th ink 

that  i f  for accountabi l i ty Chairperson,  i t  is qui te important ,  

i r respect ive of  where the funds come from and how they are 

dist r ibuted and al located.  

 The issue of  accountabi l i ty  to,  f i rst ly your members and 

secondly to the publ ic is qui te important  which is why I  th ink 

my organisat ion,  i ts  congresses being l ive and media is 

invi ted and we do account to the publ ic.  

 You wi l l  even f ind our reports,  including st rategy and 20 

tact ics were. . .   You know, we plan our st rategies but  we 

make i t  publ ic.  

 So I  th ink accountabi l i ty for me is key and cent ral .   So 

whether you use funds to t ry and keep a member f rom 

jumping ship,  I  do not  know.   I  th ink when your  values do no 
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reconci le to the values of  the organisat ion,  you are f ree to 

leave.    

 I t  should not  be based on that  you go and recrui t  on a 

sundry(?) so that  you can get  more money.   People must  

agree to your values.   People must  want to be a member of  

the organisat ion.  

 They must  l ive the pr inciples of  that  organisat ion.   I t  

must  not  be based on funding.   I  do not  th ink i t  is  proper.   

Even though, the proport ion of  the funds you get  f rom 

pol i t ical  party  funding would be based on your representat ion 10 

in par l iament which is a t ranslat ion of  the proport ion of  the 

votes you got  dur ing the last  genera l  e lect ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  that  is one model  based on 

your electoral  support .   Another one might  be based on 

audi ted membership.   So the one is – would remunerate 

part ies in proport ion to the ir  e lectoral  support .   The other  

would remunerate them in proport ion to thei r  membership.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Which would then give the 

membership more power wi thin the party.    20 

MR MAKHUBO :    Ja,  maybe Chairperson,  we should take 

this and put  i t  in a discussion document in al l  pol i t ical  

part ies and then say,  i t  is probably a model  to  promote the 

accountabi l i ty to members.  

 I  th ink the accountabi l i ty is more to society than i t  is to  
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your own members.   [ Indist inct ]  members.   As a Treasurer in 

the conference there are . . . [ indist inct ]  members through 

delegates but  we have to account to the publ ic.  

 Especial ly publ ic funds are used.   We real ly need some 

form of  reports to  Treasury.   Reports to par l iament.   Reports  

to counci l .   Reports to the legislature in order to account to 

the publ ic.  

 So that  is why. . .   The model  might  work.   I t  might  be 

cumbersome.  Every t ime a member jo ins,  there must  be 

portals so that  is can be audi ted.  10 

 You do not  go to a graveyard and take names of  – and 

dates of  bi r th of  people and,  you know, for  ghost  

memberships.  

 So i t  needs to be a robust  system for  i t  to work.   Maybe 

South Af r ica should be the f i rst  to experiment wi th that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  you know, i t  is not  real ly my 

ro le to [ laughs]  to  put  these out .   So maybe we should get  to 

the quest ioning.   But  I  would welcome a publ ic  conversat ion 

around that  because I  do think that . . .  

 What we have seen in th is Commission is that  the l ink 20 

between pol i t ical  party funding and pr ivate donors can be 

abused in certain ci rcumstances.    

MR MAKHUBO :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then start  the quest ioning 

which is now going to be less discursive and more focussed 
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on very speci f ic facts?   

 You furnished a ful l  statement to the Commission.   The 

Commission was real ly interested in a range of  topics.   The 

re lat ionship – pr imari ly the relat ionship between your close 

corporat ion cal led Molelwane Consul t ing which was a 

corporat ion in which you held a 67% interest .  

 And companies wi thin the EOH Group and companies 

wi thin the Regiments Group and the relat ionship between 

those companies and The City of  Johannesburg.  

 You furnished these two aff idavi ts to us.   You have a lso 10 

made a ser ies of  publ ic statements on these issues because 

they have been issues that  had been canvassed publ ic ly.  

 And I  would l ike to take you to  those statements and just  

to clar i fy that  you stand by what  you have said in those 

statements.  

 So i f  I  can ask you to go to – i t  is in Fi le 2 at  page 947.   

Somet ime ago,  I  th ink i t  was in 2018, there were art ic les 

publ ished by Ama(?) Bongani ,  ra is ing quest ions about  

Molelwane Consul t ing and Regiments.    

 And at  page 974,  you issued a response.   You d id not  20 

wri te a reply.   You issued a response at  page 947.   Can I  ask 

you to look at  that  and just  conf i rm to me that  you stand by 

the contents of  what you said in that  statement? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  large part .   Except  that  we should 

have said for some reason, which is what I  said in my 
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aff idavi t ,  that  for some reason the Molelwane Consul t ing was 

not  processed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry.   Your resignat ion f rom 

Molelwane Consul t ing was not  processed? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  as a holding member(?),  ja.   But  as an 

execut ive,  I  d id,  ja.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry.   As a holding member your 

res ignat ion was not  processed?   

MR MAKHUBO :    Was not  processed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    As an execut ive member. . .   I  10 

mean, i t  is a close corporat ion,  not  a company.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you seized having an execut ive 

ro le in Mole lwane Consul t ing.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And your interest  as a member 

ought  to have been.. .   Are you saying,  you gave up your 

interest  as a member? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  the issue here was that  we seized to 

be a member but  i t  was not  processed and then i t  carr ied on.    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So the CIPC cont inued to ref lect  

you as a member where i t  should not  have? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  le t  us not  blame the CIPC.   

Administ rat ively wi thin Molelwane, i t  – your wi thdrawal as a 
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member was not  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    I t  was not  processed,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  th ink that  is a point  that  you are 

making because there were,  in fact ,  four  statements that  you 

issued because i t  was a running story.    

 Can I  ask you to go to page 949,  where there was a 

second statement.   And again,  can I  ask you to take a look at  

that  second statement and conf i rm that  you stand by i ts 

contents? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I t  wi l l  be exact ly the same response that  I  10 

gave you the f i rst  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is subject  to the qual i f icat ion 

. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . that  you resigned your  

membership interest . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . . that  you – but  that  was not  

processed.   You stand by that? 

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    There is  then a thi rd statement  at  

page 951.   And there,  in fact ,  you make the point  about  your 

res ignat ion at  the foot  of  page 952.   Can I  ask you just  to  

read the whole of  that  th i rd  statement and then conf i rm that  

you stand by i t?  
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MR MAKHUBO :    I t  is a simi lar reply f rom quest ions f rom 

Mokopane(?).   I  kept  the same thing.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    And I  st i l l . . .   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  am not  suggest ing that  there is  

any inconsistency in your reply.   I  just  want you to conf i rm 

that  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.   Remember,  i t  was – these were 

quest ions f rom the newspaper.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  10 

MR MAKHUBO :    To mysel f .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    And I  was answer ing them in the manner 

that  I  was answer ing them for reasons best  known to mysel f  

as wel l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    So,  yes . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  there is nothing that  you want 

to correct  in there?  There is nothing that  was said there that  

was incorrect? 20 

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  no,  no.   I  am must  saying,  subject  to 

that  qual i f icat ion.   Yes,  the statement f rom Mokopane was – 

what I  made, i t  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   In fact ,  in the thi rd – i f  I  

understand you correct ly,  in the thi rd statement,  you do not  
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need that  qual i f icat ion because at  the foot  of  what is page 

952,  you say:  

“As stated previously,  I  tendered my resignat ion as 

a member of  Molelwane Consul t ing and other 

business interests. . . ”  

 Oh, no.   No.   The point  about  not  – the resignat ion not  

being processed, is not  in the statement.   I  am sorry.   I  take 

that  back.  

 There is a very short  fourth statement,  again answer ing 

speci f ic quest ions at  page 954.   There is  a lmost  noth ing said 10 

there but  can I  get  your conf i rmat ion that  you stand by what 

you said there? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    My learned junior makes a point  

that  you and I  are having a conversat ion.   We know what we 

are talk ing about but  the wor ld outs ide does not .    

 In due course,  I  am going ask you to explain your  

re lat ionship wi th  Molelwane and the relat ionship between 

Molelwane and Regiments and the EOH relat ionship to the 

extent  that  there was one.  20 

 But  for now, I  just  want to clar i fy what potent ia l  points of  

dispute are and what are not .   So before we get  into the 

detai ls of  your -  wel l ,  of  the relat ionship between Molelwane 

and Regiments.  

 Can I  ask you also to look at  a ser ies of  schedules that  
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had been prepared f rom bank t ransact ions by the 

Commission?    They start  at  page 985 of  that  f i le.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Did you say 985?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    985.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the f i rst  schedule on page 

985 is a schedule of  income that  f lowed f rom ei ther  

Regiments Fund Managers or Regiments Capi tal  into 

Molelwane Consul t ing.    

 You have had this document for some t ime.  I  just  want  10 

to know i f  there was anything on there that  you want to 

dispute? 

 I  am not  asking you to conf i rm the correctness of  that .   

The bank statements,  in due course,  wi l l  be. . .   Or,  in fact ,  

the bank statements are in th is bundle.  

 But  are there any i tems here that  you would l ike to  

correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  must  confess Chai rperson,  I . . .   I t  is 

correct  that  we have this document s ince last  week but  I  

have not  t icked the . . . [ indist inct ]  f igure,  cross-referencing to 20 

the . . . [ indist inct ]  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You have not  appl ied your mind? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  have not  gone through the. . . [ intervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The f igures.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  I  d id see the bank statements but  I  
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was looking at  the substance of  what was being said.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  for present  purposes,  you are 

not  disput ing the contents here?  I  am not  asking you to 

admit  them but  you are not  disput ing? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  have no reason to dispute them.  As I  

said,  I  have not  part icular ly looked at  whether they are 

correct  or not .   But ,  ja.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    They look correct .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And what that  schedule shows that  

over the per iod 2008 through to 2016, the total  amount 

received by Molelwane f rom Regiments was 

R 35 710 919,00.   I  am not  asking you to admit  that  f igure 

but  for  present  purposes,  I  just  want to clar i fy that  you are 

not  act ively disput ing i t .    

MR MAKHUBO :    Chairperson,  I  am not  sure what – I  do not  

dispute -  ver i fy. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    What the di fference is.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink f rom what you have said,  the 

posi t ion is,  as th ings stand,  you do not  have a reason to 

dispute these.   But  you reserve your r ight  because you have 

not  had – you did not  go through i tem-by- i tem.  

 You would l ike to be able to dispute,  i f  later  on,  you 
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th ink you have got  grounds to dispute.   Is that  r ight?  

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is r ight ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Can i t  be on 

the same basis?  Can we go to the table on page 988 which 

refers to t ransfers f rom Molelwane into your account over  the 

per iod 2011 to 2014?  I  want to emphasise th is.   I t  is f rom 

2011 to 2014 because there is a ful ler schedule la ter that  

goes pass 2014.  

 Again,  reserving your r ights at  a later stage to dispute i t  10 

i f  you f ind errors.   At  present ,  are you in a posi t ion to  

dispute that  th is  table is – that  th is schedule accurately 

ref lects those t ransfers? 

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  subject  to that  qual i f icat ion 

. . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Absolutely.   I  th ink we must just  

work on the basis that  you,  you know, i f  you come back later 

and i f  you pick up an error later,  you are a lways welcome to 

make that  correct ion.   And so let  us run. . .    

 And that  table ref lects payments f rom Molelwane to your  20 

personal  account over th is per iod,  the per iod of  2011 to 2014 

of  R 270 000,00.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then go to page 989?   

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And this table ref lects payments 

f rom Molelwane to the ANC and, I  am going to say a L ion’s 

organisat ion because I  see,  for  instance,  there is a donat ion 

to Posas(?) on one of  the l ine i tems.   

 Again,  are you in  a posi t ion – reserv ing your r ights to  

dispute later?  Would you accept  that  the provision – you 

accept  the correctness of  th is schedule? 

MR MAKHUBO :    As I  say,  i t  is subject  to . . . [ intervenes]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   I  am not  suggest ing 

. . . [ intervenes]   10 

MR MAKHUBO :    . . .more but  ja.   Subject  to . . . [ indist inct ]  

. . . [ intervenes]   

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the amounts of  those 

donat ions is R 654 564,00.   Then the next  – over the page, 

one sees a table. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Is that  at  990?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    990.   That  is correct  Chai r.   There 

were several  tab les.   The f i rst  table is a table of  cash 

deposi ts into Molelwane over the per iod 2009 to 2019.  And 20 

that  ref lects a total  of  R 592 000,00 over that  per iod.  

 Again,  are you in  a posi t ion to dispute – reserving your  

r ights to do so at  a later stage,  are you present ly in a 

posi t ion to dispute any of  these – the records on that  tab le? 

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  I  cannot even remember the,  but  ja.   I  
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cannot dispute i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  the next  two tables are – 

re late to TSS Management Services and ACSA.  I  am not  

going to be deal ing wi th them today.   So I  do not  – I  am not  

going to ask you to respond there.   I f  we do get  back to  

them, you wi l l  have an opportuni ty.  

 Then,  l ikewise,  i f  we go over the page to page 991.   

There is a table involving Patr ick Makhubedu and a table 

involving Zylek.    Again,  I  am not  going to ask you to 

respond to those.    10 

 But  can I  then ask you to  turn to the next  f i le,  Bundle 3?  

And go to page 847.    

MR MAKHUBO :    Okay.   What page again? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Page 847 in Bundle 3.  

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Chai r,  I  am not  sure i f  you 

have 847? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  do.   Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And on page 847,  there is a table 

that  has the heading Annexure A.   And that  looks a t  20 

t ransfers  in to  Mlo lwane f rom Reg iments  Fund Managers  or  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and t ransact ions ou t  o f  Mlo lwane w i th in  

a  per iod  o f  –  I  th ink  i t  was 10 days a f te r  the  t ransfe rs  in  

f rom Reg iments  Cap i ta l .  

 Aga in  –  or  Reg iments  Fund Managers  –  are  you a t  
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p resent  in  a  pos i t ion  to  d ispute  any o f  the  en t r ies  on  th is  

tab le?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  am unab le  to  –  I  cannot  d ispute  

because I  wou ld  no t  –  I  have not  gone th rough the  de ta i l s .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   I t  i s  a  tab le  tha t  runs f rom 

2011 to  February  2016,  i t  i s  per iod  2011 to  2016.   What  i t  

shows is  in  tha t  per iod  the  to ta l  in f lows f rom Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  and Reg iments  Fund Managers  were  18  871 570  

and the  ou t f lows tha t  a re  reco rded on the  tab le  are  

130 000 w i th  the  re ference ANC donat ion .   Amounts  tha t  10 

are  cashed i s  an  aggregate  amount  o f  850 000 and  

amounts  tha t  a re  t ransfer red  in to  your  persona l  accounts  

are  5  917 183.    

Can we then go  to  –  we can ignore  annexure  B  

because aga in  tha t  dea ls  w i th  Zy lek ,  Mr  Makhubedu and  

re la ted  organ isa t ions wh ich  we  are  no t  go ing  to  be  

concerned today but  annexure  C is  another  schedu le  tha t  I  

want  to  take  you to .   That  i s  an  ex t rac t  o f  a l l  t ransfers  f rom 

Mole lwane in to  –  f rom the  two accounts  o f  Mo le lwane in to  

your  persona l  accounts .   I t  goes down f rom 859 to  850 and 20 

i t  runs f rom 2011 th rough to  2020.   Can I  ask  aga in  i f  there  

i s  anyth ing  on  th is  tab le  tha t  you are  present ly  in  a 

pos i t ion  to  d ispute?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  have not  even looked a t  schedu le  bu t  I  

have no reason not  to  be l ieve  but  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  
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s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  a t  a  la te r  s tage you ident i f y  

e r ro rs  p lease fee l  f ree  to  come back to  us .  

   What  tha t  shows in  the  per iod  f rom November  2011 to  

January  2020 a  to ta l  amount  o f  R7 096 994 moved  out  o f  

Mo le lwane in to  your  account ,  you r  persona l  account .    

 I  th ink  a t  th is  po in t  i t  p robab ly  makes sense to 

come to  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mole lwane and  

Reg iments  Fund  Managers  and can you br ie f l y  te l l  the 

Cha i r  how Mole lwane and Reg imen ts  Fund Managers  came 10 

to  work  together?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i rperson,  as  I  say  in  my a f f idav i t  and 

in  the  s ta tements  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has re fer red  me to  

conf i rm be ing  asked f rom Amabhungane,  Mole lwane 

Consu l t ing  e f fec t i ve l y  s ta r ted  ’97  and by  1998 es tab l i shed  

i t  f rom scra tch  in  the  space o f  f inance,  account ing  and s ix  

years  la te r  we came together  w i th  a  person I  go t  to  know 

much,  much ea r l ie r  in  the  ‘80s,  execut ive  cha i rperson o f  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and I  do  say i t  in  my a f f idav i t ,  Mr  L i tha  

Nyhonyha who to ld  me tha t  they are  mov ing  in to  th is  space  20 

and we need to  exp lore  oppor tun i t ies  together,  he  is  

pu t t ing  together  a  team o f  h igh ly  sk i l led  ind iv idua ls  in  the  

fund management  s ide ,  s tock  brok ing ,  tha t  t ype o f  

bus iness wh ich  is  someth ing  tha t  I  thought  I  wanted to  

exp lore  and expand over  because  I  on ly  had sk i l l s  in  one  
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component  thereof  and tha t  was la te  2004 ear l y  2005 when 

we had th is  conversa t ion  and we o f  course  s ta r ted  to  look  

a t  oppor tun i t ies  espec ia l l y  in  t he  pub l i c  sec tor  and when 

the  RFP in i t ia l l y,  you know,  f i rs t  went  f rom RFI  i t  was  

re leased by  the  C i ty  then,  you know,  or  you r  thoughts  on  

tha t  redempt ion  fund came th rough.   Aga in  there  was a  

response,  th is  i s  our  th ink ing ,  so  the  d i f fe ren t  t ypes o f  

funds,  pass ive ,  ac t i ve  funds and how then do you dea l  w i th  

them.   

 And la te r  on  an  RFP was re leased by  the  C i ty.   We 10 

d id  our  b i t  in  con t r ibu t ing  to  the  responses.   But  as  a  smal l  

company w i th  no  –  no t  enough ba lance sheet  to  dea l  w i th  

the  i tems we came togethe r,  i t  was  eva lua ted and I  th ink  i t  

was awarded –  we thought  we d id  no t  have the  necessary  –  

some qua l i f y ing  papers  and we thought  i t  shou ld  no t  be  

par t  o f  the  main ,  the  main  tender.    

 They got  one  company to  dea l  w i th  the  

admin is t ra t ion  to  be  par t  o f  the  main  tender  tha t  w i l l ,  you  

know,  s t i l l  p layed our  ro le .   So when i t  was awarded we 

s tar ted  ta lk ing  bu t  we cou ld  no t  f ina l i se  the  memorandum 20 

o f  agreement  because the  pr ic ing  was not  c lea r  and tha t  i s  

how we came togethe r.  

 And then in  2005,  la te ,  we cou ld  no t  meet  to  s ign  

the  memorandum and ear ly  in  January  2006 we r i gh t  a t  the 

b ig  k i cko f f  o f  the  fund i t se l f ,  we came togethe r,  so  tha t  i s  –  
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and i t  i s  de ta i led  in  my a f f idav i t  what  we d id .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you and you ta lk  about  

the  memorandum of  agreement ,  can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 

712 o f  vo lume 2  and jus t  conf i rm tha t  tha t  was in  fac t  the 

memorandum of  agreement?  

MR MAKHUBO:    71…? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    712,  bu t  i t  i s  vo lume 2 ,  I  am not  

sure  i f  tha t  i s  vo lume 2  o r  3 .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Vo lume 2  and 3 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  712 there  i s  no  memorandum on mine,  10 

Mr  Chaska lson,  on  bund le  3  or  i s  i t  bund le  2  we  shou ld  

look  a t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  2 ,  bund le  2 ,  Cha i r,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So tha t  i s  the  memorandum of  

agreement  be tween you and Reg iments  Fund Managers  

and i f  you go down to  page 714,  c lause 2 .2 ,  the  ob l iga t ions 

o f  Mo le lwane are  se t  ou t  under  th is  cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  maybe le t  us  take  20 

the  tea  break now then you can go in to  more  issues.   I  

rea l i se  i t  i s  t ime fo r  the  tea  break.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  apo log ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  take  the  tea  break,  i t  i s  about  19  

m inutes  past  e leven,  we w i l l  resume a t  twenty  f i ve  to  
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twe lve .   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Makhubo,  

I  can I  ask  you go to  c lause 2 .2  o f  tha t  agreement  a t  page  

714 o f  bund le  2?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  am there .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     And does tha t  c lause accura te ly  

desc r ibe  the  ob l iga t ions tha t  Mo le lwane had in  te rms o f  i t s  10 

agreement  w i th  Reg iments  Fund  Managers  in  re la t ion  to  

th is  S ink ing  Fund  tender?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Th is  was  what  we ag reed on,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  i t  m igh t  be  he lp fu l  

fo r  e i ther  you or  Mr  Makhubo to  jus t  read tha t  paragraph so  

the  peop le  who a re  watch ing  can unders tand.   In  fu l l ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.   So i t  s ta tes  the  

fo l low ing and i t  is  se t t ing  ou t  the  ob l iga t ion .   Wel l ,  le t  us  

maybe s tar t  the  p rev ious page,  2 .1  says:  20 

“The respect ive  ro les  and respons ib i l i t i es  o f  the  

par t ies  in  te rms o f  th is  MOA are  as  de ta i led  be low. ”  

2 .2 ,  i t  says :  

“Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  rev iew and obta in  the  

de ta i led  unders tand ing  o f  the  contents  o f  the  RFP 
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and the  d isc losed  in fo rmat ion . ”  

So tha t  wou ld  be  the  RFP for  the  S ink ing  Fund cont rac t  

and the  in fo rmat ion  d i sc losed in  re la t ion  there to ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  accura te ,  the  in i t ia l  th ings  

tha t  we d id  in  2005,  2006,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     

“ Ident i f y  and pe r fo rm needs ana lys is  o f  CoJ i n  

te rms o f  the  RFP. ”  

And I  p resume tha t  wou ld  be  done in  advance o f  10 

submiss ion  o f  the  tender  because you are  go ing  to  ident i f y  

tha t  needs so  tha t  you tender  can match  those needs. ”  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  c la r i f y  in  the  RFQ,  yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     

“Rev iew and adv ise  on  the  des ign  o f  the  S ink ing  

Fund techn ica l  p roposa l  to  ensure  tha t  the  needs o f  

the  CoJ as  ou t l ined in  the  RFP are  met . ”  

And aga in  tha t  must  be  be fore  submiss ion  o f  the  b id  

because you are  look ing  –  you  are  t ry ing  to  re f ine  a  

techn ica l  p roposa l  to  t ry  to  w in  a  b id .  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     

“Rev iew b id  documenta t ion  and adv i se  on  re levant  

as  cons idered appropr ia te . ”  

Aga in ,  as  I  unders tand tha t ,  tha t  wou ld  be  pa r t  o f  pu t t ing  
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together  the  f ina l  b id  re f in ing  the  f ina l  b id ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     

Rev iew the  contents  o f  p resenta t ions tha t  may need 

to  be  prepared fo r  CoJ and adv ise  on  re levant  

aspects  as  cons idered appropr ia te . ”  

A re  those presenta t ions in  the  course  o f  the  b id  o r  in  

imp lementa t ion  i f  you  w in  the  b id?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  i f  the  presenta t ion  is  ca l led  to  come 

and c la r i f y  you r  b id  and bas i ca l l y  in  the  se tup  and a l l  tha t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  I  d id  no t  hear  you  second 

par t  o f  the  answer.  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  am jus t  say ing  in  the  se tup  i f  the  c l ien t  

wou ld  want  to  know what  the  s t ruc ture ,  the  func t iona l i t y  

because th is  was the  f i r s t  o f  i t s  k ind  in  tha t  t ype o f  an  

ac t ive  fund ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   And 2 .2 .6 :  

“ In  cons idered re levant ,  make presenta t ions jo in t l y  

w i th  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  to  CoJ as  may be requ i red . ”  

I s  tha t  aga in  presenta t ions to  a  b id  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee  20 

or  a  b id  eva lua t ion  commi t tee  

MR MAKHUBO:    Ja  and post ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And pos t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  i f  re levan t .   That  i s  why i t  says  

where  may be requ i red ,  whenever  they ca l l  you  fo r  a  
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p resenta t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Be fore  or  a f te r  awarded the  b id?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Say aga in?   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Be fore  or  a f te r  o r  bo th ,  awarded  

the  b id?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I t  wou ld  have been both  bu t  in  th is  case  

i t  wou ld  have been before .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you d id  no t  make 

presenta t ions a f te r  award  o f  the  b id?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then 2  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  we d id  no t  do  jo in t l y  because they  

sa id  where  re levant .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     

“Ma in ta in  an  ongo ing  bas is  a l l  s t ra teg ic  

re la t ionsh ips  w i th  CoJ before ,  dur ing  and a f te r  

comple t ion  o f  fund management  mandate  fo r  the  

mutua l  benef i t  o f  the  par t ies . ”  20 

And what  d id  tha t  contempla te?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  though we saw i t  was tha t  we need  

to  a t  a  s t ra teg ic  leve l  ensure  tha t  we unders tand the  c l ien t ,  

we unders tand the i r  needs,  we t ry  and grow the  fund,  we 

know the  fu tu re  needs or  fund ing  needs,  in f ras t ruc ture  
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needs,  e tce te ra ,  e tce tera  and jus t  genera l l y  know the  

c l ien t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say tha t  

th is  was the  on ly  ob l iga t ion  tha t  car r ied  on  a f te r  the  

successfu l  aware  o f  the  b id  tha t  i t  had ob l iga t ions tha t  you  

per fo rmed a f te r  aware  o f  the  b id?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  6  and 7  -   5 ,  6  and 7  were  meant  to  

–  when cons idered appropr ia te  5 ,  6  and 7  wou ld  have been  

the  ones tha t  wou ld  have had to  be  ac t ive  on .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  ea r l ie r  you sa id  the re  were  10 

not  any presenta t ions.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The 5  and 6  d id  no t  –  whereas  

there  may have been an ob l iga t ion  i t  was not  one tha t  you 

ever  pe r fo rmed a f te r  the  b id .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  there  was no presenta t ion  requ i red ,  

ja ,  a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   But  h is  main tenance o f  

s t ra teg ic  re la t ionsh ips ,  was tha t  someth ing  tha t  you d id  do  

a f te r  the  b id?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  ac t i ve l y  as  I  watched to  see what  

was go ing  on,  I  go t  in te res ted  in  the  fund ing  pat te rns  o f  

th is ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   And what  were  the  

payment  a r rangements  in  te rms o f  th is  cont rac t?  
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MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  the  f i rs t  i t  says  there  on  paragraph  

3 ,  i t  i s  a  s t ruc tur ing  fee  and  o f  course  the re  is  a  

management  fee  wh ich  i t  had sp l i t  and the  ou tper fo rmance 

fee  so  the  bu lk  o f  the  fees wou ld  f rom the  outpe r fo rmance 

tha t  we negot ia ted  up f ron t  w i th  Reg iments  bu t  the  f i rs t  

where  you wou ld  know how much  they are  because you 

wou ld  know the  fund is  under  management  bu t  

ou tper fo rmance fee ,  wh ich  i s  the  bu lk  o f  fees are  r i sk-

based and unknown,  tha t  i s  how th is  fund is  s t ruc tured or  

was s t ruc tu red.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  –  so  the  fee  s t ruc ture  

presupposes a  successfu l  b id .   I f  you  succeed you then get  

fees,  i f  you  do no t  succeed you do not  ge t  fees.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  the  3 .3  wh ich  is  ou tper fo rmance  

fees p resupposes tha t  what  the  C i ty  g ives  you  as  a  

benchmark ,  as  a  watermark ,  you wou ld  be  ab le  to  

ou tper fo rm,  so  you w i l l  per fo rm up to  what  they expect  as  a 

C i ty.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Mr  Makhubo,  I  th ink  we  

might  be  ta lk ing  past  each o ther  because I  am no t  a t  th is  20 

s tage ta lk ing  about  the  fee  s t ruc ture  in  the  u l t imate 

Reg iments ’ cont rac t  w i th  the  C i ty.   I  w i l l  ge t  there  bu t  now I  

am ta lk ing  about  your  a r rangement  w i th  Reg iments .    

MR MAKHUBO:    I t  depended on the i r  per fo rmance,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  no ,  no ,  no ,  i t  i s  no t  jus t  the  
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ou tper fo rmance,  even the  management  fee ,  i f  you  do not  

w in  the  b id  you get  no th ing  f rom Reg iments .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  suppose on  w inn ing  the  b id ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the  s t ruc ture  o f  you  –  we l l ,  

le t  us  s ta r t  a t  you d id  w in  the  b id ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  i s  i t  no t?   

Th is  consor t ium won the  b id .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  ar rangement  tha t  the 

consor t ium had w i th  the  C i t y  was tha t  the  C i ty  wou ld  pay 

the  consor t ium a  month l y  –  I  th ink  i t  was a  month ly  fund  10 

management  fee  wh ich  wou ld  be  dete rmined by  assets  

under  management ,  f i xed  percentage o f  assets  under  

management  wou ld  be  your  fee .   That  wou ld  be  the  fund 

management  fee ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  i t  i s  normal  in  the  indust ry.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  I  am not  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

MR MAKHUBO:    Every  fund  manager  ge ts  a  fund 

management  fee .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A percentage o f  funds  under  20 

management  and  then there  was  the  ou tper fo rmance fee 

and as  I  unders tand tha t ,  there  were  cer ta in  benchmarks  o r  

ta rge ts  tha t  were  se t  an  i t  i f  the  fund per fo rmed than those  

ta rge ts  a  cer ta in  percentage o f  the  marg in  above the  ta rge t  

wou ld  be  pa id  to  the  consor t ium,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  
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MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  i f  you  outpe r fo rm the  

benchmark  there  w i l l  be  a  sp l i t  the  C i ty  tak ing  l i ke  75% of  

the  ou tper fo rmance o f  tha t  p ropor t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  25% of  the  ove r  ta rge t  

ach ievement  goes to  the  fund manager  and 75 % s tays  w i th  

the  C i ty.    

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you do not  beat  the  ta rge t  10 

you get  no th ing .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes i f  you  do not  meet  the  ta rge t  o r  i f  you  

per fo rm a t  ta rge t  you get  no th ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Can I  ask  how the  

ou tper fo rmance fee  was s t ruc tured?  Was i t  s t ruc tu red on a  

quar te r l y  bas is?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  there  were  –  the  eva lua t ion  

happened on a  quar te r ly  bas is ,  pe r fo rmance over  a  quar te r  

and there  wou ld  be  the  r i sk  depar tment  o f  the  C i ty  and  

eva lua t ing  together  w i th  the  consor t ium and then they 20 

wou ld  agree look ing  a t  the  scr ip ts  and a l l  tha t ,  yes ,  i t  was 

quar te r ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And so  what  you wou ld  do  is  you  

wou ld  look a t  the  asset  va lue  a t  the  s ta r t  o f  the  quar te r,  

the  asset  va lue  –  the  to ta l  asset  va lue  a t  the  s ta r t  o f  the  
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qua r te r,  the  to ta l  asset  va lue  a t  the  end o f  the  quar te r  and 

i f  i t  had increased above a  ce r ta in  ta rge t  percentage you 

wou ld  look a t  tha t  marg in  above the  ta rge t  percentage and 

tu rn  i t  in to  a  number  and 25% wou ld  go  to  the  consor t ium,  

75% wou ld  s tay  w i th  the  C i ty,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    S imply  yes bu t  i t  i s  much more  complex  

than th is ,  th is  i s  an  asset  l iab i l i t y  ba lance so  remember  

even the  l iab i l i t i es  themse lves,  the  movement  [ inaud ib le  –  

speak ing  s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ja ,  ja ,  ca l l  i t  ne t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MR MAKHUBO:    So  tha t  when the  assets  themse lves have  

movement  so  you  look a t  the  ne t  movements .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    And you see the  va lue  o f  the  fund wou ld  

have inc reased o r  no t  and then a t  tha t  po in t  tha t  i s  when i t  

i s  de termined.   I f  the  va lue  o f  the  fund has not  inc reased 

by  more  than benchmark  then …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  jus t  ta lk ing ,  the  asset  was 

the  wrong te rm,  i t  i s  ne t  va lue  o f  the  fund.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Net  va lue  because i t  i s  an  asset  20 

l iab i l i t ies  mat te r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   But  can I  ask  th is ,  

assuming there  i s  a  market  c rash and the  va lue  o f  the  fund  

drops by  30% because the re  i s  a  market  c rash,  obv ious l y  

you w i l l  no t  ge t  an  ou tpe r fo rmance fee ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   
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Wel l ,  you  w i l l  no t  ge t  an  ou tper fo rmance fee  because the  

va lue  w i l l  go  down.  

MR MAKHUBO:    The outpe r fo rmance wou ld  be  the  fund  

per fo rming a t  above the  bo t tom mark  or  the  benchmarks  

g iven by  the  C i t y.   So there  is  an  open ing  ba lance,  the  

per fo rmance o f  th is  quar te r,  d r ive r  p lus  whatever.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    And then anyth ing  over  and above tha t .   

so  anyth ing  less  than tha t  watermark ,  tha t  benchmark ,  you 

get  no th ing .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  a f te r  the  crash,  you  are  now 

30% lower  than you were  in  the  prev ious quar te r,  i s  the  

benchmark  fo r  the  next  quar te r  tha t  30% lower  f igure  or  i s  

there  a  s t ruc tured benchmark  tha t  says -  we w i l l  look  a t  

what  wou ld  have happened on the  assumpt ion  tha t  you d id  

no t  lose  anyth ing  th is  month .  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  suppose la te r  in  the  eva lua t ing  the  

fund,  I  th ink  there  was adv i ce  f rom an aud i t ing  f i rm tha t  

dea l t  w i th  exact ly  tha t  because i t  was not  par t  o f  the  

cont rac t  to  say in  fu tu re  you mus t  look  a t  cap i ta l  e ros ion .   20 

That  d id  no t  happen,  by  the  way,  there  was no  cap i ta l  

e ros ion ,  a t  leas t  t i l l  tha t  t ime,  so  we must  look  a t  tha t  

c rash wh ich  w i l l  no t  on ly  dea l  w i th  the  re turns  bu t  w i l l  dea l  

w i th  the  cap i ta l  invested ,  i t  i s  a  30% crash in  the  market  

and how do you then have a  lower  base but  what  happens,  
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what  you have los t  in  be tween,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Exact ly  bu t  tha t  th is  o r ig ina l  

cont rac t  d id  no t  p rov ide  fo r  tha t .  

MR MAKHUBO:    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  there  was a  30% loss  one 

quar te r  and then market  read jus ted  and went  back to  there  

w i th  a  30  –  w i th  a  ga in  so  tha t  over  the  two quar te rs  i t  was 

net  zero ,  you wou ld  s t i l l  ge t  your  ou tper fo rmance on the  

30% ga ins  …[ in te rvenes]  

MR MAKHUBO:    I t  d id  no t  happen,  bu t  tha t  i s  how the  10 

s t ruc ture  –  tha t  i s  why la te r  on  you sa id  how do you c law –  

what  i s  the  c law back be tween what  you have los t  and 

where  the  base was before .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   And these amounts  tha t  we 

are  ta lk ing  about  a re  amounts  tha t  ge t  pa id  to  the 

consor t ium,  what  th is  ag reement  says,  w i th in  the  

consor t ium  those amounts  are  sp l i t  90% Reg iments ,  10% 

Mole lwane.  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  Mole lwane is  go ing  to  ge t  20 

10% of  the  management  fee ,  10% of  the  ou tper fo rmance  

fee  over  the  l i fe  o f  the  consor t ium’s  cont rac t  w i th  Jo ’burg .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Ja ,  fo r  f i ve  years ,  tha t  was the  l i fe  o f  the  

cont rac t ,  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    R igh t .   Now a t  the  t ime tha t  the 
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consor t ium conc luded th is  cont rac t  w i th  Jo ’bu rg  you were  

no t  in  po l i t i cs  –  sor ry,  no t  you were  no t  in  po l i t i cs ,  you  

were  no t  in  government ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  was an  ord ina ry  member  o f  the 

pub l i c  and an ent rep reneur  o f  s ix  years .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  I  wou ld  no t  ca l l  you  –  I  

wou ld  no t  suggest  you descr ibe  yourse l f  as  an  o rd inary  

member  o f  the  pub l i c  because you were  –  I  th ink  you were  

a l ready Treasurer  o f  the  reg ion ,  were  you not?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    When d id  you become Treasure r  

o f  the  reg ion?  

MR MAKHUBO:    2008.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    2008  and th i s  cont rac t  was 

awarded 2006.  

MR MAKHUBO:    ’05 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    2005?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I t  k icked o f f  January  2006.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    K icked  o f f  January  2006.   And 

in i t ia l l y  i t  was due to  run  fo r  f i ve  years .  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And te rm inate  and a t  the  end o f  

January  2011.  

MR MAKHUBO:    January  2011,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you f i rs t  went  in to 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 58 of 297 
 

government  a f te r  the  mun ic ipa l  e lec t ions was i t  May  2011? 

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  the  e lec t ions were  in  May  

2011.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  chrono logy has been 

qu i te  impor tan t  in  exp la in ing  your  response to  a l legat ions  

o f  a  conf l i c t  o f  i n te res t   because ,  as  I  unders tand your  

response in  your  var ious s ta tements  and maybe we  can go 

to  one,  maybe a t  page 947.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     O f  bund le  2 ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And what  i s  the  page number?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    947,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  I  can  read what  you say  

there ,  i t  i s  a  pa rag raph,  about  th ree  or  four  paragraphs  

down:  

“There  was never  a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  as  the  te rm  

o f  Mo le lwane ’s  agreement  w i th  Reg iments  on  the  

f i rs t  S ink ing  Fund wou ld  have lapsed in  January  

2011,  the  year  I  took  pub l i c  o f f i ce .   Mo le lwane  20 

Consu l t ing  d id  no t  cont inue prov id ing  serv i ces  to  

Reg iments  on  the  second cont rac t  as  i t  d id  no t  

par t i c i pa te  in  the  RFP. ”  

We are  ta lk ing  about  the  second cont rac t  there .  

“Fur ther  to  th i s  I  dec la red a l l  my  pr iva te  in te res ts  
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upon tak ing  pub l i c  o f f i ce  as  requ i red  by  law.   In  

add i t ion  to  th is  I  subsequent ly  res igned as  a  

member  o f  Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  and d i rec tor  o f  a l l  

o ther  compan ies  in  November  2011.   Th is  was in  

l ine  w i th  my dec i s ion  to  use my sk i l l s  as  a  pub l i c  

rep resenta t i ve .   I  a lso  made a  commi tment  to  the  

Mayor  o f  the  day and the  ANC when I  was appo in ted  

MMC tha t  I  w i l l  unwind my in te res ts  and res ign  a l l  

my d i rec torsh ips .   Po l i t i ca l  o f f i ce  bearers  are  by  law  

prec luded f rom par t i c ipa t ing  in  p rocurement  10 

processes hence  I  cou ld  no t  have  been invo lved in  

oversee ing  the  renewal  o f  the  S ink ing  Fund 

cont rac t . ”  

And then there  is  an  issue lower  down in  re la t ion  to  

Co lour f ie lds  tha t  we do not  need to  ge t  to .   

So wou ld  i t  be  fa i r  to  say –  we l l ,  le t  us  take  a  s tep  

back.   The cont rac t  was w i th  Reg iments  and the  C i ty ’s  

cont rac t  w i th  Reg iments  and Mole lwane was  due to 

te rm inate  in  January  2011.   D id  i t  te rm inate  in  January 

2011?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  i t  d id  no t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Why d id  i t  no t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    As  fa r  as  my reco l lec t ion  goes,  the  in i t ia l  

tender  was out  in  2010 and eve ryone responded,  the  one 

tha t  I  say  I  was  not  par t  o f ,  and what  I  was to ld  i s  tha t  
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when I  enqu i red  was tha t  the re  was mora tor ium p laced by  

the  then MEC on b ig  cont rac t s  be ing  awarded  before  

e lec t ions,  tha t  i s  what  I  –  there fore  then the  ex tens ion  

happened.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And so  the  ex is t ing  cont rac t  

wh ich  was essent ia l l y  be ing  run  by  Reg iments  bu t  in  te rms 

o f  wh ich  Mole lwane  was get t ing  10% of  the  revenue  

conta ined in to  2011.  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And how much longer  d id  tha t  10 

cont rac t  cont inue? 

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  i t  i s  common cause  tha t  i t  

con t inued t i l l  2015 because o f  an  in te rd i c t  on  the  second 

award  by  a  cer ta in  company.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  so  Reg iments  cont inued  

w i th  the  fund management  cont rac t  w i th  the  C i ty  a l l  the  

way th rough to  2015 and th rough tha t  per iod  the  10% 

cont inued to  be  pa id  to  Mole lwane.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  there  was  a  cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  

on  the  f i rs t  cont rac t  be tween Reg iments  Consu l t ing  and  20 

Mole lwane Consu l t ing  -  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  and Mole lwane 

Consu l t ing  so  as  the  month-on -month  ex tens ions went  –  

are  wa i t ing  fo r  t he  conc lus ion  o f  the  lega l  cha l lenge,  i t  

con t inued,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   And f rom May 2011,  as  I  
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unders tand i t ,  you  were  now a  counc i l lo r  in  Jo ’burg  and 

a lso  the  MMC for  f inance.  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And th is  cont rac t  wou ld  have  

fa l len  under  your  ju r i sd ic t ion  as  MMC for  f inance or  

po l i t i ca l  ove rs igh t  ju r i sd ic t ion ,  no t  a  hands-on 

admin is t ra t i ve  ju r i sd ic t ion .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  i t  was managed by  Treasury  wh ich  

was one o f  the  un i ts  in  f inance,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you were  po l i t i ca l l y  10 

respons ib le  fo r  oversee ing  tha t .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  genera l l y  I  do  no t  watch  the  

cont rac t ,  I  d id  no t  watch  the  con t rac ts  bu t  yes ,  wou ld  be  

get t ing  repor t s  on  per fo rmance and  a l l  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  there  had been suggest ions  

tha t  tha t  p resen ted a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  bu t  you have  

answered those suggest ions in  your  s ta tement  and can I  

pu t  to  you how I  unders tand your  answer  and i f  I  have got  

i t  wrong p lease cor rec t  me.   I t  seems to  me tha t  you had –  

tha t  there  are  rea l l y  two par ts  to  your  s ta tement  –  to  your  20 

exp lanat ion  as  to  why there  was not  a  conf l i c t .  

 The f i rs t  was tha t  you had res igned f rom Mole lwane  

Consu l t ing ,  a l though tha t  res ignat ion  fo r  reasons,  tha t  we 

do not  need to  go  in to  a t  p resent ,  was not  p rocessed.  

 The second par t  you say is  tha t  –  and in  any event ,  
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counc i l lo rs ,  po l i t ica l  o f f i c ia ls  do  no t  have invo lvement  in  

p rocu rement  i ssues so  there  wou ld  no t  have been a  conf l i c t  

there .   Have I  go t  you r  exp lanat ion  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  w i l l  exp la in  the  f i rs t  one,  Cha i rpe rson.   I  

suppose one o f  the  ways you obv ia te  a  conf l i c t  i s  to  

dec la re  your  in te res ts  and two,  i f  there  i s  any dec is ion  tha t  

a f fec ts  you a t  tha t  t ime you w i l l  excuse yourse l f ,  tha t  i s  

one.  

 Two,  i s  tha t  we –  yes,  I  wou ld  be  -  code o f  conduct  

p rec ludes anybody tha t  i s  an  o f f i ce  beare r  f rom 10 

par t i c i pa t ing  in  any p rocurement .   I  th ink  the  MFMA does  

tha t .    

 A (P ty)  L td  i s  qu i te  eas ie r  to  dea l  w i th  because you 

can res ign  your  d i rec torsh ip  and keep your  shareho lders ,  

can remain  a  shareho lde r.   Wi th  a  CC i t  i s  no t  tha t  easy 

because when you res ign  your  membersh ip  even fo r  –  i t  i s  

l i ke  a  par tne rsh ip ,  you fo rego your  member ’s  in te res t ,  you 

fo rego your  share  wh ich  is  why then you can cease to  be  a  

very  ac t i ve  member  o f  a  CC and then I  suspect  –  I  do  no t  

have –  tha t  wou ld  have been the  compl ica t ion .   So tha t  i s  20 

how I  exp la ined and I  th ink  what  the  issue is  here  fo r  me,  

Cha i rperson,  my responses here  are  no t  –  you do not  even  

have the  quest ions to  say what  were  the  quest ions .   They  

jus t  posted  the  responses because i t  wou ld  have been  

in te res t ing  bu t  yes ,  th is  was my response.  
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 Two quest ions f rom Amabhungane and I  was 

answer ing  a  newspaper  a r t i c le ,  Amabhungane.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  can  I  jus t  c la r i f y  what  you  

–  I  mean,  one o f  you r  answers  was I  had res igned but  my 

res ignat ion  was not  p rocessed,  was not  re f lec ted  a t  CIPC,  

i f  I  unders tand you cor rec t l y,  i t  d id  no t  ge t  to  CIPC to  be  

re f lec ted .  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   So I  p resume tha t  what  you 

mean there  is  tha t  what  you in tended to  do  is  to  d ives t  10 

yourse l f  o f  you r  in te res t  as  a  member  in  Mole lwane CC.   

MR MAKHUBO:    Qu i te  cor rec t  tha t  a t  the  end  o f  the  

cont rac ts  wh ich  bas i ca l l y  wou ld  have ended  around 

February  or  so ,  2012,  I  wanted to  d ives t  myse l f ,  in i t ia l  

in ten t ion ,  bu t  i t  was never  to  be .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  you say i t  was never  to  

be?   

MR MAKHUBO:    I  d id  no t  happen.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  i t  no t  happen because you  

d id  no t  imp lement  your  in ten t ion  or  because you t r ied  to  20 

imp lement  your  i n ten t ion  bu t  somewhere  a long the  l ine  i t  

d id  no t  ge t  to  CIPC? 

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i rpe rson,  the  in ten t ion  was not  

imp lemented,  so  i t  con t inued.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no ,  bu t  d id  you sub jec t i ve ly  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 64 of 297 
 

th ink  tha t  you had d ivested  yourse l f  o f  your  in te res t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I f  you  look a t  the  emai ls ,  I  knew tha t  i t  

was not  done.   Of  course  I  d id  ask  the  person who was 

dea l ing  w i th  i t  v ia  emai l  and asked them i f  i t  was d ives ted  

and they to ld  me s tor ies  and then i t  d id  no t  happen.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  tha t  –  tha t  re la tes  to  

how th ings are  re f lec ted  a t  CIPC,  sub…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe,  Mr  Chaska lson,  maybe we  

shou ld  go  back to  p rec i se l y  wha t  you d id  and p rec i se l y  

what  you r  unders tand ing  was o f  what  was supposed to  10 

happen i f  you were  to  res ign .   So,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  you  

s igned a  le t te r  o f  res ignat ion ,  i s  that  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  sa id  to  a  person tha t  –  yes,  we  

s igned a  reso lu t i on  and sa id  look,  le t  us  d ives t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  was the re  a  le t te r  o f  res ignat ion  

or  a  reso lu t ion?  Or  a  reso lu t ion  o f  the  CC? 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   And what  was your  unders tand ing  

o f  what  shou ld  happen fo r  the  res ignat ion  to  take  e f fec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  I  had asked a  person w i th in  20 

Mole lwane who  subsequent ly  appo in ted  somebody to  

p rocess.   My unders tand ing  a t  tha t  po in t  was I  wou ld  

res ign  bu t  wou ld  then s ta r t  va lu ing  and see ing  what  s tood 

to  Mole lwane,  a  company tha t  I  had worked fo r  fo r  e leven  

years  and bu i l t  f rom scra tch ,  how do I  ge t  back my  sweat  
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cap i ta l ,  how do I  ge t  whatever  i s  due to  me but  –  and then  

over  t ime wou ld  unwind i t  bu t  the  issue was I  cou ld  no t  

leave and say what  i s  due to  me i s  no t  there  because I  was 

bu i ld ing  wea l th ,  I  was not  bu i ld ing  –  I  was not  jus t  work ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now –  so  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  te l l  me s tep-

by-s tep  what  you r  unders tand ing  was o f  what  needed to  be  

done and who needed to  do  i t  in  o rder  fo r  the  res ignat ion  

to  take  e f fec t .    Now i f  you are  ta lk ing  about  an  employee 10 

in  a  company,  when you want  to  res ign  you might  do  a  

le t te r,  s ign  i t ,  hand i t  over  to  your  employer  and then you 

know tha t  tha t  res ignat ion  happens.   So tha t  i s  what  I  am 

look ing  fo r.   In  te rms o f  th is  res ignat ion ,  what  was your  

unders tand ing  o f  the  va r ious s teps  tha t  needed to  be  done 

fo r  i t  to  be  e f fec t i ve?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i rpe rson ,  I  was ac t ive  in  four  

compan ies  –  we l l ,  th ree  compan ies  and a  CC.   I  fo l lowed  

the  same process.   I  sa id  to  th is  person who was  he lp ing  

me p lease get  somebody to  res ign  my d i rec to rsh ips  in  20 

Mole lwane Ho ld ings,  in  Acso lve (?) ,  in  Present  Per fec t  

Investments  and  my membersh ip  and then they made us  

s ign  a  reso lu t ion .   I  expected them to  submi t  the  same to  

CIPC but  I  was very  fu l l  aware  tha t  w i th  a  CC you might  

take  a  b i t  o f  t ime to  s ta r t  unwind ing  espec ia l l y  i f  you  want  
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to  take  your  member ’s  in te res t  ou t  because you have to  

va lue  –  because member ’s  in te res t ,  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  

d i rec torsh ip ,  i t  i s  l inked to  your  shares in  the  company so  

you do not  jus t  leave and leave your  equ i ty  and equ i ty  in  

the  c lose  co rpora t ion .   That  par t  I  unders tood but  the  

in ten t ion  was to  ge t  r id  o f  the  67% and take the  money.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  I  be  cor rec t  in  say ing  what  you  

are  say ing  is  you unders tood tha t  there  needed to  be  a  

reso lu t ion  re f lec t ing  tha t  you were  res ign ing  bu t  tha t  the  

res ignat ion ,  as  fa r  as  you were  concerned,  was not  go ing  10 

to  take  e f fec t  un t i l  you  had c la r i f ied  cer ta in  i ssues such as  

what  happens to  your  f inanc ia l  and cap i ta l  and whatever,  

whatever,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR MAKHUBO:    I f  i t  was a  company I  wou ld  know tha t  I  

am se l l ing  th is  share ,  i t  i s  wor th  x  bu t  I  wou ld  have  

res igned a  d i rec tor.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  do  no t  have to  be  a  d i rec tor  to  be  a  20 

shareho lde r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Bu t  you have to  be  a  member  and a  

shareho lder  a t  the  same t ime in  a  c lose  corpora t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MR MAKHUBO:    I  suppose a t  tha t  t ime there  was even a  

rev iew the re  o f  the  Companies  Ac t  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  c lose  

corpo ra t ion  and issue,  tha t  i s  a lways a  p rob lem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   And a t  tha t  t ime o f  tha t  reso lu t ion  

o f  res ignat ion ,  were  you the  on ly  member  o f  the  CC? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  had 67% shares.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You had 67% shares and there  was one 

or  more  o ther  members?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  there  was one pe rson who jus t  he ld  

an  in te res t  there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank  you,  Mr  

Chaska lson,  I  hope tha t  has c la r i f ied  a  b i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thanks ,  Cha i r,  and maybe i f  we 

can jus t  c la r i f y  tha t  o ther  pe rson ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  i s  

F lo rence Mat laka la  Makhubo who is  your  mother.  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.   Now f rom your  

answers  to  the  Cha i r  I  unders tood  tha t  you were  want ing  to  

d ives t  yourse l f  o f  you r  in te res t  wh ich  wou ld  then comple te 

your  w i thdrawal  f rom Mole lwane.  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  a f te r  eva lua t ion ,  yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  what  s teps d id  you  take  to  

d ives t  yourse l f  o f  your  in te res t?   Who were  you go ing  to  

se l l  your  in te res t  to?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Qu i te  honest ly  we wanted to  shut  i t  down 
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and keep i t  dormant  because in i t ia l l y  I  d id  no t  know what  i s  

go ing  to  happen a f te r  f i ve  years ,  I  wanted to  go  back in to  

bus iness,  I  never  saw myse l f  as  a  caree r  –  what  I  am do ing  

now,  no t  see ing  myse l f  as  tha t  bu t  the  issue was ,  I  was  

cent ra l  to  the  bus iness and par t  o f  the  work  tha t  i t  d id  

bas ica l l y,  when the  cont rac ts  were  f in ished,  we thought  we 

wou ld  d i ves t .   So tha t  was the  in i t ia l  th ing ,  va lue ,  what  i s  

there ,  what  a re  the  ou ts tand ing  cont rac ts ,  how much  

present  va lue  can we get  f rom them,  i f  a t  a l l ,  and  then we 

d ivest .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  I  am not  sure  I  unders tand  

your  answer  because you sa id  you  had one idea o f  leav ing  

the  company dormant  and then I  p resume go ing  back to  

re jo in ,  i f  you  le f t  po l i t i cs  a t  a  la te r  s tage,  i s  tha t  what  you 

meant?  

MR MAKHUBO:    G ive  myse l f  op t ions Cha i r,  I  cou ld 

probab ly  go  to  Corpora te ,  I  do  no t  know I  jus t  wanted to  

g ive  myse l f  op t ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  what  were  you go ing  to  

leave do rmant?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    A l l  I  am say ing  is  tha t  when we say we 

d ive rse ,  shut  i t  down o r  leave i t  dormant  o r  -  bu t  

comple te l y  tha t  s tops opera t ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And your  in te res t  in  i t  wou ld  be  

what?  
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MR MAKHUBO:    Wou ld  be  what  i s  ou ts tand ing  and the  

va lue  o f  cont rac ts .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you wou ld  e i ther  I  p resume 

f ind  someone who is  go ing  to  buy tha t  in te res t  and then  

g ive  you va lue  fo r  i t ,  was tha t  an  op t ion?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  as  an  opt ion  or  whoever  you have  

got  a  cont rac t  w i th  you se l l  tha t  cont rac t ,  you see tha t  

cont rac t  w i th  somebody e lse  you  get  va lue ,  there  wou ld  

have been d i f fe ren t  op t ions tha t  we look a t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  s teps d id  you take  to  10 

exp lore  any o f  those opt ions,  can you descr ibe  tha t  to  us?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No I  had le f t  the  person w i th  i t  Mo le lwane  

Ho ld ings to  he lp ,  I  was more  focused on dea l ing  w i th  the  

b i l l i ng  prob lems in  the  c i t y  o f  Johannesburg .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  was tha t  person Mr  Ch ikan i?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So you le f t  i t  in  Mr  Ch ikan i  

hands as  to  what  was go ing  to  become o f  your  in te res t  in  

Mole lwane.    

MR MAKHUBO:    What  to  do  w i th  Mole lwane and  how to  20 

proceed and what  a re  the  s teps we  go ing  to  fo l low,  yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  d id  Mr  Ch ikan i  repor t  

to  you in  re la t ion  to  those s teps?  

MR MAKHUBO:    As  and when some cont rac t s  espec ia l l y  

the  Reg iments  one was cont inu ing  we cou ld  no t  f ind  the  
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lady  tha t  we gave power  o f  a t to rney to ,  hav ing  an  emai l  

say ing  th is  th ing  is  go ing  to  take  t ime to  happen and there  

is  an  emai l  p roo f  to  tha t .   So we jus t  looked a t  and sa id  l e t  

us  w ind  down whatever  we have  and i f  poss ib le  bu t  th is  

cont rac ts  cont inue jus t  cont inue them.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  can I  take  you to  a  document  

a t  page 946,  i s  tha t  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  was adopted to  

record  your  res ignat ion  f rom Mole lwane?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  reso lu t ion  tha t  we 

adv ised tha t  we s igned.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and i f  you go up a  page you 

w i l l  see  tha t  there  was due not ice  o f  a  mee t ing  o f  

Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  in  advance w i th  tha t  reso lu t i on  be ing  

adopted.   

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go up a  page fu r ther  

to  944 you w i l l  see  a  power  o f  a t to rney.   

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  one is  ac tua l l y  a  power  

o f  a t to rney g iven by  you and i f  you  go up to  page 943 there  20 

is  a  s im i la r  power  o f  a t to rney g i ven  by  your  mother.    

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  tha t  the  power  o f  a t to rney tha t  

you were  re fer r ing  to  ear l ie r?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And no  o ther  powers  o f  a t to rney  

o ther  than these two?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  pe rson who you were  

speak ing  to  i s  the  person who you asked to  ac t  on  th is  

power  o f  a t to rney  is  th is  Te leva l ie  Get rude Ra l ibekwa?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we go down to  your  power  

o f  a t to rney the  one tha t  you gave on page 944.   So spec ia l  

power  o f  a t to rney fo r  res ignat ion  o f  d i rec tors  o f  course  10 

there  are  no t  d i rec to rs  in  a  c lose  corpora t ion ,  were  you  

aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  I  was aware  and I  asked the  

second one is  th i s  what  we must  s ign  tha t  i s  what  I  go t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay but  le t  us  leave tha t  as ide  

fo r  a  moment  i t  says :  

“Spec ia l  power  o f  a t to rney.   I  the  unders igned 

Moloantoa Geoff rey  Makhubo be ing  a  d i rec to r  o f  

Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  do  hereby nominate  

const i tu te  and appo in t  Ms Ra l ibekwa,  her  ID,  w i t h  20 

fu l l  power  o f  subst i tu t ion  to  be  my lawfu l  agent  in  

my name p lace ins tead.   To  de l i ver  to  the  reg is t ra r  

o f  compan ies  the  or ig ina l  COR39 and or  any o ther  

documents  or  fo rm tha t  maybe requ i red  fo r  the  

appo in tment  o f  d i rec tors .   To  make  such amendment  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 72 of 297 
 

add i t iona l  a l te ra t ion  to  the  COR and such o ther  

documents  and fo rms wh ich  my  sa id  agent  may  

deem f i t  o r  wh ich  may be requ i red  by  the  reg is t ra r  

o f  compan ies  and to  in i t ia l  o r  s ign  as  maybe  

requ i red  ach o f  such amendments  add i t ions  or  

a l te ra t ions. ”  

Th is  was the  on ly  power  o f  a t to rney tha t  you gave?     

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  th i s  power  o f  a t to rney was  

rea l l y  enab l ing  Ms Ra l ibekwa to  go  to  the  CIPC and e f fec t  10 

whatever  changes were  necessary  to  re f lec t  your  

res ignat ion  as  a  member.    

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  was not  g iv ing  he r  any power  

o f  a t to rney to  d ispose o f  your  in te res t  o r  to  do  any th ing  in  

tha t  regard?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  your  exp lanat ion  as  I  

unders tood i t  ear l ie r  on  was tha t  tha t  i s  what  fa i led  to  

happen but  she d id  no t  ac t  on  th is  power  o f  a t to rney.   So 20 

she d id  no t  go  o f f  to  the  CIPC and say p lease remove Mr  

Makhubo as  member  o f  the  CC tha t  was the  p rob lem.     

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  what  happened yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  she had tha t  wou ld  have 

happened a t  the  CIPC.     
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MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Or  tha t  i s  what  you wanted to  

happen a t  the  CIPC.   

MR MAKHUBO:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  was she meant  to  go  there ,  as  she  

meant  to  do  tha t  as  ye t  o r  was she meant  to  wa i t  un t i l  a l l  

the  issues tha t  needed to  be  so r ted  ou t ,  were  sor ted  ou t .     

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  I  jus t  s igned th i s  to  say look we  

need to  e f fec t  th is  however  as  I  say  we needed to  va lue  

and do a l l  those sor t s  o f  th ings and see what  we can take  10 

out  in  the  company.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  i s  the  answer  to  the  quest ion  

whethe r  she was  meant  to  take  th is  res ignat ion  o r  send 

th is  res ignat ion ,  reso lu t ion  to  the  in te l lec tua l  p roper ty  

o f f i ce  be fore  those i ssues were  sor ted  ou t  o r  she was not  

meant  to  do  tha t  un t i l  those o ther  i ssues are  sor ted  ou t .       

MR MAKHUBO:    We d id  no t  spec i fy  on  tha t  p rocess Cha i r  

I  d id  no t  th ink  i t  was…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why d id  you not  know,  what  was your  

contempla t ion .   I f  you  found  out  the  day a f te r  the  20 

reso lu t ion  tha t  she had taken the  reso lu t ion  to  the  CIPC 

o f f i ce ,  what  wou ld  have been your  react ion  be fo re  th is  

o ther  i ssues were  sor ted  ou t?   

MR MAKHUBO:    I  suppose i t  wou ld  be  specu la t i ve  bu t  fo r  

me the  CC and i t s  employees were  s t i l l  peop le  I  know as 
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you  say so  the  w ind ing  down wou ld  no t  have  been – 

because the  100% de l ivery  back t rack  to  the  o ther  member  

acco rd ing  to  the  member ’s  in te res t  who cou ld  s t i l l  va lue  

and s t i l l  do  what  we wanted to  do .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the  CIPC wou ld  s t i l l  con t inue  

but  your  67% in te res t  wou ld  have gone away.    

MR MAKHUBO:    The way I  unders tand CC’s  i s  tha t  you r  

membersh ip  i s  l inked to  your  percentage shareho lder  tha t  

i s  how I  unders tand i t .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No tha t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  i f  your  

membersh ip  had been removed a t  CIPC then sudden ly  you  

wou ld  have los t  your  in te res t  in  Mole lwane is  tha t  no t  the  

case.    

MR MAKHUBO:    I  suppose we s t i l l  go t  i t  back in  te rms o f  

va lu ing  and c los ing  i t ,  ja  bu t  on  the  CIPC i t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  as  a  mat te r  o f  law when 

tha t  happened you wou ld  no  longer  have a  lega l  in te res t  on 

Mole lwane and i f  your  mother  a t  tha t  s tage fe l l  ou t  w i th  you  

and took the  a t t i tude tha t  she was go ing  to  keep a l l  o f  20 

Mole lwane fo r  assau l t  you wou ld  have no lega l  recourse .      

MR MAKHUBO:    Cor rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  you  want  tha t  to  happen? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you wanted to  re ta in  your  
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67% in teres t  un t i l  you  cou ld  have found some su i tab le  way 

o f  d ispos ing  i t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  wanted to  ge t  va lue  ou t  o f  what  I  

worked fo r.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes no  I  am not  suggest ing  tha t  

you d id  no t  work  fo r  i t .   Bu t  you d id  no t  want  to  g ive  up  

tha t  in te res t  you wanted to  hang onto  i t  un t i l  you  got  va lue  

fo r  i t .     

MR MAKHUBO:    I  wanted to  ge t  va lue  fo r  what  I  worked  

fo r  yes .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  so  the  fac t  tha t  you r  

res ignat ion  was not  re f lec ted  a t  CIPC maybe because Mrs  

Ra l ibekwa d id  no t  imp lement  he r  ins t ruc t ions bu t  as  a  

mat te r  o f  under ly ing  rea l i t y  you d id  no t  want  to  g ive  up  

your  67% in teres t  in  Mole lwane  unt i l  such t ime as  you  

rece ived va lue  fo r  i t .   

MR MAKHUBO:    In  rea l i t y  I  wanted va lue  ou t  o f  i t  and th i s  

power  o f  a t to rney meant  exact ly  what  i t  meant  i t  d id  no t  

add on i t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    But  the  po in t  i s  tha t  i f  you  d id  20 

no t  ge t  va lue  fo r  your  67% you were  no t  in tend ing  to  g ive  

up  tha t  67%,  is  tha t  no t  r igh t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i rpe rson I  suppose my s ta tement  ve ry  

c lea r.   I  wanted to  ge t  va lue  ou t  o f  Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  

and th is  power  o f  a t to rney needed to  have ac ted  in  a  
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par t i cu la r  way whether  the  in ten t ion  or  no t  tha t  I  wanted to  

ho ld  on  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  cor rec t  I  sa id  I  wanted  to  ge t  

va lue  ou t  o f ,  I  was we igh ing  the  semant ics  I  wanted to  ho ld  

on  to  ge t  th is .     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  me t r y  and see i f  you  wou ld  

agree w i th  my fo rmula t ion  o f  what  you mean.   The one  

th ing  you were  c lear  about  you d id  no t  want  to  lose  your  –  

to  fo r fe i t  your  67% in teres t  whatever  happened you d id  no t  

want  to  fo r fe i t  tha t .      10 

MR MAKHUBO:    I  wanted va lue  fo r  i t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you wanted  –  i f  i t  went  to  somebody  

e lse  you wanted  to  ge t  the  f inanc ia l  equ iva len t  o f  i t  you  

wanted to  se l l  i t  o r  whatever.   You d id  no t  want  i t  to  go  to  

waste ,  you d id  no t  want  i t  to  be  acqu i red  by  somebody  

w i thout  you get t ing  anyth ing  fo r  i t .      

MR MAKHUBO:    I  d id  no t  want  to  g ive  i t  away fo r  f ree .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  you d id  no t  want  to  g ive  i t  away fo r  

f ree  yes,  yes  now tha t  i s  one th ing  tha t  i s  qu i te  c lea r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  and i f  res ign ing  your  membersh ip  o f  

the  CC was go ing  to  mean tha t  you g i ve  i t  up  fo r  f ree  then 

you d id  no t  want  tha t  res ignat ion .   You wanted the  

res ignat ion  to  happen a t  a  t ime when you wou ld  ge t  va lue  

fo r  your  67% in te res t .   
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MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  i t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  d ives t ing  i t  means 

I  wou ld  need to  d ives t  to  ge t  va lue  f rom the  company 

because l i ke  i t  happened in  the  o ther  one i f  i t  was tha t  I  

wou ld  s imp ly  res ign  my d i rec to rsh ip  and s t i l l  ho ld  on to  my 

share  the  ce r t i f i ca te  up  unt i l  I  can ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  bu t  in  

th is  case because they are  in te r tw ined maybe tha t  i s  when 

you w i l l  say  you w i l l  ho ld  on  to  your  in te res t  because they  

are  in te r tw ined.   That  i s  co r rec t  o r  cou ld  g ive  somebody 

and say look I  w i l l  pay  you in  fu tu re  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  bu t  

you are  co r rec t  say  e leven or  twe lve  years  o f  hardsh ip  and 10 

bu i ld ing  and work ing  fo r  me I  d id  no t  want  i t  to  go  to  

waste ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay Mr  Chaska lson.         

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  tha t  was the  case Mr  Makhubo 

so  long as  you had not  d isposed o f  tha t  in te res t ,  you had  

not  found someone to  g ive  you va lue  can you not  see tha t  

there  was a  po tent ia l  fo r  conf l i c t .   That  you had an 

in te res t ,  you had an ongo ing  in te res t  in  Mole lwane and you  

were  as  MMC pres id ing  over  a  cont rac t  wh ich  prov ided a  

very  s teady income s t ream to  Mole lwane.     20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Persona l l y  I  do  no t  p res ide  ove r  a  

cont rac t ,  second ly  a t  tha t  po in t  I  do  no t  see tha t  as  a  –  or  

as  a  conf l i c t .   I t  led  tha t  I  owned Mole lwane Consu l t ing  and 

I  wou ld  no t  do  anyth ing  to  benef i t  the  cont rac t  in  the  c i t y.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   To  benef i t  the  cont rac t  in  the  c i t y,  
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I  see  but  we w i l l  come to  tha t  a  l i t t le  b i t  la te r  bu t  I  want  to  

c la r i f y  a  –  I  wan t  you to  ge t  to  the  second ha l f  o f  your  

exp lanat ion  f i rs t .   We dea l t  w i th  your  in te res t  as  I  

unders tood the  second par t  o f  your  response  to  the  

quest ion  o f  conf l i c t  i s  tha t  you sa id  counc i l lo rs  do  no t  have  

say over  p rocurement  dec is ions so  there  cou ld  no t  be  a 

conf l i c t  there .   

MR MAKHUBO:    Counc i l lo rs  do  no t  par t i c i pa te  in  

spec i f i ca t ion ,  they do  not  par t i c i pa te  in  b id  eva lua t i on  they  

do  not  par t i c ipa te  in  execut ive  acqu is i t ion  commi t tee .   The  10 

on ly  t ime tha t  a  repor t  wou ld  come to  a  Mayora l  Commi t tee  

and counc i l  i s  when l i ke  the  bank ing  tender  tha t  goes more  

than th ree  years  and a  Sect ion  33  o f  the  MFMA wou ld  have 

been a  pub l i c  par t i c ipa t ion  fo r  comments  Nat iona l  

Treasury,  P rov inc ia l  Treasury  i s  to  be  in fo rmed o f  those  

responses to  a  cont rac t  go ing  beyond th ree  years .   That  i s  

the  on ly  t ime tha t  a  repor t  w i l l  come to  say we have done 

Sect ion  33  and Sect ion  33  has found noth ing  and we ag ree 

to  tha t ,  tha t  i s  ow ing.           

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  sav ing  the  Sect ion  33  20 

s i tua t ion  counc i l lo rs  do  no t  have any hands on invo lvement  

in  p rocu rement  dec i s ions.   

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  mean there  is  another  sect ion  I  

cannot  remember  whether  i t  was Sect ion  16  or  someth ing  

where  when you change the  mater ia l…[ in tervene]  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  cou ld  i t  be  43?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  cannot  remember  the  sect ion  we l l  le t  us 

say one chooses  the  amount  o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  then  

aga in  you go to  pub l i c ,  you ask  the  pub l i c  and then  

counc i l lo rs  ge t  to  be  to ld  tha t  the  pub l i c  have been  

consu l ted  and there  has been no  prob lem tha t  a re  those  

par t i c i pa t ions tha t  I  know o f .     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  now wh i le  you had th is  

in ten t ion  to  res ign  as  soon as  you cou ld  f ind  someone to  

g ive  you va lue  d id  you remove yourse l f  f rom act ive  10 

management  o f  the  a f fa i r s  o f  Mo le lwane?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  was not  on  a  day to  day bas is  bu t  I  

remained the  on ly  s ignatory.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you remained the  on ly  

s ignatory  in  Mole lwane ’s  account?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wou ld  no t  change,  ja  bu t  the re  was 

somebody dea l ing  w i th  the  on l ine  bank ing  th ing .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  so  a f te r  2011 no one o ther  

than you had author i t y  ove r  Mole lwane ’s  accounts  as  fa r  as  

FNB who ran  those accounts  was concerned? 20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  as  I  say  in te rna l l y  there  was 

somebody who used to  do  payments  and a l l  tha t  us ing  the  

on l ine  sys tem.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  u l t imate ly  you were  the  

on ly  one w i th  s ign ing  power?  
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MR MAKHUBO:    S ign ing  yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  take  you to  a  document  in  

tha t  regard  can you go to  vo lume 3  page 64.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  page 364  or?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  3  o f  page 64,  sor ry  about  

tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

MR MAKHUBO:    64  you say?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    64 ,  yes  th ree  dash s i x  four.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  do you recogn ise  tha t  

document  a t  Bund le  3  page 64?  I t  says  a t  the  f ron t  in  

contac t s  se t  up  screen.   

MR MAKHUBO:    I  see  my s ignature  bu t  I  cannot  remember  

what  i t  i s  a l l  abou t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  th is  i s  a  document  tha t  FNB 

i t  i s  an  in  contac t  se tup  sc reen wh ich  records  

au thor isa t ions and customer  de ta i l s  f rom FNB in  re la t ion  to  

i t s  cus tomers .   In  th is  case Mole lwane Consu l t ing  and in  

contac t  i s  the  fea ture  tha t  FNB has  where  they send you an 20 

SMS’s  in  re la t ion  to  your  t ransact ions.   You see your  

s ignature  down there  and the  da te  i s  20 /09 /2018,  13  

September  2018.   So as  la te  as  13  September  2018 tha t  i s  

a  good seven years  a f te r  you were  in tend ing  to  res ign  f rom 

Mole lwane you were  issu ing  ins t ruc t ions to  FNB in  re la t ion  
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to  the  Mole lwane Consu l t ing  account .            

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  the  account  i s  s t i l l  as  we speak 

under  my own pro f i le  my persona l  p ro f i le .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  under  your  pe rsona l  p ro f i le?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I t  i s  under  my pro f i le ,  yes  my FNB 

logg ing  pro f i le .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you have your  persona l  bank 

account  on  tha t  p ro f i le ,  you a l so  have Mole lwane?  

MR MAKHUBO:    They are  a l l  l i nked.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    They a l l  l i nked.   10 

MR MAKHUBO:    A t  some po in t  were  l inked when I  was a  

s ignatory  o f  the  ANC they a re  a l l  l i nked.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  th is  par t i cu la r  account  

i s  Mo le lwane ’s  account  and I  jus t  want  to  c la r i f y  w i th  you  

tha t  as  o f  September  2018 you were  s t i l l  the  so le  s ignatory  

on  the  Mole lwane  account  as  fa r  as  FNB was concerned.    

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    As  we s tand today are  you are  

you the  so le  s ignatory  on  the  Mole lwane account?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And do you p lay  a  ro le  in  

re la t ion  to  Mole lwane f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs  do  you admin is te r  

those a f fa i rs?   

MR MAKHUBO:    There  i s  very  l i t t le  happen ing  but  I  watch  

what  i s  happen ing  yes.   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And there  may be very  l i t t le  

happen ing  now but  f rom 2011 unt i l  the  s ta r t  o f  2016 there  

was a  cont rac t  w i th  Reg iments  fund managers  in  re la t ion  to  

management  o r  the  s ink ing  fund o f  the  c i t y  and I  imag ine  

qu i te  a  lo t  was happen ing ,  wou ld  you be keep ing  an eye on  

tha t?     

MR MAKHUBO:    To  see what  is  go ing  on ,  yes  tha t  i s  

cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You wou ld?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes and they wou ld  come and  te l l  me 10 

what  i s  go ing  on  as  we l l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  can I  take  you to  page 16 o f  

vo lume 3 .   A t  page 16 you see the  photocopy the  f ron t  and  

back o f  a  cash cheque drawn on Mole lwane Consu l t ing  fo r  

300 000,00.   So i t  i s  a  cash cheque fo r  300 000,00 dated 3  

August  2013 and on the  back there  is  in  handwr i t ing  w i th  a  

s tamp f rom FNB cheque conf i rmed w i th  Mr  Moloantoa  

Makhubo and then there  is  a  ce l l  phone number  and the 

t ime is  12 :23 ,  3  August  2013.   Can I  ask  i s  tha t  ce l l  phone 

number  -  we do not  need to  ment ion  i t  -  bu t  i s  tha t  your  20 

ce l l  phone number?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  my number,  yes .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And do you reca l l  au thor i s ing  

FNB to  pay R300 000,00 in  cash ou t  aga ins t  th is  cheque on 

Mole lwane Consu l t ing?  
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MR MAKHUBO:    I  cannot  remember  tha t  fa r  back about  

the  da te  o f  the  cheque on the  3 r d  o f  August  2013,  I  cannot .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  there  a  lo t  o f  cheques fo r  

300 000,00 cheques been cashed fo r  Mo le lwane  

Consu l t ing?  

MR MAKHUBO:    There  were  cheques,  tha t  i s  r igh t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no  I  am ta lk ing  about  

R300 000.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  I  canno t  say  a t  the  t ime even 

50 000 or  so  answer.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  wou ld  you accept  aga ins t  

th is  photocopy tha t  chances a re  tha t  FNB phoned you and  

conf i rmed w i th  you tha t  they cou ld  cash th i s  cheque o f  

R300 000 drawn on Mole lwane Consu l t ing  on  3  August  

2013?     

MR MAKHUBO:    Chances are  tha t  bu t  I  mean I  cannot  

ver i f y  tha t  they indeed ca l led  me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can  I  ask  what  Mo le lwane 

Consu l t ing  was do ing  tha t  needed  a  cheque fo r  R300 000 

to  be  cashed?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    I  cannot  remember  exact ly  what  th is  

cheque wou ld  have been fo r  bu t  as  I  say  in  my a f f idav i t  

tha t  wou ld  have been va r ious th ings where  we used cash 

or  to  ass i s t  members  o f  the  organ isa t ion ,  to  ass i s t  a l l  o ther  

peop le  ask ing  fo r  he lp .      
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  take  you down a  page,  

page 17 you w i l l  see  a  cheque on  the  24 th  o f  October  fo r  

200 000,00 a lso  cash and tha t  one has got  your  s ignature  

on  i t .    

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  wou ld  have s igned cheques  but  my  

deta i l  were  no t  r igh t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes and i f  we go to  the  next  

page 18 anothe r  one fo r  a  100 000 and th is  t ime in  March 

2014.   I s  tha t  you r  s ignature  on  the  cash cheque?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  was a  so le  s ignatory.   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now ear l ie r  you sa id  or  in  your  

a f f idav i t  you desc r ibed the  bus iness o f  Mo le lwane as  be ing  

in  the  account ing  space.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wha t  i s  a  bus iness  in  the  

account ing  space  do ing  tha t  requ i res  amounts  th is  la rge  to  

be  tu rned in to  cash?    

MR MAKHUBO:    As  I  sa id  Cha i r  I  wou ld  need to  th ink  bu t  

there  were  var ious th ings tha t  we wou ld  have done 

depend ing  on the  da te  when vo lun teers  ask  fo r  money I  20 

wou ld  he lp  f rom here  we wou ld  –  bu t  we wou ld  ass i s t  a  

who le  lo t  o f  peop le .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  me take you to  how you  

exp la ined th is  in  your  a f f idav i t .   I f  you  go to  vo lume 2  page 

423 a t  paragraph 62.    
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MR MAKHUBO:    Paragraph?  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say pa ragraph 62?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    62 .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  on  page 423.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    423.   

MR MAKHUBO:    423.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  you maybe in  the 

inco r rec t  f i l e ,  Bund le  2  so  i t  shou ld  be  two dash  four  to  

th ree  o f  no t  th ree  dash four  two th ree  but  i f  you  are  in  the  

r igh t .   So you were  asked to  answer  a  quest ion ;  cash  10 

cheque w i thdrawals  f rom the  FNB,  K i l la rney account  o f  

Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  aggregat ing  to  more  than 3 .5mi l l ion  

in  the  per iod  2009 to  2017.   Your  answer  was:  

“ I  have not  quant i f ied  the  amounts  o f  cash 

w i thdrawals  over  the  sa id  per iod  and my response  

there to  shou ld  no t  be  const rued as  an  admiss ion  o f  

the  a foresa id  amounts . ”    

Fa i r  enough.  

“However  any amount  i f  w i thdrawn was in  the  

course  o f  bus iness o f  Mo le lwane and wou ld  a lso  be  20 

w i thdrawals  fo r  persona l  expenses . ”  

So le t  me ask two separa te  quest ion  what  bus iness o f  

Mo le lwane wou ld  requ i re  Mole lwane to  cash a  cheque fo r  

R300 000?          

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r  I  must  say  we wou ld  ass i s t  as  
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Mo le lwane Consu l t ing  peop le  and there  is  no  – I  do  no t  say  

tha t  there  is  a  bus iness t ransact ion  tha t  we needed  but  we 

draw money and tha t  i s  fo r  the  peop le .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So Mo le lwane ass i s t  peop le  in  

the  course  o f  i t s  bus iness?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l  tha t  i s  what  we d id .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And  so  th is  300 000 was  

d ispersed to  ind iv idua ls  on  beha l f  o f  Mo le lwane? 

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l  i t  cou ld  be  or  ja  we l l  they  come to  

me and say look and then I  wou ld  ass is t  yes .   10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Persona l  expenses do you have 

any pe rsona l  expenses tha t  wou ld  ever  requ i re  you to  have  

cash in  hundreds and thousands o f  rands?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  pe r iod  you are  ta lk ing  about  there  

were  expense tha t  were  espec ia l l y  2013,  12 ,  2013 ja .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    13 /14  but  what  sor t  o f  persona l  

expense were  you pay ing  cash fo r  in  these amounts?   

MR MAKHUBO:    Furn i tu re ,  p romulgat ing  poo l  e tce tera .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you were  pay ing  cash fo r  

tha t?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  I  mean my b i l l  was to  pay h im cash.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay le t  us  –  tha t  was a  b i t  o f  a  

de tour  in  cash but  le t  us  back  to  the  conf l i c t .   As  I  

unders tand your  vers ion  you have cont inued to  p lay  an  

ac t ive  ro le  in  the  management  o f  Mo le lwane ’s  f inances  
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a f te r  2011.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?      

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l  I  con t inued to  watch  them,  ja .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You cont inued to  watch  them 

beyond watch ing  what  d id  you do or  beyond watch ing  and 

author ing  the  cash ing  o f  cheques f rom t ime to t ime and 

drawing cheques what  d id  you do?   

MR MAKHUBO:    What  d id  I?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  d id  you do  beyond 

watch ing?  

MR MAKHUBO:    How do you mean? 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  you sa id  you kept  an  eye  

on the  accounts .   

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes,  you jus t  see now tha t  they wou ld  

come to  me to  s ign  cheques.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Chaska lson may have meant  

whethe r  there  was any work  tha t  you d id  fo r  the  CC apar t  

f rom watch ing  we l l  he  m ight  no t  have meant  tha t  bu t  take  

the  quest ion  is  coming f rom me i f  he  d id  no t  mean tha t .      

MR MAKHUBO:    No I  d id  no t  work  fo r  the  CC.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id  no t  do  any work  fo r  the  CC? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  you g ive  any d i rec t ions to  

the  CC in  re la t ion  to  the  accounts?  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  co r rec t .   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  you were  s t i l l  i n  cont ro l  o f  

the  f inanc ia l  a f fa i rs  o f  the  CC?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Large ly  yes,  you  know they come to  me 

fo r  cer ta in  th ings bu t  opera t iona l l y  they ove rcame worse.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  And you could see f rom being in  

control  of  thei r  accounts that  the pr imary source of  revenue 

of  the CC cont inued to be the Regiment Fund Managers 

accounts.   Is that  not  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   We knew that  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Can I  take you now to 2015?   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Which bundle do you want us to go to Mr 

Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We wi l l  s t i l l  be in Bundle 2.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And ear l ier in your evidence you 

ment ioned Sect ion 33 of  the MFMA.  And Sect ion 33 of  

MFMA gives counci l  as a very important  role in  contracts 

which impose f inancial  obl igat ions on a municipal i ty of  more 

than three years.   Is that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Counci l  has an act ive role  in th is.  

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And I  presume the MMC for  f inance 

has a part icular ly  act ive role because the MMC for  f inance 

would have to assess any documents that  go before counci l  
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before they reach counci l  in rela t ion to cont racts of  th is 

nature.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes the department would ask the MMC to 

say we request  counci l  to approve a cont ract  for three years 

and then you wi l l  say yes let  us take i t  to counci l  but  i t  has 

got  no author i ty to  say so.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask you to go to page 492 of  

Bundle 2?  Are you there? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you conf i rm that  th is is an 10 

invoice that  Molelwane issued to Regiments Fund Managers 

on the 30 June 2015 for an amount of  R609 177.73 plus VAT 

giving a total  of  R694 462.61? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you go over the page at  

476 you wi l l  see a statement? 

MR MAKHUBO:   4  47? 

CHAIRPERSON:   493? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   476.  

MR MAKHUBO:   476.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   476.   I  am sorry I  am jumping 

around.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You said we go over the page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes i t  is over the page in my notes.   

I t  is not  over the page in anybody else’s notes I  apologise 
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for that .   476.   There is an end of  year statement for 2015 

f rom Molelwane a Regiments Fund Managers account.   Wi l l  

you conf i rm that  that  is correct  i t  is at  31 December 2015 

statement issued by Molelwane to Regiments Fund 

Managers? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Here is i t  here.   Ja I  mean they would have 

sent  i t  here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And that  – th is is a Molelwane 

statement is – can you conf i rm that? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes I  conf i rm i t  is but  I  … 10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  us look at  30 June 2015.   

There we see that  out  performance the invoice of  

R694 462.61 ref lected as a debi t  and at  that  point  Regiments 

Fund Managers balance – in other words what they owned t  

you at  Molelwane was R993 370.47,  is that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Wel l  I  see i t  here Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So Regiments Fund Managers 

owed Molelwane at  that  point  just  under a mi l l ion on 30 June 

2015.  

MR MAKHUBO:   I  am saying I  am seeing i t  here yes.   That  is  20 

correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You seeing i t  here wel l  you have 

no reason to doubt  that  that  is the – that  th is statement is  

accurate? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  us go to page 614 of  th is  

bundle?  And 614 i t  is a Ci ty  of  Johannesburg Mayoral  

Commit tee Report  or a report  that  served at  the Mayoral  

Commit tee on the 23 July 2015 and this in fact  is a  report  

under Sect ion 33 or to – to – for the purposes of  Sect ion 33 

of  the MFMA and the report  said:  

“That  the approval  of  the Port fo l io Management  Agreement 

for the appointment of  the Redempt ion Fund Asset  Managers 

a st rategic thrust  wel l  governed and managed ci ty object ive 

purpose of  th is report  is to obtain counci l  approval  to enter 10 

into the f ive year  Port fo l io Management Agreement  for the 

Ci ty ’s Redempt ion Fund now.”  

 So th is is f inal ly the contract  that  is  going to take the 

place of  that  old 2006 Regiments Fund Managers cont ract ,  is  

that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Say again.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Th is is the cont ract  that  is  going to  

take the place of  that  or ig inal  contract  f i rst  awarded to 

Molelwane and Regiments back in 2006? 

MR MAKHUBO:   [00:05:25]  the second one here.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then there is a bi t  of  a 

summary and at  3  and i t  says:  

“The requi red not ice of  advert  in  terms of  

Sect ion 33(1)A containing the informat ion 

was publ ished in local  and nat ional  
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newspapers.  Ci t ies projected f inancial  

obl igat ions referred to in Sect ion 33(1)B 1 

and 2 for  the f ive year  cont ract  was stated in 

the f inancial  impl icat ions.  Terms of  33(1)C 

City  needs to determine whether  i t  wi l l  

secure signi f icant  capi ta l  investment . ”  

 On and on i t  goes and there are legal  impl icat ions 

and f inancial  impl icat ions and i f  we come to the resolut ion at  

page 625 we see that  the Mayoral  Commit tee made a 

resolut ion that  the cont ract  and I tem 17 at tached hereto is 10 

Annexure C to manage the Ci ty ’s Redempt ion Fund between 

the Ci ty of  Joburg and Regiments Fund Managers is 

approved.   And that  the Ci ty Manager be author ised to sign 

the contract  referred to in  Annexure C on behal f  of  the Ci ty.   

Is that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes that  is  correct  to approve any per iod 

beyond three years.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:   That  goes to counci l  f rom there ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes do you recal l  who chaired this  20 

meet ing of  the Mayoral  Commit tee? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I  saw in the minutes that  I  chaired the f i rst  

part  and then the former Mayor Parks Tau checked the lat ter 

part .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes and – and where did th is i tem 
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fa l l  in? 

MR MAKHUBO:   When I  read these minutes because I  

cannot recal l  the Counci l lor Tau was chair ing the meet ing at  

that  t ime.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes did you part ic ipate in the 

meet ing at  that  t ime? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Sorry? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Did you part ic ipate in the meet ing at  that  

t ime? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I  would think I  was there but  I  cannot recal l  10 

what the – whether the i tem was approved or not .  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:   I  cannot recal l  but  I  was chai r ing the 

meet ing that  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you were not  chai r ing but  you 

were part  of  the Mayoral  Commit tee? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we then go forward to the 

counci l  meet ing of  the 30 July.   So that  recommendat ion 

f rom this Mayora l  Commit tee meet ing in which you 20 

part ic ipate goes to counci l  on 30 July.   Were you present  at  

counci l  at  30 July 2015? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I  t r ied to check the – what page is that? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry i t  is at  page 610.    

MR MAKHUBO:   I  cannot te l l  Chair  i f  I  would not  have – we 
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do not  have the – I  can go check i f  we do not  have the 

at tendance register.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.   Wel l  we wi l l  get  the 

at tendance register.   Can we just  go to the resolut ion?  That  

the resolut ion at  page 611 is that  the contract  hereto is 

Annexure C to manage the Ci ty ’s Redempt ion Fund between 

City of  Joburg and Regiments Fund Managers is approved.   

And the Ci ty Manager is author ised to sign the cont ract .   Do 

you remember that  resolut ion? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Wel l  I  see i t  here yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   So Regiments was having 

had the or ig inal  cont ract  f rom 2006 was then given the 

second contract  in 2015,  is that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes through the process of  the EOC and a l l  

that  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry through the process of? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Of  the EOC. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   What – the EOC. 

MR MAKHUBO:   Execut ive Opposi t ion’s Commit tee.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Execut ive yes but  because this  20 

was a Sect ion 33 contract  i t  was also a cont ract  that  went to  

counci l  and Mayoral  Commit tee? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes so i f  Mayoral  Commit tee said 

no i t  would not  – wel l  i f  Mayoral  Commit tee and counci l  said 
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no i t  would not  have gone through. 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And do you recal l  whether any of  

the bidders other  than Regiments Fund Managers were – 

made i t  through to round 2 of  th is ad judicat ion? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I  would not  know Chai r.   I  saw for the f i rst  

t ime in th is bundle the EOC report .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see.    

MR MAKHUBO:   For the f i rst  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  i t  would not  be the f i rst  t ime 10 

because you were at  the Mayoral  Commit tee meet ing that  

considered the report .  

MR MAKHUBO:   The EOC report  does not  serve at  Mayoral  

Commit tee.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  does not  serve at  Mayoral  

Commit tee.  

MR MAKHUBO:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  serves at  counci l .  

MR MAKHUBO:   No,  no even the EOC reports does not  

serve at  counci l .   They br ing a report  we wi l l  [00:09:49]  20 

recommendat ions.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   So Mayoral  Commit tee – so 

Mayoral  Commit tee and – and counci l  do not  even get  to see 

the EAC report .  

MR MAKHUBO:   No.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   They exercise thei r  own 

independent discret ion.  

MR MAKHUBO:   In the t ime I  have been a Mayoral  

Commit tee member no.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see but  Mayoral  Commit tee and 

counci l  must  exercise thei r  own independent discret ion in  

re lat ion to these decisions.   I t  is not  just  rubber stamping the 

EOC. 

MR MAKHUBO:   The report  you see is the report  that  gives a 

recommendat ion.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes but  the – my quest ion is does 

Mayoral  Commit tee and counci l  just  rubber stamp that  

recommendat ion or do they exercise an independent invest  – 

an independent discret ion? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Except  when there is a obl igat ion to the 

f inancial  obl igat ion on the si t t ing post  beyond three years 

which is what we concern ourselves wi th.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes so in th is case Mayoral  

Commit tee and counci l  had to look at  the matter wi th an 

independent discret ion is that  not  correct? 20 

MR MAKHUBO:   The discret ion of  whether three years or 

f ive years? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No a discret ion as to whether they 

are going to author ise the contract  to Regiments? 

MR MAKHUBO:   The discret ion whether i t  is three years or 
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f ive years that  is what [00:11:01] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  no  

MR MAKHUBO:   We do not  see Regiments or we – we do not  

do that .   At  least  I  do not  do that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  what you could say is we are 

not  going to give this to Regiments we – we have 

invest igated this  contract  we are not  sat isf ied that  

Regiments should do i t .   Go out  to tender again.  

MR MAKHUBO:   But  that  you can say go to tender again but  

general ly when they come and say you have done the whole 10 

process i t  has got  probi ty,  people looked at  i t  as being – so 

you bel ieve what  they say they have done because the 

Account ing Off icer is accountable at  the end of  the day.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes but  – wel l  we can have a legal  

debate inside the commission later.   I  am tel l ing that  at  legal  

level  the Mayoral  Commit tee and the counci l  have to  

exercise an independent discret ion in these cases.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Chairperson I  am sure discret ion is – yes 

we can say take this th ing back to tender I  suppose you 

ul t imately have to  say yes i t  is  f ive years or not  but  why you 20 

go to Sect ion 33 is because you are imposing a f inancial  

obl igat ion on the ci ty more than three years.   I f  i t  was less 

than three years i t  wi l l  not  even reach Mayoral  Commit tee.   

I f  i t  was less than years do not  reach Mayoral  Commit tee nor  

counci l .   So you only get  involved on that  per iod extension 
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anything that  is beyond three years.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now with  respect  – wi th respect  Mr 

Makhubo the legal  posi t ion is because binding the Ci ty to a 

commitment of  more than three years is suff ic ient ly 

important  to requi re the at tent ion of  the counci l .   The counci l  

must  look at  the obl igat ion that  the Ci ty is going to carry for 

three years and more and must decide whether  the Ci ty  

should carry that  obl igat ion.   I t  is not  an issue of  deciding 

wel l  we wi l l  only g ive three years.   The issue is  are we going 

to undertake this  obl igat ion to Regiments Fund Managers on 10 

this cont ract? 

MR MAKHUBO:   So your content ion Chai r  is that  the 

obl igat ion is not  the f inancial  obl igat ion over three years i t  is 

a f inancial  obl igat ion and the person that  i t  is going to.   Is  

that  what we [ ta lk ing over one another] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is – there is  an obl igat ion that  

the Ci ty wi l l  carry for a per iod of  f ive years on this 

recommendat ion.   Is the Ci ty  prepared to carry th is  

obl igat ion on that  cont ract?  Why the – the Sect ion requi res 

the whole contract  to be put  before the counci l .  20 

MR MAKHUBO:   The condi t ions of  the cont ract  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No in fact  the exact  cont ract  that  is 

going to be signed with Regiments is what the Sect ion 

requi res.  

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So the counci l  has to scrut in ize 

that  contract  and say do we want to bind the counci l  on that  

contract? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  is correct .   That  is correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And part  of  that  quest ion is do we 

want to bind on these terms to Regiments Cap – to  

Regiments Fund Managers for f ive years? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Wel l  I  would not  choose one over the other.   

I  am saying that  i t  says looked at  the condi t ions,  the 

f inancial  obl igat ions,  the whole cont ract  is there.   Yes we wi l l  10 

[?]  Regiments but  I  do not  th ink we can turn i t  back at  least  

in my experience never have been that  we do not  want th is 

bank we want th is bank,  we do not  want th is developer we 

want th is developer.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  you cannot say we do not  

want Regiments we want Colour Fie lds because the contract  

and the – has to  be advert ised to  the publ ic and the only 

contract  that  has been advert ised to the publ ic  is  the 

Regiments cont ract .   But  you can say we looked at  th is and 

we do not  want – we do not  want Regiments – we do not  20 

want to be in  th is  relat ionship wi th Regiments for f ive years.   

And in fact  your obl igat ion is to examine whether you want to  

incur th is ob l igat ion on behal f  of  the Ci ty to that  counter  

party.   

MR MAKHUBO:   Ja I  never looked at  i t  l ike that .   I  have 
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never looked at  i t  l ike that  that  I  can l ike the condi t ions and 

the money and the f inancial  obl igat ions and then would say 

just  because I  do not  l ike this person at  that  point  we do not .   

I  mean i t  has happened, banking,  many of  that  Sect ion 33’s 

we looked at .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  let  me – let  me g ive you an 

example.   You are aware – wel l  I  wi l l  get  to my example – let  

me get  to my example a l i t t le later let  me not  do i t  now.  I  – 

you part ic ipate in  the process that  awards this cont ract  to  

Regiments Fund Managers.  10 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes I  was in a – assumed that  I  was in the 

counci l  meet ing and a Mayoral  Commit tee that  t ime that  

approved that  –  the obl igat ion of  f ive years and the 

condi t ions of  the contract  going to  Regiments must  – must  

be approved.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Let  us then go to the 

si tuat ion in your pr ivate affai rs not  your counci l  affa i rs.   Can 

you turn to page 774?  Remember that  counci l  – the Mayoral  

Commit tee was 23 July,  the counci l  was 30 July.   Page 774 

is an extract  f rom Regiments bank statement.   And what we 20 

see is that  on the 28 August  less than a month af ter the 

counci l  approves Regiments pays Molelwane R799 197.00.   

Do you recal l  that  payment? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Wel l  I  see i t  here I  cannot say I  recal l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  maybe let  us go back to 492 
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which is that  end of  year.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Statement.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Statement.    

MR MAKHUBO:   4? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you see on 28 August  

MR MAKHUBO:   4 what?  Is i t  492 and i t  is not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja 492 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   492.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink Mr Chaskalson when you say 249.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh sorry Vol  – sorry Volume – 10 

Bundle 2,  492.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is bet ter that  way.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bundle 2,  492.  

MR MAKHUBO:   My 492 is a – is that  invoice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   492 is … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Is a statement not  an invoice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Statement.   Bundle 2? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   492 i f  you turn around the other  

page- the other side? 

MR MAKHUBO:   493.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  you look at  the – on the spine of  the 

bundle is i t  wr i t ten Flow of  Funds Bundle 02?  I f  you just  

look – I  just  want to make sure you are… 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes that  is. .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MR MAKHUBO:   02 I  am on FOF 02,  492.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay then you are – you must be on the 

r ight  page.   I  – does i t  not  look l ike your page Mr 

Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  show i t  towards me because Mr 

Chaskalson is looking at  the computer.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No,  no I  can – but  I  wi l l  see the 

same page there.   I t  looks a l i t t le bi t  shorter.   Wel l  let  me 

descr ibe to you what I  see on 492.   I t  is a statement that  we 10 

looked at  a short  whi le ago when I  pointed out  to you that  at  

30 June Regiments owed Molelwane R993 370.00.   Do you 

recal l  that? 

MR MAKHUBO:   That  statement – that  is correct  ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Wel l  the same statement – i t  

is the same document says that  af ter th is payment the 

amounts outstanding by Regiments had now dropped to only 

R101 000.00.   R101 925.  976 so this payment came in on the 

28 August  according to the statement and – and as of  the 28 

August  what had once been a balance of  just  under R1 20 

mi l l ion was now just  over a R100 000.00.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Chaskalson I  am not  sure.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Am I  looking at  – have I  got  the 

wrong document? 

CHAIRPERSON:   There are some th ings you are saying 
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which do not  appear on page 492.   Are you looking at  492 

too? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am looking at  my 492 i t  may be 

476.   I f  we – can we t ry 476?  Is the statement on 476? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes I  have got  476.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So th is is the end of  year  

statement of  2012 and can we – let  us just  rewind a l i t t le bi t .   

We looked at  30 June 2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  2012 or 2015 Mr Chaskalson? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   2015 Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   30 June 2015.  The outstanding 

balance that  Regiments owed Mole lwane was R993 370.47.   

There are then some movements on the account but  the 

biggest  is  a payment of  R799 197.00 on 28 August  less than 

a month af ter the resolut ion to reappoint  Regiments leaving 

a balance of  R101 925.00.   So in the per iod over which the 

Mayoral  Commit tee considered the Regiments renewal  

contract  and awarded – and the counci l  awarded i t  the 

outstanding – wel l  – a month before this the outstanding 20 

balance was R993 370.00 that  Regiments owed Molelwane 

and a month later  the outstanding balance was R101 925.00.   

Do you not  see the potent ia l  for an appearance of  a conf l ict  

of  interest  there? 

MR MAKHUBO:   The way I  see i t  here I  mean you are 
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winding down an exist ing cont ract  and t ransferr ing to the 

second one – monies outstanding again f inal ised.   I  real ly do 

not .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You had sent  – you had sent  an 

invoice at  the end of  June.  

MR MAKHUBO:   The – this part  I  was not  involved in but  

what I  can say is that  i t  makes sense to me that  the f i rst  

quarter payment that  comes at  the end of  June must  be 

bi l led.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes but  would i t  not  make sense 10 

for that  payment to be paid in July? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Chair  I  would not  – I  would not  – as I  say I  

would have assumed that  is the f i rst  quarter – I  do not  know 

the detai ls of  what – what the issue is but  when i t  gets paid 

July or June I  would not  answer for that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   R ight .   Wel l  let  us go on on the 

chronology.   We have – we have seen a payment f rom 

Regiments to Molelwane of  R799 197.00 on the 28 August .   

Can I  take you to Bundle 3 page 849?   

MR MAKHUBO:   I  am there.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  we go – just  hang on a 

minute.   I f  we go to the 29 August  2015 the day af ter  

Regiments pays Molelwane.  Can you go up to 29 August  

2015? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   This  is a  table of  payments that  go 

f rom Molelwane into your  personal  account.   And we see on 

29 August  2015 the day af ter Regiments pay Molelwane hal f  

a mi l l ion rands is t ransferred f rom Molelwane in to your 

personal  account.   Do you have a comment on that? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Without  having the detai ls big amounts 

would go to the cal l  account for her  interests in the same 

prof i le so that  is  – that  is that .   What – there is no other 

comment.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry big amounts go to the cal l  10 

account on the same prof i le.   So you are t reat ing the 

accounts of  Mole lwane as essent ia l ly interchangeable wi th 

your own personal  accounts? 

MR MAKHUBO:   No.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You moving R500 000.00 f rom an 

account in  the name of  Molelwane into an account in your  

personal  name.  

MR MAKHUBO:   Yes that  is what happened but  I  was not  

t reat ing them the same no.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry you are not  t reat ing them as 20 

the same? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  you have just  taken 

R500 000.00 that  belongs to Molelwane and you put  i t  in an 

account that  belongs to you.  
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MR MAKHUBO:   I  would have thought i t  went  i t  into the cal l  

account then you asked me to comment Chair  around this.   

As I  say I  am seeing this I  do not  have underly ing detai l  I  am 

assuming i t  is gone to a cal l  account.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry whose cal l  account?  Is i t  

your cal l  account – your personal  cal l  account or 

Molelwane’s? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I t  is in my name.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is in your name? 

MR MAKHUBO:   Ja.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   So R500 000.00 has gone out  

of  Molelwane’s account into your – an account in your name 

the day af ter Regiments has paid Molelwane R799 000.00 

which in turn is less than a month af ter you part ic ipated in a 

decision to  g ive Regiments a Fund Management contract  for 

the Ci ty for another f ive years.   Is that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO:   I  th ink the context  i t  not  correct .   Regiments 

owed Molelwane Consul t ing.   Regiments – Regiments Capi tal  

owed Molelwane Consul t ing the money that  was duly 

invoiced and paid.   So I  suppose what you are saying is  that  20 

what happens between Molelwane and mysel f  – I  do not  

know how i t  l inks to the counci l  decision.   They have got  no 

re lat ionship.   Not  at  a l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You say they have got  no 

re lat ionship.   Looking f rom the outs ide I  want to put  i t  to you 
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that  there is an appearance that  they may very wel l  have a 

re lat ionship at  least  in appearance.   But  they may very wel l  

have a relat ionship.  

MR MAKHUBO:   I t  is a very wrong appearance and i t  is  

incorrect .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you say i t  is incorrect .  

MR MAKHUBO:   I  maintain i t  is incorrect .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.   I  am – Chai r  I  see that  we 

have reached one o’clock.   There are some more quest ions 

that  I  want  to – to  pursue along this  l ine but… 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Would i t  be a convenient  t ime to 

take the lunch adjournment? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us talk about  that .   We have the other  

wi tness coming la ter on but  you – you know how you want to  

manage the t ime.  Do you propose that  we take the 

adjournment – the lunch adjournment now and you cont inue 

wi th Mr Makhubo at  two or did you want to cont inue a l i t t le 

bi t  or for  a  certain t ime and we – or what do you have in 

mind? 20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Chair  i f  we could cont inue for 

another hal f  hour now I  might  be able to  complete th is 

sect ion wi th Mr Makhubo and then we can come back.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   At  a later  stage.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Wel l  in terms of  the other wi tness 

maybe i t  is not  go ing to impact  much because I  – f rom what I  

understood f rom you yesterday we should be able to f in ish 

wi th him as wel l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes we certa inly  wi l l  be able to 

f in ish.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay maybe let  us take the lunch break,  

come back at  two you cont inue wi th Mr Makhubo and then 

maybe we f in ish wi th him at  hal f  past  two or thereabout – 

quarter  to  three and then when we are done with  him then 10 

we wi l l  – I  wi l l  hear the other wi tness.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  f ine? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  wonder i f  we might  not  not i fy –  

we wi l l  t ry to not i fy [?]  Ramosebudi  and his at torneys.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   To – to come later.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay al r ight .   A lr ight  we are going to 

adjourn for lunch we wi l l  come back at  two.   We adjourn.  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 20 

INQUIRY RESUMES :  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thank you,  Chai r.   Short ly before 

the break Mr Makhubo, we were looking at  a payment of  

R 799 000,00 that  went into Molelwane’s – the day before,  a  
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payment of  – f rom Regiments,  the day before,  a payment of  

R 500,000,00 went out  of  Molelwane into your personal  

account.  

 And your  answer to me was that  you would have moved 

i t  into the cal l  account to get  more interest .   That  you t reated 

the ca l l  account in your personal  name as a place where you 

could house Molelwane funds for get t ing bet ter interest .    

 Is that  a fa i r  answer – a fai r  summary of  your answer? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Chai r,  general ly,  that  would happen.  I  was 

saying that  you need more interest .   But  speci f ical ly  on th is 10 

one,  I  would have to check on which account  i t  went  to 

speci f ical ly.  

 However,  I  can indulge yoursel f  Chai r  that ,  even before 

we closed,  the chai r  t r ied – the counci l  t r ied to  misread the 

statement that  seven,  ninety-nine came as Regiments was 

owing Molelwane hundred thousand.   

 The statement does not  say that ,  the way I  read i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    That  is  not  what I  said at  al l .   I  

said af ter  the R 799 000 came,  what was lef t  owing was 

hundred thousand. 20 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.   So I  want to categorical ly state that  

al l  the monies that  f lew f rom Regiments Capi tal  to Molelwane 

Consul t ing were in relat ion to contract  that  was signed in  

2006.  

 No other cont ract  that  we were part  of .   We were not  
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part  to contract  number 2.   And that ,  g iv ing that  same 

contract  Chai r,  would have been through the processes that  

we descr ibed ear l ier.  

 And the award is  not  made by counci l .   The award is 

made by the EAC subject  to Sect ion 33,  that  i f  – i f  the 

Commission can hear  i t  on the record what Sect ion 33 

requi res of  counci l  to do.    

 I  th ink i t  w i l l  be qui te important  that  no monetary benef i t  

-  and I  had not  opportuni ty to inf luence because the EAC and 

Probi t (?) and al l  that .   Then those documents are al l  there.    10 

 The Commission would have wanted them.  I  mean, in  

the same way – EAC report  here says they worked through 

property.  

 So I  thought i t  is qui te important  that  we clar i fy that .   

But  everything else was in relat ion to cont ract  – contract  

number 1 and we had no opportuni ty to inf luence contract  

number 2.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  i f . . .   Wel l ,  you did have an 

opportuni ty to stop cont ract  number 2.    

MR MAKHUBO :    [ Ind ist inct ]  . . . [ intervenes]   20 

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .your mandate(?) is on the 

Mayoral  Commit tee and on the counci l .    

MR MAKHUBO :    Chai r,  I  say,  i f  you can read Sect ion 33,  

what counci l  and counci l  has to do.   And then maybe then,  I  
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would say I  had no opportuni ty to say:    

 Do not  award to Regiments because Regiments – awards 

of  cont racts are the pr ivy of  the ci ty(?) manager,  who is the 

account ing off icer.    

 And they are done subject  to the Speci f icat ion(?)  

Commit tee,  the Evaluat ion Commit tee,  the Execut ive 

Adjudicat ion Commit tee,  Probi ty and of  course,  the award by 

The City Manager.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  do not  th ink we need to debate 

the terms of  Sect ion 33 wi th you.   You have given us your 10 

view on Sect ion 33.   What Sect ion 33 actual ly requi res is a 

legal  issue which we can address later.   But  what I  

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do we have i t  at  hand?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  do have i t  at  hand Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Would you l ike me to read i t  into 

the record? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  maybe you could just  read i t ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  says the fol lowing Chair :  20 

“The municipal i ty  may enter into a contract  which 

would impose f inancial  ob l igat ions on the 

municipal i ty beyond the f inancia l  year but  i f  a 

contract  wi l l  impose f inancial  obl igat ions on the 

municipal i ty beyond the three years covered in the 
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annual  budget for  that  f inancial  year,  i t  may do so 

only i f :  

A:  

1.  The municipal  manager has at  least  60 days 

before the meet ing of  a municipal  counci l  at  

which the cont ract  is to be approved in  

accordance with Sect ion 21(a) of  the Munic ipal  

Systems Act ,  made publ ic the draf t  contract .  

2.  And then informat ion statement summarising 

the munic ipal i ty ’s obl igat ion in  terms of  the 10 

proposed cont ract .  

3.  Invi ted the local  community and other 

interested person to submit  to the municipal i ty  

comments or representat ions in respect  of  th is  

proposed cont ract .  

4,  As sol ic i ted the views and recommendat ions 

of  AA, the Nat ional  Treasury and the relevant  

Provincial  Treasury.  

5.  The Nat ional  Department responsib le for local  

government.  20 

6.  The contract  involves where CC is not  

appl icable. ”  

 B is crucial .    

“1.  The municipal i ty  is taken into account the 

municipal i ty ’s projected f inancial  obl igat ions in  
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terms of  the proposed cont ract  for each of  the 

f inancial  year covered by the contract .  

2.  The impact  of  those f inancial  obl igat ions and 

municipal  fees,  municipa l  tar i ffs and revenues.  

3.  Any comments or  representat ions on the 

proposed cont ract  received f rom the local  

community and other interested persons.  

4.  Any wri t ten views and recommendat ions on 

the proposed contract  by the Nat ional  Treasury,  

re levant  Provincial  Treasury and Nat ional  10 

Department  responsible for local  government  and 

any nat ional  department referred to in paragraph 

AA.”  

 And then C is – there is the provision that  invest  the 

power in the counci l .   C says:  

“The municipal  counci l  has adopted a resolut ion in 

which:  

1.  I t  determines that  the municipal i ty  wi l l  secure 

a sign i f icant  capi tal  investment or wi l l  der ive a 

signi f icant  f inancial  economical  f inancia l  benef i t  20 

f rom the cont ract .  

2.  I t  approves the ent i re cont ract  exact ly as i t  is  

to be executed.  

3.  I t  author ises the municipal  manager to sign 

the cont ract  on behal f  of  the municipal i ty. ”  
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 So the power to  conclude or not  to conclude these 

contracts is  qu i te  clear ly control led by the counci l  of  the 

municipal i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m, h’m.  Thank you.   Wel l ,  in fa i rness to  

Mr Makhubo.  Maybe you could put  that  last  proposi t ion and 

hear what he has to say.   What do you say Mr Makhubo to 

the . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  no,  no . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .posi t ion that  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  no,  no.   I  was responding to 10 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on.   Let  me f in ish f i rst .   

What do you say to Mr Chaskalson’s proposi t ion that  when 

he reads Sect ion 33,  i t  seems that  the f inal  decision,  

whether the – such a cont ract  should be concluded or not ,  

seems to lay wi th the counci l?  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes,  we say counci l  approves.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    But  exact ly why we have to do Sect ion 33,  

Sect ion 33(1).   Yes,  I  agree that  the counci l  approves.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    But  what I  was contending.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.  

MR MAKHUBO :    There was an ear l ier discussion that  we 

have the power to say no to Regiments or to whoever i t  is 
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awarded or to the bank or the f inancier.   So we do not  

award.  

 By the t ime the contract  comes to counci l ,  the award is  

al ready made.  What we are br inging is a counci l  – is a  

contract .   That  is how I  understand i t .   That  is  how I  

understood i t .   That  is how i t  has been operat ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Mr Chaskalson I  wi l l  leave i t  to you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Thanks,  Chai r.   I  mean, as a 

matter of  law, Mr Makhubo’s understanding is incorrect .   I  

can put  that  very f i rmly but  I  do not  want to debate law with 10 

Mr Makhubo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Makhubo, ear l ier I  took you to 

a schedule which showed that  in th is per iod f rom 

November 2011 when you were at tempt ing to resign f rom 

Molelwane, through to January 2020,  amounts of  R 7 mi l l ion 

or just  a l i t t le over R 7 mi l l ion were paid f rom Molelwane into 

your personal  account.   And you wi l l  recal l ,  you were not  

able to dispute that .    

MR MAKHUBO :    When you said no ver i fy.   Sorry,  no 20 

ver i fy ing.   I  said that  I  had not  ver i f ied but  i t  was not  in 

dispute.   So. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You wi l l  come back in due course 

to deal  wi th the EOH side of  the ev idence.   In between now 

and then,  i f  you have any dispute over  that  amount,  you wi l l  
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have the opportuni ty to raise i t .  

 But  wi l l  you accept  that  over the same period,  the 

pr imary source of  revenue into the Mole lwane account was 

the Regiments contract? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  wi l l  have to check that .   Maybe i t  was a 

larger one.   I f  you say pr imary means that .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    [ Ind ist inct ]   

[Part ies intervening each other – unclear]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Was there any other source of  10 

revenue into Mole lwane bigger than Regiments? 

MR MAKHUBO :    None that  I  can recal l .   I  was,  as I  say,  I  

d id not  check the docs.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  we actual ly went and looked 

at  the numbers and we saw that  in th is period the income 

from Mole lwane to Regiments page 985,  aggregated. . .   Let  

me just  get  the exact  f igure.    

 Wel l ,  that  f igure of  R 35 mi l l ion goes back to 2006.   Let  

me see i f  we have . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Where are you looking now 20 

Mr Chaskalson?  985?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    985,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  Bundle 2?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Of  Bundle 2,  indeed. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We do not  have a f igure for the 

per iod af ter 2011,  but  I  can say wi th considerable conf idence 

that  i t  is more than R 7 mi l l ion and I  can also put  to you that  

there was no remotely comparable source of  revenue into 

Molelwane, apart  f rom Regiments.  

 I f  you want to dispute that  once you have looked at  your  

bank statements in more deta i l ,  you wi l l  have the opportuni ty 

to do that  when you come back.  

 I  want  to take you now to an in terview you gave to 

Power FM short ly  before you became Execut ive Major.   And 10 

can we turn to page 941 of  the bundle? 

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you recal l  g iv ing an interview 

to Power FM short ly  before you – I  th ink i t  is 

3 December 2019. 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  have given many interviews.   I  might  

have.   I  stopped at  Jozi  FM, Tata FM.  I  gave many 

interviews.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    This was short ly before you were 

appointed Execut ive Mayor.   Can I  take you to l ine 12 on 20 

page 941? 

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The presenter says:    

“ I  am sorry to push you.   I t  is just  that  we are out  of  

t ime.  So I  am just  t ry ing to put ,  you know, just  
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encapsulate,  basical ly,  what  is that  you are saying 

that  is not  t rue?  That  I  resigned in  2019.   I  actual ly  

res igned on such and such a date. ”  

 Your answer is:  

“Ja.   I  resigned.   The f inal  resignat ion was around 

2013/2014. ”  

 Was that  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  cannot remember i f  I  said that  but  i f  you 

have seen the t ranscr ipts.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   10 

MR MAKHUBO :    I t  is not  correct .   That  is not  correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So i t  is not  correct?  So what you 

told Power FM short ly  before you were made Execut ive 

Mayor is not  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Chai r,  I  am reading this.   I  am not  even 

sure that  I  have said this to Power FM.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  i f  you want to hear the 

t ranscr ipt ,  we can give i t  to your at torneys.   You can come 

back.   Assume for present  purposes,  th is is an accurate 

t ranscr ipt .    20 

 I f  i t  is an accurate t ranscr ipt ,  is what you said there,  

correct  or incorrect? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Wel l ,  I  mean, i t  is qui te clear that  the dates 

are not  correct .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The dates are not  correct? 
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MR MAKHUBO :    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Why would you have told Power 

FM i t  is not  correct? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   I t  is important  to make i t  c lear 

in terms of  what is correct  and what is not  correct  when you 

mean what is wri t ten here is not  what you said.   Or when you 

say you accept  that  what is wri t ten here is what you said.   

But  what you said then was then correct .    

 So I  just  want to make sure that  we are al l  on the same 

page when you say i t  is not  correct ,  which one is i t?  10 

MR MAKHUBO :    Thank you,  Chai r.   I  say that  i f  i t  is indeed 

what I  said.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    What is wri t ten here is indeed what I  said,  

i t  is not  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay al r ight .  

MR MAKHUBO :    I  must  have been mistaken here.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You must have been mistaken? 

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we go a l i t t le bi t  lower down 

onto page.. .   Wel l ,  let  us cont inue.   The presenter then says:  

“Al r ight .   So the t ime you were already MMC at  the 

t ime you resigned?” 

 You say:  
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“Yes,  yes. ”  

 The presenter says:  

“Which means you cont inued to der ive benef i t  f rom a 

company doing business wi th The Ci ty?”  

 Your answer over the page on 942 was:  

“ I  d id not  der ive benef i t .   In fact ,  i f  any fees came – 

because the fees came, they went  into staff  and al l  

that .   I  d id not  der ive any benef i ts f rom that  t ime.  

I ,  Geoff  Makhubo,  did not . ”  

 I f  that  is what you said,  would that  have been t rue or 10 

false? 

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  no.   I  wi l l  have to be – that  wi l l  not  be 

t rue.   But  what is t rue here is that  I  d id not  get  undue 

benef i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  what is t rue here? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Is that  I  d id not  get  undue benef i t  f rom this  

contract .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Okay that  is not  what you said.  

MR MAKHUBO :    I  am just  saying,  i f  that  is what I  said.   But  

that  is what I  meant.   Effect ing. . .   Then I  do not  know the 20 

thing that . . .   Th is is the . . . [ ind ist inct ]  of  broadcast .   I  wonder 

what the issues are.   But  I  mean undue benef i t  here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You meant undue benef i t?  

MR MAKHUBO :    I f  th is is what I  sa id.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    “ I  d id  not  der ive any benef i t  f rom 
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that  t ime.  I ,  Geoff  Makhubo, did not . ”   How would that  be 

reconci lable wi th the not ion that  you d id get  a benef i t  but  i t  

is not  i t  is not  an undue benef i t?  

MR MAKHUBO :    Chai r,  I  have no idea but  what  I  am saying,  

I  meant here,  undue benef i t .   I  mean, I  was not  sure what  

th is interview has got  to do wi th th is.   But  undue benef i t  i t  

meant in the interview with the radio.  

CHAIRPERSON :    From what you are saying,  i t  seems to me 

that  your approach is that  i f  you received benef i ts,  there was 

nothing wrong with that  as long as i t  was not  undue benef i t .   10 

Is that  r ight?  

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is. . .   You know, i f  – as I  say Chair  – i f  

that  is the temperature at  that  t ime,  especial ly f rom the case 

– the issues that  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    The evidence leader is rais ing. . .  

MR MAKHUBO :    H’m? 

CHAIRPERSON :    The evidence leader is. . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    The evidence leader.   Yes.   No,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  ja.  

MR MAKHUBO :    The evidence leader started wi th – I  mean, 20 

he started wi th Ama Bongani  and my response to Ama 

Bongani .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR MAKHUBO :    And everyth ing – the threat  has always 

been what was said in the newspaper and the appl icat ions 
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made by Ama Bongani ,  which is. . .   So that  is  real ly what the 

response was here.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  But  you see,  in the t ranscr ipt ,  as I  

read i t .   I  do not  know i f  there is something that  I  have not  

picked up.   There is  no reference to undue benef i t .   There is  

reference to benef i t .   But  what you have,  in your response,  

emphasised is,  that  you meant to say,  you did not  receive 

any undue benef i t .    

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  am saying.   That  seems to suggest  10 

to me that  you do not  th ink there would have been any 

problem with receiving a benef i t  as long as i t  was not  an 

undue benef i t .    

 So that  is why I  am seeking to t ry and establ ish whether  

that  is the dist inct ion that  you want to make or you do not  

wish to make any dist inct ion.   You are just  saying,  you meant 

you did not  receive any undue benef i t .    

 Of  course,  the next  quest ion wi l l  be:   Did you receive 

benef i t  that  you regarded as due?  

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is the dist inct ion I  wanted to make.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  that  is the dist inct ion you wanted to 

make?  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And the importance of  the dist inct ion?  

What is the importance of  the dist inct ion?  
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MR MAKHUBO :    Wel l ,  i t  is very clear that  we had a running 

contract  and there were benef i ts.   That  is why I  am saying,  

they were not  undue.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes.    

MR MAKHUBO :    They are benef i ts(?).  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then go back to your f i rst  

statement to  Ama Bongani ,  at  page 974? 

MR MAKHUBO :    H’m.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  you go to the foot ,  the 10 

second last  paragraph – the thi rd last  paragraph.  

“There was never a conf l ict  of  interest  as the term of  

the Molelwane Agreement wi th Regiments on the 

f i rst  Sinking Fund would have lapsed in  

January 2011,  a year I  took Publ ic Off ice.  

Molelwane Consul t ing did not  cont inue providing  

serv ices to Regiments on the second cont ract  as i t  

d id not  part ic ipate in the RFP.  

Further to th is,  I  declared al l  my pr ivate business 

interest  upon tak ing Publ ic  Off ice as required by 20 

law.  

In addi t ion to th is,  I  subsequent ly  resigned as a 

member of  Mole lwane Consul t ing and di rector of  al l  

other companies in November 2011.  

This was in l ine wi th my decision to  use my ski l ls as 
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a publ ic representat ive.  

I  a lso made a commitment to the Mayor of  the 

. . . [ indist inct ]  ANC when I  was appointed MMC that  I  

unwind(?) my interest  and resign al l  my 

di rectorships. ”  

 This was a statement you gave in 2018.  I  want  to put  i t  

to you that  i t  is mater ia l ly misleading.    

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    In 2018,  you were st i l l  control l ing 

the f inancial  affa i rs of  Molelwane Consul t ing.   Is  that  not  10 

correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  thought we have canvassed that  I  agreed 

that  the resignat ion did not  happen.   And we have 

canvassed, yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So . . . [ intervenes]   

MR MAKHUBO :    So i t  is not  misleading.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  there is a di f ference 

between a technical  def ic iency and a resignat ion not  being 

registered at  CIPC.  And a mater ia l  non-resignat ion.   

Because what you were doing in 2018, was cont inuing to run 20 

the f inancial  affa i rs of  Molelwane.  Is that  not  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  d id  say at  the beginning of  the 

engagement that  whatever was due that  I  have worked for,  in 

my view,  the equi ty would have been withdrawn.  So I  had 

not  mislead anyone.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Let  us read that  sentence again.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry.   You wi l l  remember to face this 

side so that  I  can hear you.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Sorry.   Sorry,  Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  ja,  ja.   Yes,  okay.   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  nobody reading this s tatement 

that  you gave to a response to an al legat ion of  conf l ict  of  

interest ,  would know that  you had retained your equi ty in  

Molelwane Consul t ing.   I t  is – the of  th is statement is exact ly 

the opposi te of  that .    10 

MR MAKHUBO :    Hence I  said when you started that  i t  is  a  

pi ty that  you did not  look at  the quest ions,  one,  two.   I  was 

answering in the best  way that  my advisors gave me.  And 

three was that  at  that  t ime you(?)  did not  even know what 

the al legat ions come from in the f loor(?).   So this and what I  

was referr ing to ear l ier on,  I  . . . [ ind ist inct ]   So I  do not  agree 

wi th you.  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe let  us take th is at  the same page 

947,  the second paragraph f rom the end.   You say:  20 

In addi t ion to th is,  I  subsequent ly  resigned as a 

member of  Mole lwane Consul t ing and di rector of  al l  

other companies in November 2011.  

This was in l ine wi th my decision to  use my ski l ls as 

a publ ic representat ive.”  
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 B lah-blah-blah.   By 2018, you would have known that  the 

res ignat ion had not  happened al though there was a 

resolut ion,  is i t  not? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Correct ,  Chai r.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Which is why in the beginning,  I  qual i f ied.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    I  th ink the evidence leader deal t  wi th th is 

matter r ight  at  the beginning of  the. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR MAKHUBO :    And I  qual i f ied i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    That  point ,  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  but  what  I  am saying is.   I  can 

understand a si tuat ion where you had taken the steps that 

you bel ieved were necessary in order to effect  a resignat ion,  

l ike signing the resolut ion or s igning the let ter of  resignat ion 

and asking somebody to send the le t ter off .  

 And for some t ime af ter that ,  you do not  know that  that  

person did not  actual ly sent  the let ter off .   So you th ink you 20 

had resigned.    

 But  by 2018, I  take i t  that  you knew that  the res ignat ion 

had not  happened.  You had signed but  i t  had not  happened.   

So the quest ion would ar ise,  how you would say in 2018 you 

did resign in ci rcumstances where one expects that  you know 
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that  the resignat ion resolut ion was not  acted upon.  

 You understand where my concern is?  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.   Chai r  is asking about my knowledge 

at  the t ime and I  was responding to  Ama Bongani .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja in 2018.  

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is basical ly what DCJ is asking me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    And Chai r,  I  must  say.   What I  –  when I  

want to engage when the quest ions came in and I  gave to 

the team.  What I  do not  deny is that  the f inancial  affa i rs  10 

was,  I  was st i l l  in the ownership . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    But  when I  asked the team about where is 

the process and how is the process.   And they told me – 

when we checked,  that  is not  done.    

 In fact ,  when the journal ist  asked me,  I  saw i t  when i t  

was done.  But  th is I  said:   Look,  i t  was an at tempt that  

happened and that  is what I  sent  to  Ama Bongani .    

 And the context  of  that  Chair  was such that  I  d id  not  

bel ieve in the innocence of  these quest ions f rom Ama 20 

Bongani .  

 I  thought they were loaded with  lots  of  pol i t ics especial ly 

that  I  –  I  was made aware,  even before the quest ions came,  

about a process in The City where they were si t t ing together 

wi th my opponents.  
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 So at  that  t ime,  when these things came Chai r,  the 

context  of  that ,  for me, i t  was val id but  I  wanted to respond.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  s i t t ing there,  you would accept ,  would 

you not ,  that  in 2018,  i t  would not  – i t  was not  correct  to say 

you had resigned?  

MR MAKHUBO :    Wel l ,  I  have qual i f ied i t  the way that  i t  is  

qual i f ied now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  to say,  you had made an at tempt.  10 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  the resignat ion resolut ion had not  

been acted upon.  

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  Mr Makhubo.  Wel l ,  I  put  i t  to 

you that  that  is a mater ia l ly misleading statement.   But  let  us 

look at  the next  paragraph.   There you say:  

“Pol i t ical ly off ice bearers are by law precluded f rom 

part ic ipat ing in procurement processes.   Hence,  I  20 

could not  have been involved in  overseeing the 

renewal of  the S inking Fund cont ract . ”  

 As a matter of  fact ,  you were involved in the renewal of  

the Sinking Fund Contract .   Is that  not  correct? 

MR MAKHUBO :    That  is completely  incorrect .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You say i t  is incorrect? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did you not  s i t  on the Mayoral  

Commit tee that  recommended to the counci l  that  i t  adopt  the 

contract  in terms of  Sect ion 33? 

MR MAKHUBO :    Again,  I  d i ffer wi th you how you interpret  

Sect ion 33.   The award was al ready made.  There was BAC,  

there was BEC, there was EAC.  There was Probi ty.   There 

was everything else.   I  do not  agree wi th you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So,  what did you understand your 10 

funct ion to be on the Mayoral  Commit tee?  Just  to 

rubberstamp a decision that  had been taken at  BAC and BEC 

level? 

MR MAKHUBO :    To check whether the f inancial  obl igat ions 

to The City are not  . . . [ indist inct ]  and that  is  i t .   And to 

convey to counci l .  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  even i f  you had 

misunderstood your obl igat ions in that  sense.   I  submit  to 

you,  that  you were overseeing the renewal to that  extent .    20 

MR MAKHUBO :    And I  am saying that  I  do not  agree wi th 

you.   I  was not  overseeing and I  do not  th ink I  misunderstood 

my role,  as we have done i t  a l l  the t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The fact  that  you acted unlawful ly 

several  t imes in the past ,  does not  make i t  lawful  for when 
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you do i t  again Mr Makhubo.  What is lawful  and what is not ,  

is a  matter  of  law and not  a matter of  your  past  pract ise.   But  

we can move on.  

 Do you not  accept  that  in your ro le as MMC, that  you 

had a responsibi l i ty at  a pol i t ical  level  to have oversight  of  

th is Sinking Fund Contract? 

MR MAKHUBO :    There are var ious cont racts in The City  

that  have got  off ic ia ls overseeing them.  I  d id not  th ink 

speci f ical ly th is one out  of  many was my responsibi l i ty to 

oversee i t .   The Treasury of  The City had to oversee this.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  i t  came to your at tent ion 

that  Regiments had been gui l ty of  any impropriety,  would you 

not  as a – the MMC under whose jur isd ict ion that  contract  

res ides,  had the responsib i l i ty to  order invest igat ions and 

the appropriate act ion? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  would have probably asked City Manager 

to do something,  to say we hear th is news.  Please look at  i t  

and do something about i t .   I t  is  the Ci ty Manager ’s 

responsibi l i ty to do.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   Can I  put  you two possible  20 

cases of  impropriety which might  have t r iggered a pol i t ical  

response? 

MR MAKHUBO :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Are you aware of  the R 290 mi l l ion 

Denel  bond that  Regiments took out  on behal f  of  The Ci ty? 
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MR MAKHUBO :    I  only became aware of  i t  when i t  was 

ra ised in counci l  by the former Mayor af ter there was 

potent ia l  defaul t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   So there was a potent ia l  

defaul t  by Denel  in repaying this – was i t  R 290 mi l l ion or 

R 270 mi l l ion?  Do you recal l?  

MR MAKHUBO :    I  do not .   I  th ink i t  was the f igure.   I  mean, 

I  just  know that  he made a lot  of  noise in the media and he 

came to counci l  about  i t  but  I  do not  know al l  the detai ls.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Were you aware that  Regiments 10 

were act ing on both sides of  t ransact ion for The Ci ty  

borrowing the money and for Denel  lending the money to The 

City?   

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  I  was not .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Facing the debt  wi th The City.  

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  I  was unaware of  the investment 

detai ls of  what the Sinking Fund was invest ing in.   Which 

paper(?) they are buying.   I  thought the dealers(?) would do 

that .  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   Were you aware that  

Regiments took one percent  commission f rom Denel  for 

borrowing in the name of  The C i ty,  the money that  they 

placed wi th The City? 

MR MAKHUBO :    No,  I  was unaware of  that .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  you had been made aware of  

that ,  what would you have done? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  th ink that  is speculat ive.   I  do not  know 

what I  would have done.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  no.   I  am asking a quest ion.   

I f  you had been made aware of  that ,  what would your  

pol i t ical  v iew have been? 

MR MAKHUBO :    I  would have appl ied my mind(?)  that  t ime 

but  i f  i t  happened now, of  course,  we would have been to the 

Treasury and The City Manger to invest igate and take up a 10 

big act ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   But  of  course,  you were 

cont inuing to der ive the benef i t  in your personal  capaci ty  

f rom the cont ract  which Regiments had abused at  the 

expense of  The Ci ty.   Would that  not  have been a conf l ict  of  

interest? 

MR MAKHUBO :    But  I  d id not  know that  saying that  I  

abused the. . .   Chai r,  I  was unaware.   I  th ink the evidence 

leader is  asking me something I  was unaware of .   And he 

says:   Please suppose,  you would have done that .   And then 20 

. . . [ indist inct ]  back.   No,  I  was not  aware of  that .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  what I  am put t ing to you is  

that  your posi t ion was a manifest  conf l ict  of  interest .   The 

fact  that  you did not  know about  certain facts,  does not  

detract  f rom the fact  that  there was a manifest  conf l ict  of  
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interest  between you der iv ing a benef i t  f rom this contract  at  

the same t ime as you were supposed to be overseeing i t  in 

your capaci ty as MMC.   

MR MAKHUBO :    Again,  I  deny that .   I  do not  agree wi th you.   

I  mean,  what  about  the manifest  conf l ict  of  interest?  I  mean, 

what we would have done to – and of  course  i f  there  was 

wrongdo ing  wou ld  have ac ted .   I  mean i t  does not  mean  

tha t  –  you are  p resuppos ing  tha t  I  wou ld  have looked away  

f rom the  wrongdo ing  because o f  x ,  y  and z  and  I  say  I  

d isagree w i th  tha t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     I  see .   In  due course  we w i l l  

b r ing  o ther  ev idence o f  o ther  wrongdo ing  on beha l f  o f  –  

we l l ,  le t  me put  a  scenar io  to  you  wh ich  in  due course  we  

w i l l  substan t ia te  w i th  ev idence.   Were  you aware  o f  the  

ev idence tha t  was led  yeste rday in  re la t ion  to  ACSA? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  d id  no t  watch .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We heard  yeste rday  about  

cont rac ts  a t  ACSA where  Reg iments  were  represent ing  

ACSA were  bo r rowing money f rom Nedbank and were  

tak ing  a  10  bas is  po in t  payment  f rom Nedbank wh ich  ACSA 20 

in  tu rn  was repay ing  to  Nedbank.   So Reg imen ts  were  

be ing  pa id  a  fee  by  Nedbank wh ich  Nedbank wou ld  recover  

f rom ACSA whi le  Reg iments  were  os tens ib l y  represent ing  

ACSA’s  in te res ts  in  ra is ing  money fo r  ACSA.   Would  you  

have regarded tha t  as  a  conf l i c t  o f  in te res t  i f  you  were  a t  
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ACSA? 

MR MAKHUBO:    Aga in ,  I  need to  hear  the  –  I  need  to  see 

the  de ta i l s  regard ing  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  le t  me ask you  

…[ in tervenes]  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  cannot  rea l l y  answer  on  beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  and I  am not  invo lved on tha t ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  were  you aware  tha t  

Nedbank was do ing  the  same th ing  in  Johannesburg?  

MR MAKHUBO:     No.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     You were  no t .  

MR MAKHUBO:    No.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So you were  no t  aware  tha t  

Nedbank was bo r rowing money fo r  the  C i ty  –  so r ry,  tha t  

Reg iments  were  bor rowing f rom Nedbank fo r  the  C i ty  and 

be ing  pa id  a  fee  wh ich  they took f rom Nedbank but  wh ich  

Nedbank recovered f rom the  C i ty?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  I  suppose tha t  o r ig ina t ion  bus iness  

I  wou ld  no t  be  par t  o f  and I  was unaware .   I  mean,  i f  

Treasury  d id  no t  b r ing  tha t  to  our  a t ten t ion  I  wou ld  no t  be  20 

aware .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    R igh t .   Do you not  see the  

po tent ia l  conf l i c t  in  th is  s i tua t ion  when the  pr imary  source  

o f  revenue o f  you r  company is  der i ved f rom a  company tha t  

i s  manag ing  one o f  the  b iggest  funds a t  the  d isposa l  o f  the 
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C i ty?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Which  debt  o r ig ina t ion  you mean?   Sor ry,  

I  do  no t  unders tand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry?  

MR MAKHUBO:     You see,  the  deb t  o r ig ina t ion  th ing  or  the  

ACSA th ing ,  what  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Jus t  genera l l y,  the  s t ruc tu ra l  

re la t ionsh ip .   Your  company de r ives  i t s  revenue f rom 

Reg iments ’ cont rac t  w i th  the  C i ty.   Your  ro le  as  MMC for  

f inance is  i n  the  name o f  the  C i ty  to  oversee tha t  cont rac t  10 

in  the  in te res ts  o f  the  C i ty.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r,  i f  I  have to  oversee every  cont rac t  

w i th  the  seven depar tments  o f  f inance I  wou ld  spend my 

day ove rsee ing  cont rac ts .   I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  was  my ro le  

in  the  f i rs t  p lace .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  t here  a  b igger  cont rac t  a t  the  

C i ty?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Pardon?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  there  a  b igger  f i nanc ia l  

cont rac t  a t  the  C i ty?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    How do you  mean,  sor ry,  I  do  no t  

unders tand?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Does the  C i ty  –  does the  C i t y  

have any o ther  fund the  s i ze  o f  the  S ink ing  Fund? 

MR MAKHUBO:     Not  tha t  I  am aware  o f .  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 136 of 297 
 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     So  th i s  i s  the  b iggest  fund tha t  

you are  aware  o f  tha t  the  C i ty  has.  

MR MAKHUBO:    The S ink ing  Fund is  the  fund o f  the  C i ty,  

yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Bu t  there  a re  counterpa r t ies ,  there  are  

sweep ing  o f  bank  accounts  every  n igh t ,  there  i s  a  lo t  tha t  

i s  happen ing  in  Treasury.   I f  I  have to  oversee the  back  

o f f i ce ,  the  m idd le  o f f i ce  and the  f ron t  o f f i ce ,  I  mean,  I  

wou ld  spend my l i fe  in  Treasury  on ly  no t  even in  Revenue 10 

or  in  Rates  and Taxes and a l l  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ja ,  I  am not  ask ing  you to  do  the 

nu ts  and bo l ts  bu t  I  am suggest ing  to  you tha t  a  con t rac t  o f  

th is  impor tance to  the  C i ty  requ i res  po l i t i ca l  overs igh t  by  

someone who does not  have an in te res t  in  tha t  cont rac t .  

MR MAKHUBO:    And I  am say ing  i f  there  i s  any po l i t i ca l  

p r inc ipa l  who t r ies  to  oversee cont rac ts  a t  tha t  p r imary  

leve l  i s  ac tua l l y  in te r fe r ing  in  the  [ ind is t inc t ]  03 .46 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We may have to  leave th is  po in t  

here  bu t  le t  us  move to  someth ing  e lse .   Can I  take  you to  20 

a  document  a t  page 659 o f  bund le  2?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  639 or  649? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    659,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    659,  okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And there  you w i l l  see  an 
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in te rna l  Reg imen ts ’ emai l  f rom Er ic  Wood to  N iven P i l lay  

say ing :  

“Geoff  Makhubo b r ie f ing .docex”  

And be low tha t  page,  i f  you  go to  660 you w i l l  see  the  

document  tha t  was a t tached to  tha t  emai l .   We wi l l  ge t  to  

the  contents  o f  the  document  in  a  m inute  bu t  I  wou ld  f i rs t  

ask  you to  go  up  to  page 918 where  the  document  appears  

aga in .   Sor ry,  be fore  we go to  918,  jus t  no te  the  t ime there .   

The t ime on the  emai l  a t  page 659 is  12 .36 .   I f  we then go 

up to  918 we see  a  s l igh t ly  la te r  emai l .   Sor ry,  do  you know 10 

who N iven P i l lay  i s ,  the  rec ip ien t  o f  the  las t  emai l .   Do you 

know who Niven P i l lay  i s?  

MR MAKHUBO:     Yes,  I  do .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Can you te l l  the  Cha i r?  

MR MAKHUBO:    He is  a  d i rec tor  a t  Reg iments  Cap i ta l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And was he pr imar i l y  respons ib le  

fo r  the  fund management  o f  the  S ink ing  Fund on beha l f  o f  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  there  was a  team and I  th ink  he  

was oversee ing  i t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   Le t  us  go  to  918.   That  i s  

an  emai l  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  am sor ry,  d id  you say  918? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    918,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  f rom Er ic  Wood to  Mr  L i tha  

Nyhonyha 19 November  2010.   The  head ing  is :  

“CoJ Cheat  Sheet ”  

And the  a t tachment  i s  Geoff  Makhubo br ie f ing  document  

and the  emai l  says :  

“H i  L i tha ,  as  d iscussed. . . ”  

Sor ry,  L i tha  i s  Mr  L i tha  Nyhonyha,  I  assume.   Wel l ,  i t  says  

so  in  the  address .  

“ . . .as  d iscussed I  have a t tached the  one pager  tha t  

we gave to  Geoff . ”  10 

Maybe we can go up to  see what  th is  one pager  tha t  was 

g iven to  Geoff  was,  917.   I t  says :  

“Loan to  CoJ f rom DBSA,  s to red because Parks  

made some negat ive  comment  re  the  pr i c ing .   In  

fac t  p r ic ing  is  45  bas i s  po in t s  be t te r  than DCM 

pr ic ing ,  1  b i l l i on  o f  20  year  fund ing  prov ides a  

be t te r  asset  l iab i l i t y  match  fo r  CoJ and the  DCM 

a l te rna t ive . ”  

: (d )  D i rec t ion   needs to  be  prov ided to  Treasury  

to  p roceed w i th  th is  l ine .  20 

2 .  In te res t  ra te  h i t ch .   Seeks to  conver t  

ex i s t ing  f loa t ing  ra te  exposure  to  f i xed  a t  

op t imum a l l  t ime low y ie ld  curve .  

(b )  Wi l l  p ro tec t  CoJ f rom in te res t  ra te  increases 

in  the  imminent  bus iness cyc le  up turns .  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 139 of 297 
 

(c )  Treasury  has approved the  t ransact ion  in  

p r inc ip le ,  needs  mandate  f rom Mayora l  

Commi t tee .  

3 .  Fund management  fee ,  th i rd  quar te r  2010.   

Amount  o f  27  m i l l ion  VAT inc lus ive  due to  

Reg iments  Fund  Managers  Mole lwane and 

JP Morgan has been w i thhe ld  by  Treasury  on  

JPC ins t ruc t ions.   JPC a l leges tha t  th is  i s  in  

acco rdance w i th  the  sure ty  agreement  

p rov ided by  Reg iments  Cap i ta l  fo r  the 10 

ob l iga t ions o f  Cedar  Park  Proper t ies ,  Kgoro  

Consor t ium.   In  te rms o f  the  agreements  

be tween JPC/CoJ  and the  Kgoro  Consor t ium 

there  a re  no  funds due unt i l  t ransfe r,  wh ich  

has no t  taken p lace ye t .   I f  t ransfe r  had 

taken p lace JPC wou ld  have f i r s t  had to  

summon the  Kgoro  Consor t ium and fu l l y  

d iscuss be fo re  sure t y  becomes executab le .   

Fur ther,  these funds a re  due by  CoJ to  

to ta l l y  d i f fe ren t  par t ies  to  the  debto r  o r  20 

sure ty,  there fore  the  w i thho ld ing  o f  these 

fees i s  un lawfu l  and needs to  be  re leased 

fo r thwi th .   

4 .  S ink ing  Fund  tender  needs to  be  

ad jud ica ted ,  an  appo in tment  needs to  be  
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made.   You see a round sp l i t t ing  the  mandate  

be tween two managers  needs to  be  k i l led ,  

cannot  be  done  due to  counterpar t y  r i sk  

l im i ts  and lack  o f  r i sk  conso l ida t ion  capac i ty  

w i th in  CoJ Treasury.  

5 .  JPC proper ty  fund tender  needs to  be  

ad jud ica ted .   An  appo in tment  needs to  be 

made. ”  

You w i l l  see  tha t  Mr  Wood wr i t ing  to  Mr  Nyhonyha  on the  

19  November  2010 sa id :  10 

“As d iscussed I  a t tach  the  one pager  tha t  we gave  

to  Geoff ”  

And the  document  i s  headed:  

“Geoff  Makhubo Br ie f ing . ”  

Do you reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  one pager  in  2010? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  do  no t  reca l l ,  I  answered the  same 

to  amaBhungane tha t  I  cannot  reca l l  rece iv ing  th is .   In  fac t  

then they sent  me the  sheet  bu t  ac tua l l y  f i rs t  t ime I  see 

some o f  these issues here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    F i r s t  t ime you saw some o f  th is?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:     Some o f  these issues tha t  a re  ra ised 

here ,  f i rs t  t ime tha t  I  saw them.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     So  amaBhungane had sent  th is  

sheet  to  you.  

MR MAKHUBO:    They d id .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   D id  you not  f ind  i t  s t range  

tha t  emai ls  were  f l y ing  around ins ide  Reg iments  say ing  

tha t  they had g iven i t  to  you whereas you had no  

reco l lec t ion  o f  i t?  

MR MAKHUBO:   Wel l ,  I  found i t  s t range in  2018  when I  

rece ived th is  tha t  what  i s  th is  because I  do  no t  even know 

what  a  cheat  sheet  i s .     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:    In  bus iness I  do  no t  even know what  a  

cheat  sheet  i s .     10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You  do  no t  know what  a  cheat  

sheet  i s .  D id  you  Mr  L i tha  Nyhonyha and say what  i s  th is ,   

I  am see ing  a  document  tha t  i s  embarrass ing  me wh ich  

apparent ly  was c i rcu la t ing  in  Reg iments?  

MR MAKHUBO:     Wel l ,  I  d id  say look,  I  d id  no t  rece ive  

th is  document ,  d id  you send i t?   And sa id  l ook,  I  w i l l  f ind  

ou t .   That  i s  i t .   We le f t  i t  there ,  2010.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     You d id  no t  fo l low i t  up? 

MR MAKHUBO:    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You d id  no t  fo l low i t  up?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  d id  no t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .   You were  no t  in te res ted  

to  know whether  Reg iments  had sent  i t  o r  had not  sent  i t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  knew –  I  had sa id  look,  they have  

not  sent  i t ,  I  have not  seen i t ,  I  have not  seen some o f  the  
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i ssues tha t  a re  here .   Some o f  the  issues I  know about ,  

espec ia l l y  the  27  mi l l ion  and a l l  tha t ,  in  2010 I  knew about .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR MAKHUBO:     Bu t  the  res t  o f  the  th ings,  wha t  wou ld  

they have to  do  w i th  me,  Kgoro ,  JPC.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Wel l ,  i t  i s  a  good quest ion ,  what  

d id  they have to  do  w i th  you.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  peop le  in  Reg iments  c lear ly  

thought  tha t  i t  had someth ing  to  do  w i th  you.  10 

MR MAKHUBO:    I  cannot  speak fo r  them,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .   Can we go back  to  your  

cont rac t  w i th  Reg iments?   Do you remember  tha t  c lause  

2 .2  wh ich  gave you respons ib i l i t y  fo r  re la t ionsh ip  

management  a t  the  C i ty?   Do you th ink  tha t  i s  what  

Reg iments  may have had in  m ind there ,  page 714? 

MR MAKHUBO:    I  wou ld  no t  know,  I  remember  the  

cont rac t  and tha t .   I  do  no t  know what  they meant  bu t  th is  

was not  fo r  me,  what  they shou ld  have meant .   Some o f  

these th ings have  noth ing  to  do  w i th  me.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    2 .2 .7 :  

“Ma in ta in ing  on  an ongo ing  bas i s  a l l  s t ra teg i c  

re la t ionsh ips  w i th  CoJ before ,  dur ing  and a f te r  

comple t ion  o f  the  fund management  mandate  fo r  the  

mutua l  benef i t  o f  the  par t ies . ”  
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What  sor t  o f  s t ra teg ic  re la t ionsh ips  were  you go ing  to  

main ta in?  

MR MAKHUBO:     Cha i r,  we have canvassed ear l ie r,  in  my 

mind I  to ld  you tha t  I  needed to  know Ci ty,  the  s t ra teg i c  

leve l ,  where  i t  i s  go ing ,  what  the  fund ing  p lan  is ,  how to  

grow the  fund,  how to  invest  because tha t  was my  pr imary  

in te res t  a t  tha t  t ime,  no th ing  e lse .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     I  see .   And you never  fo l lowed 

th is  up  w i th  L i tha  Nyhonyha when he d id   no t  come back to  

you?  10 

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  a t  tha t  t ime –  remember,  when the  

amaBhungane th ing  came I  had to  ask  h im what  i s  go ing  on  

and he was te l l ing  me he was rece iv ing  the  same quest ions  

as  we l l ,  he  is  [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So r ry,  I  d id  no t  hear  tha t  las t  

answer?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  am say ing  tha t  I  d id  speak w i th  them,  

when the  amaBhungane th ings came and sa id  what  i s  go ing  

on  here ,  e igh t  years  la te r,  the  cont rac t  i s  f in ished,  why,  

what  a re  they fo l low ing up and then o f  cou rse  he to ld  me 20 

tha t  they a re  rece iv ing  the  s im i la r  quest ions f rom 

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  person and a l l  tha t ,  

tha t  i s  why I  sa id  look  le t  me answer  to  the  best ,  I  w i l l  

answer  to  the  bes t  o f  my ab i l i t y  and leave i t  a t  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  when I  read the  
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amaBhungane ar t i c le ,  the  one key p iece o f  ev idence  tha t  i s  

very  damning o f  bo th  you and Mr  Nyhonyha is  the  cheat  

sheet ,  d id  you not  th ink  tha t  you needed to  ge t  to  the  

bo t tom o f  th is  cheat  sheet?  

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  responded,  I  have a  response and I  

do  no t  see i t  in  the  bund le .   I  responded and [ ind is t inc t ]  

12 .35  and I  thought  my response was adequate .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  your  response suggests  i s  

–  le t  me get  the  response.   I t  i s  a t  page 952.   I t  says  a t  the  

las t  sentence in  the  second las t  pa rag raph:  10 

“ I  have no reco l l ec t ion  o f  the  so-ca l led  cheat  sheet  

and the  i ssues ra ised have noth ing  to  do  w i th  me ,  

the  Mole lwane,  nor  ou r  agreement  w i th  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l . ”  

Why d id  you not  say  …[ in tervenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson,  you sa id  

952?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    952,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  bund le  2?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bund le  2 ,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    You say las t  sentence in  the  las t  

parag raph?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Second las t  parag raph.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see :  

“Th is  was in  l ine  w i th  my dec is ion  to  u t i l i se  my 
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sk i l l s  as  a  pub l i c  representa t i ve .   I  a lso  made a  

commi tment  to  the  Mayor. ”  

That  i s  no t  what  –  i s  tha t  the  paragraph?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    952,  I  have,  am I  on  the  wrong  

page aga in?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  page 952,  the  las t  paragraph  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no ,  the  sentence before  the  

las t  parag raph,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  the  sentence before  the  las t  10 

parag raph.   Oh,  the  second paragraph f rom the  end  o f  the  

page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The las t  sentence.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    the  las t  sentence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    “ I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  the  so-ca l led   

cheat  sheet  and the  issues ra ised  have noth ing  to  

do  w i th  ne i ther  Mo le lwane nor  our  ag reement  w i th  

Reg iments  Cap i ta l . ”  

Okay,  now I  see i t ,  ja .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   So you sa id  you  

cannot  reca l l  the  so-ca l led  cheat .   That  was your  answer.   

You cannot  reca l l  and these issues  have noth ing  to  do  w i th   

Mo le lwane and Reg iments .  

MR MAKHUBO:     That  i s  what  I  responded and a f te r  the  
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a r t i c le  o f  amaBhungane I  persona l ly  penned an a r t i c le  tha t  

was pub l i shed in  the  Da i ly  Maver ick  and I  was re fer r ing  to  

tha t .   When I  say  i t  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  bund le ,  th is  i s  what  I  

responded to  the  quest ions f rom Susan Comr ie .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .   But  what  your  answer  i s ,  

i s  I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  the  so-ca l led  cheat  sheet ,  i t  i s  

no t  I  never  rece ived a  cheat  shee t  l i ke  th is .   Why d id  you 

not  deny rece iv ing  the  cheat  sheet?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  mean,  i f  you  cannot  reca l l  someth ing  

you say I  have never  –  I  mean,  what  i s… I t  i s  a  reco l lec t ion  10 

but  these i ssues  has go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  me,  in  fac t  

…[ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  do  no t  th ink  I  have because what  you do 

aga in ,  you go to  your  emai ls  and  you check bu t  the  MC 

emai l  server  i s  down,  so  I  do  no t  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wou ld  i t  no t  have s t ruck  you as  

very,  ve ry  c r i t i ca l  i f  -  wou ld  i t  no t  have s t ruck  you as  a  

par t i cu la r l y  impor tan t  fac t  tha t  you wou ld  remember  fo r  a  

long t ime i f  you got  th is  so r t  o f  document  f rom a  bus iness 20 

par tner  essent ia l l y  inv i t ing  you to  in te r fe re  in  counc i l  

p rocesses wh ich  were  none o f  you r  bus iness?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r,  as  I  say,  these th ings have noth ing  

to  do  w i th  me,  ne i ther  w i th  ou r  agreement  w i th  Reg iments  

and I  do  no t  reca l l  rece iv ing  i t  bu t ,  I  mean,  i t  d id  no t  s t r i ke 
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me a t  tha t  t ime and fo r  me i t  was immater ia l .   When I  saw 

th is  I  knew tha t  I  wou ld  never  –  I  wou ld  no t  have seen th is ,  

I  do  no t  reca l l  i t  a t  a l l .   I  wou ld  have reca l led  i t  i f  ever  the  

issues o f  Kgoro ,  JPC,  I  wou ld  have reca l led  i f  I  was 

requ i red  to  do  someth ing ,  I  do  no t  remember  anyth ing  l i ke  

tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You do not  remember  anyth ing  

l i ke  tha t?  

MR MAKHUBO:     I  cannot  remember  anyth ing ,  no .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Wou ld  you not  have 10 

remembered i f  you rece ived th is  cheat  sheet?   Is  i t  not  

someth ing  tha t  wou ld  de f in i te ly  have s tuck  in  your  

memory?  

MR MAKHUBO:    What  s t i cks  in  my memory,  what  does 

not ,  20  years  la te r  –  I  mean,  10  years  la te r,  w i th  a l l  due 

respect ,  Cha i rpe rson,  there  are  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  a re  

happen ing  in  my  l i fe  every  day,  I  wou ld  no t  remember  a  

spec i f i c  paper  o r  a  de ta i l  tha t  happened in  2010.   I  mean,  I  

do  no t  know what  i s  the  expecta t ion  o f  me to  remember.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Makhubo,  le t  me pu t  i t  th is  20 

way.   I f  the  bus iness par tner  sen t  a  le t te r  to  you inv i t ing  

you improper l y  to  in f luence counc i l  a f fa i rs  i s  tha t  no t  

someth ing  tha t  wou ld  be  so  shock ing  tha t  you  wou ld  

remember?  

MR MAKHUBO:    For  me tha t  has never  happened.   I  do  
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no t  reca l l  any th ing  l i ke  tha t  and I  wou ld  no t  say when you  

say i t  i s  shock ing  bu t ,  I  mean,  th is  th ing  d id  no t  happen so  

i t  i s  no t  in  my mind,  I  do  no t  reca l l  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  do  no t  want  -   p resuppos i t ions  fo r  me 

are  a  p rob lem because I  -  you know,  you are  tak ing  me to  a  

fac t  and then you  move to  p resuppos i t ion  and I  th ink  i t  i s  a  

b i t  un fa i r  on  ourse lves.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  Mr  Makhubo Mr  Chaska lson in  

par t  i s  t ry ing  to  es tab l i sh  what  wou ld  shock you,  you know,  10 

d i f fe ren t  peop le  ge t  shocked by  d i f fe ren t  th ings.   What  

m ight  shock me might  no t  shock you,  what  m ight  shock you  

might  no t  shock  me.   So because maybe i f  a  bus iness  

par tner  sent  you  a  le t te r  o r  ema i l  say ing  cer ta in  th ings,  

those th ings m ight  shock you and  you wou ld  never  fo rge t  

tha t  once upon a  t ime he or  she sent  you such  a  th ing ,  

such an emai l .   So he is  say ing  i f  they  sent  you someth ing  

tha t  says in te r fe re  in  the  a f fa i rs  o f  the  C i ty  o r  use  your  

pos i t ion  improper ly  wou ld  tha t  no t  be  the  k ind  o f  th ing  tha t  

wou ld  shock you and there fore  you wou ld  remember  i t  20 

eas i l y  because i t  wou ld  be  someth ing  tha t  you wou ld  have  

found so  unaccep tab le  fo r  them to  do ,  to  expect  you  to  do .   

MR MAKHUBO:    Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know what  the  word  

shock,  I  am t ry ing  to  th ink  as  you speak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MR MAKHUBO:    In  the  l ine  o f  what  we do,  espec ia l l y  

when in  pub l i c  o f f i ce ,  eve ry  day o r  every  week you rece ive  

an  emai l  o f  th is  p roposa l  o r  the  o the r,  you t ransfer  them to 

the  re levant  peop le  to  fo l low p rocess,  you wou ld  rece ive  

one lobby or  o ther  o f  want ing  o r  the  o the r,  you t ransfer  i t  

to  the  r igh t  peop le  to  p rocess.   Peop le  w i l l  ask  you to  do  

cer ta in  th ings and you say no ,  no ,  I  cannot ,  I  want  to  do  a 

th ing  –  you know,  a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  Cov id  a  good f r iend  

o f  m ine tha t  I  g rew up w i th  Robv i l le  w i th  sen t  me a  

Whatsapp and says I  have 13 tubs(? )  o f  san i t i zer.   My 10 

answer  to  h im was tha t  look ,  I  do  no t  even know who is  

buy ing  and how they are  buy ing  i t .   Th is  i s  a  guy I  g rew up  

w i th  in  Soweto .   Ord ina r i l y  we rece ived these th ings,  he  

says bu t  you a re  Mayor,  you have  in f luence,  sa id  no ,  you  

cannot  do  i t .   Bu t  what  do  you i s  l i ke  you –  and then th is  

Whatsapp,  you move fo rward ,  you  jus t  t ransfer  and do a l l  

sor t s  o f  th ings.   So when you say  what  wou ld  shock me in  

bus iness,  in  po l i t i cs ,  the re  are  coup le  o f  th ings in  po l i t i cs  

when you get  be t rayed by your  t rus t  comrade.   That  shocks  

me,  I  w i l l  never  fo rge t  tha t .   When you expect  a  cer ta in  20 

behav iou r  f rom a  comrade and they do  the  oppos i te ,  wh ich  

is  fundamenta l ,  no t  they vo ted  aga ins t  you  in  the 

conference,  tha t  w i l l  no t  shock me,  bu t  there  is  someth ing  

very  fundamenta l .   So there  have  been ve ry  fundamenta l  

th ings.   In  bus iness in  2010 some th ings you rece ive  you 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 150 of 297 
 

jus t  ignore  and you move fo rward ,  espec ia l l y  i f  you  cannot  

do  bu t  th is  one,  I  do  no t  remember  see ing  a t  a l l ,  so  how 

wou ld  I  fe l t  w i th  th is  th ing  because when I  saw i t  f rom 

amaBhungane I  jus t  thought  i t  i s  one o f  those th ings and I  

igno red i t .   I  must  be  qu i te  honest ,  fo r  me tha t  d id  no t  – I  

jus t  answered the  way I  answered and I  jus t  moved on.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  th is  i s  no t  jus t  some f r iend  

o f  yours ,  th is  i s  the  counterpar t y  in  the  b iggest  cont rac t  

tha t  you r  company has.   Would  tha t  no t  ra ise  a  concern  10 

f rom you i f  i t  happened?  

MR MAKHUBO:     I t  d id  no t  happen w i th  due respect ,  

ev idence leader,  and wh ich  is  why I  wou ld  have asked what  

i s  th is  th ing ,  wha t  a re  you d i scuss ing?  I f  you  want  to  g ive  

i t  to  me,  why wou ld  you have g i ven i t  to  me,  what  do  you 

expect  me to  do  w i th  i t?   And sure l y  i f  I  can  do  noth ing  

about  someth ing ,  why shou ld  I  occupy my bra in  space w i th  

th ings I  cannot  change?  I  be l ieve  in  the  Seren i ty  Prayer,  

accept  th ings I  cannot  change.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     So  you now say very  c lear ly  20 

tha t  th is  was not  sent  to  you?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Wel l ,  I  am say ing  tha t  I  have no 

reco l lec t ion  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was sent  to  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .   D id  you not  ra ise  an  

issue w i th  L i tha  Nyhonyha?  Was i t  no t  su f f i c ien t ly  
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damaging tha t  you wanted to  ge t  an  answer  f rom L i tha  

Nyhonyha on?  

ADV MPHAGO SC:    Cha i r,  maybe I  shou ld  ob jec t  and say  

tha t  I  th ink  Mr  Makhubo has answered and th is  bo i l s  down 

cross-examinat ion  o f  some sor t .   I  know tha t  there  has to  

be  a  p robe but  I  th ink  tha t  there  i s  a  repet i t ion  o f  the  same 

quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am happy to  move on,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then go to  page 952? 

MR MAKHUBO:    950…? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    952,  tha t  i s  the  amaBhungane  

ar t i c le  i t se l f .   No,  i t  i s  no t  – I  am sor ry,  no ,  968,  where  they 

d iscussed the  cheat  sheet .   And i f  you go f i ve  paragraphs  

f rom the  bot tom,  the  repor t  reads:  

“Yet  ove r  the  next…”  

Oh sor ry,  we l l  le t  us  s ta r t  under :   No in f luence.  

“By law there  i s  meant  to  be  a  Ch inese Wa l l  

be tween po l i t i ca l  o f f i ce  bearers  and the  20 

procurement  depar tments  and munic ipa l i t ies  they  

cont ro l .  Even Tau ,  the  then MMC for  f inance,  cou ld  

no t  lega l l y  in te r fe re  w i th  the  C i ty ’s  tender  

p rocesses ye t  over  the  next  year  Reg imen ts  

rece ived a lmost  every th ing  on  i t s  w ish  l i s t .   In  
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January  2011 the  C i ty  agreed  to  re lease 18.4  

m i l l ion  o f  Reg iments ’ fees . ”  

Do you know i f  tha t  i s  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    I  wou ld  no t  have  known a t  tha t  t ime but  I  

read i t  in  the  bund le  o f  the  C i ty  Manager  the re .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Yes.  

“ In  March Reg iments  fac i l i ta ted  a  smal le r  250  

mi l l ion  loan fo r  the  C i ty  and rece ived 1 .25  mi l l ion  as  

a  ra is ing  fee . ”  

Do you know i f  tha t  i s  cor rec t?  10 

MR MAKHUBO:    No,  I  cannot  remember  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .  

“And in  December  Reg iments  was one o f   

two b idders  awarded Johannesburg  proper ty  

company tenders . ”  

Do you know i f  tha t  i s  cor rec t?  

MR MAKHUBO:    Aga in ,  I  have no  –  I  had no idea o f  i t  up  

un t i l  I  saw i t  in  the  papers  tha t  you  sent  my a t to rney.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see .    

“The on ly  h iccup  was the  tender  fo r  new S ink ing  20 

Fund cont rac t .   Under  the  Reg iments  the  fund had 

per fo rmed we l l  bu t  a  rev iew conducted by  KPMG in  

2010 cr i t i c i sed Reg iments ’ fees  fo r  be ing  excess ive  

when the  b ids  fo r  the  new tender  to  rep lace  

Reg iments ’ f i rs t  cont rac t  were  ad jud ica ted .   
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Reg iments  Fund  Managers  was  not  a  p re fer red  

b idder  and had in  fac t  been d isqua l i f ied .   I saac 

Mogashoa the  C i ty  Group he re  a t  lega l  and 

cont rac ts  to ld  us .   But  jus t  as  the  goose lay ing  the  

go lden eggs appeared to  be  runn ing  out  o f  luck ,  Tau  

d iscovered a  fundamenta l  f law  wi th  the  tender  

p rocess.   The  MMC f inance ’s  v iews tha t  the  

eva lua t ion  around the  process must  inc lude soc ia l  

investments  to  up l i f t  the  commun i t ies  around the  

C i ty,  Khomotso Lets la ts i ,  the  head  o f  Treasury  to ld  10 

co l leagues in  an  Apr i l  2011 memo. ”  

Are  you aware  o f  tha t  memo? 

MR MAKHUBO:    I  am unaware  o f  tha t  memo,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.    

“The award  o f  new S ink ing  Fund cont rac t  was  

a l ready months  overdue but  accord ing  to  Le tsa ts i ’s  

memo Tau ha l ted  the  tender  on  grounds i t  d id  no t  

inc lude a  programme to  address  t ransformat ion  in  

the  C i ty ’s  p rocurement  p rac t ices . ”  

A re  you aware  o f  tha t?  20 

MR MAKHUBO:     No,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     Ear l ie r  you sa id  to  me  i t  was  

s topped because  there  was a  mora tor ium on the  award  o f  

tender  be fo re  the  2011 e lec t ions.   

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  what  I  was to ld ,  yes .   I  am not  
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aware  o f  th is  par t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  in  2011 tha t  tender  was  

supposed to  be  awarded but  i t  was  not  and is  i t  no t  cor rec t  

tha t  Reg iments  then s tayed on under  your  MMC por t fo l io  

month - to -month  fo r  more  than another  fou r  more  years  un t i l  

the  counc i l  on  the  back o f  a  recommendat ion  o f  the 

Mayora l  Commi t tee ,  tha t  you par t i c ipa ted  in ,  gave  

Reg iments  a  new f i ve  year  cont rac t  in  2015.   I s  tha t  no t  

what  happened?  

MR MAKHUBO:    What  happened was tha t  i t  was on a  10 

month - to -month  because o f  a  par t i cu la r  reason and the  

reason be ing  tha t  there  was a  cour t  cha l lenge f rom 

Colour f ie lds  and the  Co lour f ie lds  w i thdrew i t s  cour t  ac t ion .   

When the  C i ty  Manager  b rought  t he  repor t  to  the  Mayora l  

Commi t tee  to  approve a  f inanc ia l  b idd ing  on  the  C i ty  bu i ld ,  

yes .     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  a  tender  tha t  shou ld  have 

come to  an  end in  2011 eventua l l y  on l y  came to  an  end  

four  years  la te r  and i t  came to  an  end w i th  an  award  to  the  

same par t y  fo r  another  f i ve  years  and tha t  par ty  was in  20 

bus iness w i th  your  company on the  cont rac t  tha t  had run  

fo r  n ine  years .  

MR MAKHUBO:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r,  we canvassed tha t  

ear l ie r  and the  reasons and i t  was on a  month- to -month  

because o f  par t i cu la r  reason tha t  the  C i ty  was de fend ing  
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bu t  the  eva lua t ion  o f  the  new par t y  –  in  fac t  the  tender  was 

adver t i sed in  2012 and the  adver t  sa id  fo r  f i ve  years  and 

the  eva lua t ion  happened jus t  be fo re  the  award ,  the re  was  

an in te rd i c t  o r  a t  leas t  a  cour t  cha l lenge.   That  i s  how –  

tha t  i s  what  we were  to ld  and then i t  was awarded when  

tha t  was se t t led .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Makhubo .   Cha i r,  

there  a re  fu r the r  quest ions tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  ask  about  

donat ions to  the  ANC by Reg iments  so l i c i ted  by  Mr  

Makhubo but  I  am anx ious a t  th is  po in t  tha t  we may run  out  10 

o f  t ime fo r  Mr  Ramosebod i  and Mr  Makhubo i s  go ing  to  be  

coming back any  way to  dea l  w i th  the  EOH quest ion ,  so  

w i th  your  l eave  I  wou ld  ask  tha t  we move to  Mr  

Ramosebod i  here  and my unders tand ing  to  Mr  Makhubo  

and h i s  lega l  representa t i ves  is  the  on ly  remain ing  issue  

unre la ted  to  EOH tha t  I  w i l l  be  canvass ing  is  the  quest ions  

o f  donat ions to  the  ANC so l i c i ted  f rom Reg iments .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   A l r igh t ,  

then we are  go ing  to  re lease you Mr  Makhubo fo r  today as  

you hear,  a r rangements  w i l l  be  made fo r  you to  come back  20 

in  due course .   But  thank you ve ry  much fo r  coming and 

thank you to  your  lega l  team,  you  are  now excused.   You 

are  excused,  thank you.  

MR MAKHUBO:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  ear l ie r  shou ld  no t  happen aga in .   
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No,  they w i l l  ta lk  to  you about  whether  you can take  those 

bund les  or  no t ,  Mr  Makhubo,  bu t  I  th ink  genera l l y  they do  

not  go  bu t  I  am not  hundred percent  sure ,  somebody must  

know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  am to ld  they do  not  go  bu t  my 

o f fe r  to  Mr  Makhubo and h i s  lega l  team is  we can 

[ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  e lec t ron i ca l l y .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  ja .   Maybe Ms …[ in tervenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no ,  I  th ink  you a re  en t i t led .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson,  I  guess I  shou ld  10 

probab ly  ad journ  fo r  f i ve  m inutes  fo r  you to  ge t  se t t led  

w i th . . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .b r ing  in  another  w i tness.   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Ramosebud i ,  and 

good a f te rnoon to  your  counse l .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Good a f te rnoon.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  your  counse l  cont inues to  represent  20 

you,  as  was the  case yeste rday.   Mr  Chaska lson are  you  

ready?   Mr  Ramosebud i  the  oa th  you took yeste rday w i l l  

con t inue to  app ly  today.   I s  tha t  f ine?  

PHETOLO RAMOSEBUDI    [ s .u .o . ]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Mr  

Ramosebud i  today we are  go ing  to  be  ta lk ing  about  some 

o f  the  ar rangements  to  f inance  the  purchases  o f  the  

Ch inese locomot ives  tha t  were  pa r t  o f  the  1064 dea l ,  and I  

want  to  take  you th rough some s tages o f  tha t  – o f  the  

re levant  t ransact ions and is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  the  –  tha t  an 

ar rangement  was  made wi th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank to  

bor row 1 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs  and to  ge t  a  fac i l i t y  fo r  another  

b i l l i on  do l la rs  t o  f inance Transnet ’s  purchase o f  the  

locomot ives  f rom CNR and CSR.   Can you answer  tha t  10 

quest ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   Yes indeed  

there  was a  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Speak up a  b i t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    There  was a  d iscuss ion  you know wi th  

the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank and between Transnet  and  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank to  f inance the  par t  o f  the  1064  

locomot ive  dea l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebud i  I ’ ve  been asked  

i f  you can jus t  move the  m icrophone a  b i t  c loser  so  that  20 

your  vo ice  is  p icked up bet te r.   And indeed fo r  the  

purposes o f  negot ia t ing  tha t  loan I  unders tand tha t  you 

went  to  Ch ina ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes Cha i rperson the re  was a  

de legat ion  tha t  went  to  Ch ina  fo r  the  negot ia t ions  o f  the  
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fund ing  o f  the  1064 locomot ives ,  par t  o f  the  1064  

locomot ives .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And you were  par t  o f  tha t  de lega t ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  was par t  o f  the  de legat ion .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Who e lse  was in  the  de legat ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I f  my memory  you know serve  me we l l  

i t  was myse l f ,  f rom Transnet ,  I  know S ingh f rom Transnet ,  

E r ic  Wood f rom Reg iments ,  Tedross Scheeper -Se lass ie  

f rom Reg iments  and anothe r  gent leman f rom  J  P Morgan,  

h is  name jus t  escape me.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I ’m a f ra id  h is  name escapes me 

too ,  I  unders tand  he was the  one who took a  photograph o f  

the  team and then sent  i t  to  you a l l?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  don ’ t  know who took the  photograph.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  jus t  fo r  the  purposes o f  

the  reco rd  I  th ink  the  four th  name tha t  you ment ioned was 

Tedross Scheeper-Se lass ie  f rom Reg iments .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And t r ip  to  Ch ina  was successfu l  

and in  the  end a  loan was conc luded,  a  loan ag reement  20 

was conc luded is  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  p rov ided fo r  a  fac i l i t y  o f  

1 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs  w i th  access to  another  fac i l i t y  o f  one  

b i l l i on  shou ld  tha t  be  requ i red .  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wha t  then happened as  I  

unders tand is  tha t  Transnet  dec ided tha t  i t  d idn ’ t  want  

exposure  in  do l la rs  and so  ins tead  o f  tak ing  the  ex t ra  one  

b i l l i on  fac i l i t y  f rom China Deve lopment  Bank i t  dec ided to  

t ry  to  ra ise  a  Rand debt  o f  R12b i l l i on  th rough what  became 

to  be  known the  C lub  Loan,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you reca l l  the  banks tha t  

par t i c i pa ted  in  the  C lub  loan?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  can  reca l l  a  few names ,  I  th ink  

Nedbank was pa r t  o f  i t ,  Fu ture  Growth  was par t  o f  i t ,  the  

Bank o f  Ch ina  I  th ink  was par t  o f  i t ,  I  th ink  O ld  Mutua l  a lso 

was pa r t  o f  i t ,  I  jus t   can ’ t  reca l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  I  d idn ’ t  ge t  the  las t  one.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    O ld  Mutua l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    O ld  Mutua l ,  i t  was a  rand loan 

and so  the re  was a  lo t  o f  loca l  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu tes  tha t  were  

invo l ved or  the re  were  some loca l  ins t i tu t ions  invo lved.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes tha t ’s  a  Rand denominated loan 20 

les .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And I  th ink  a longs ide  the  C lub  

loan the re  was poss ib ly  a  loan f rom was i t  the  Expor t  

Deve lopment  Bank o f  Canada or  –  i s  tha t  cor rec t ,  does tha t  

r ing  a  be l l?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  tha t  was not  par t  o f  th is  

t ransact ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     I  see ,  what  was the  Expor t  

Deve lopment  Bank o f  Canada t ransact ion  about?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I t  was fund ing  o ther  par t  o f  the  1064  

locomot ives .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  I  imag ine  i t  wou ld  have 

been fund ing  Bombard ier  because Bombard ie r  a re  a  

Canad ian  company,  do  you know tha t?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  they were  fund ing  pa r t  o f  the  10 

Bombard ier  t ransact ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The C lub  loan,  the  12b i l l i on  C lub  

loan was taken out  w i th  a  f loa t ing  in te res t  ra te ,  i s  tha t  no t  

cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   Yes i t  was taken w i th  a  f loa t ing 

in te res t  ra te .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then a t  a  cer ta in  po in t  

Transnet  dec ided  tha t  i t  wanted to  swap the  f loa t ing  ra te  

exposure  w i th  in te res t  swaps,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes Transnet  conc luded in  20 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  C lub  loan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     And I  th ink  Transnet  conc luded 

four  in te res t  –  four  t ranches o f  in te res t  swaps  wh ich  

swapped the  f loa t ing  exposure  under  the  C lub  loan and 

under  the  loan to  the  Expor t  Deve lopment  Bank o f  Canada  
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and i t s  counter  par t ies  on  the  f i rs t  t ranches i t  swaps were  

Nedbank and on the  las t  two  t ranches i t  swaps the  

Transnet  Second Def ined Benef i t  Fund?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja ,  there ’s  the  counterpa r t ies  fo r  the  

swaps tha t  we t ransacted was Nedbank and th is  Transnet  

Second Def ined Benef i t  Fund.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  can  I  take  you th rough tha t  

p rocess.    On the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan,  we w i l l  

ge t  there  in  due  course ,  bu t  i s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  a  fee  was  

pa id  to  Reg iments  o f  R189mi l l ion  inc lus ive  o f  VAT,  I  th ink  10 

i t ’s  a  R166mi l l ion  p lus  VAT.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You sa id  t rue?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes t rue .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And on the  C lub  loan a  fee  was  

pa id  to  Tr i l l i an  o f  R82mi l l ion  p lus  VAT wh ich  came to  

around R93mi l l ion .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And on  the  in te res t  swaps a  fee  

was pa id  o r  a  dec is ion  was taken by  Transnet  to  pay a  fee  20 

wh ich  wou ld  have been around R229mi l l ion  to  Reg iments ,  

i s  tha t  t rue?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  one –  how much d id  Reg iments  

earn  on  the  fees i n  Rand te rms I  don ’ t  know.     

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  was a  20  bas is  po in ts  on  the  
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swaps.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  t rue .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  in  the  end the  fu l l  amount  o f  

tha t  fee  i t  tu rns  ou t  was pa id  to  Tr i l l i an  and . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

a re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  I  am not  aware .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  us  go  th rough the  log ic  o f  

these t ransact ions.   The Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan was  

do l la r  denominated.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The C lub  loan was taken out  

because Transne t  d idn ’ t  want  tha t  much do l la r  exposure  i t  

wanted.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can we go  back a  s tep  a l l  o f  

these loans were  to  f inance locomot ive  purchases.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They were  pa r t  o f  the  fund ing  p lan  o r  

the  fund ing  requ i rement  fo r  the  year  and as  par t  o f  tha t  the  

1064 was a lso  par t  o f  the  fund ing  p lan  so  we used to  

f inance tha t .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No but  these weren ’ t  spec i f i ca l l y  

l inked to  the  locomot ive  procurement ,  i t  wasn ’ t  –  i t  i s  no t  

l i ke  you cou ld  use th is  money fo r  someth ing  e lse .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank and the  

CDC loan yes were  spec i f i ca l l y  l inked fo r  the  locomot ives .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So I  am –  bu t  I  am ta lk ing  now 

about  Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank –  we l l  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank and CDC were  spec i f i ca l l y  l inked to  locomot ives .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A re  you aware  o f  the  bus iness 

case tha t  was put  to  the  Board  in  Apr i l  2013  fo r  the  

locomot ive  procurement ,  Apr i l  2013?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  am aware  tha t  the  document  ex is t  

bu t  I  d id  no t  go  th rough i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A re  you aware  tha t  –  and were  10 

you aware  tha t  the  pr ice  in  tha t  bus iness p lan  fo r  the  who le 

t ransact ion  was  f i xed  by  the  McK insey Consor t ium a t  

R38b i l l i on?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    As  I  sa id  Cha i rperson I  d id  no t  go  

th rough the  documents  so  I  jus t  heard  the  numbers  

everywhere  spoken about .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bu t  i s  t he  number  tha t  you hear  

spoken about  R38b i l l i on .   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  i s  t rue .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A re  you aware  tha t  tha t  20 

R38b i l l i on  inc luded prov i s ion  fo r  rand hedges.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  am not  aware  tha t  i t  

inc luded fo r  i t s  component  in  ra te .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A re  you aware  tha t  the  

locomot ive  procu rement ,  tha t  one o f  the  te rms  o f  the 
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locomot ive  procu rement  was tha t  the  locomot ive  pr ice  was  

go ing  to  be  f i xed  in  rands,  no t  do l la rs  o r  any o ther  

in te rna t iona l  cur rency?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    As  I  heard  tha t  the  locomot ives  

cont rac t  was Rand based yes I  am aware  o f  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  the  pu rchase pr i ce  was 

rands.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And whatever  happened to  the  

Rand aga ins t  the  do l la r  Transnet  wou ld  pay Rands.  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And a  f i xed  number  in  rands,  i t  

wasn ’ t  l i ke  Rands,  and i f  do l la r  goes s t rong aga ins t  rand  

you have to  pay more  Rands.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  i s  what  I  have lea rn t  and  then I  

commended Transnet  fo r  do ing  tha t  as  a  Treasure r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    A re  you  then aware  o f  a  dec is ion  

f ina l l y  taken by  the  BADC in  I  th ink  i t  was March or  

February,  I  th ink  i t  was February  2014,  February  o r  March 

2014,  to  approve the  procurement  a t  a  p r ice  wh ich  was  20 

then R52b i l l i on?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  jus t  heard  i t  Cha i rpe rson but  I  d id  

no t  ge t  any o f f i c ia l  in fo rmat ion  about  tha t ,  I  jus t  heard  i t  

about  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     And are  you aware  tha t  one o f  
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the  reasons g iven fo r  the  increase f rom 38b i l l i on  in  the 

Apr i l  2013 bus iness case to  the  52b i l l i on  in  March,  

February /March 2014 was tha t  there  was a  need to  p rov ide  

–  because the  purchasers  were  go ing  to  be  bound to  a 

Rand purchase p r ice  the i r  p r ice  they took the  hedg ing  r i sk  

and the  pr i ce  had to  inc lude p rov is ion  fo r  the  pu rchases 

hedg ing  cost .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  am not  c lear  what  the 

quest ion  is .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    There  was an increase in  the  10 

amount  f rom the  bus iness case amount  o f  R38b i l l i on  to  the 

u l t imate  amount  wh ich  s ta r ted  a t  52  bu t  then because o f  

some Transnet  eng ineer ing  cost  became 54 one o f  the  

reasons g iven fo r  tha t  increase was tha t  the  pr ice  to  be  

pa id  by  the  pu rchases wou ld  be  Rand based  so  the  

purchasers  need  to  fac tor  in to  t he i r  purchase p r ice  the i r  

cos t  o f  hedg ing  because they were  the  ones who were  

go ing  to  take  the  Rand exposure .   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  t rue  I  go t  to  learn  tha t  

immedia te ly  I  jo ined tha t  there  i s  a  f i xed  pr i ce  tha t  has  20 

been ag reed and is  a  de terminence o f  a  number  o f  

components  and those some o f  those components  i s  the  

hedges but  I  go t  to  learn  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  i f  we take  a  s tep  back 

Transnet  had p rov ided –  had essent ia l l y  p rov ided fo r  a  
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hedge in  the  38b i l l i on  bus iness case,  i t  was go ing  to  pay  

Rands and i t  had fac tored in to  tha t  38b i l l i on  what  the  

increase to  the  purchase pr i ce  wou ld  be  because i t  wanted 

to  pay Rands not  do l la rs .   Do you accept  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rperson w i thout  know ing the  

de ta i l s  o f  the  bus iness case the  abso lu te  f igu re  in  te rms o f  

the  cor rec tness o f  the  f igure  tha t  was inc luded  in  the  

bus iness case and what  was in  the  f ina l  p r ice  tha t  I  d id  no t  

examine.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  le t ’s  then look  a t  the 10 

52b i l l i on  and 54b i l l i on  in  2014,  tha t  de f in i te ly  had qu i te  a  

la rge  number  bu i l t  in  fo r  the  cost  o f  hedg ing  so  tha t  

Transnet  cou ld  pay in  rands,  no t  in  do l la rs ,  w i l l  you  accept  

tha t?    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  the  pr ice  d i f fe rence was there ,  

so  Transnet  had pa id  what  was the  f ina l  p r ice  conc luded.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  Transnet  accord ing  to  the  

reason ing  o f  the  Board  tha t  adopted tha t  54b i l l i on  or  

adopted a  52b i l l i on  pu rchase p r ice  jus t i f ied  the  pr ice  

because i t  was necessary  to  pay tha t  amount  to  be  ab le  to  20 

have a  purchase pr ice  in  rands wh ich  meant  tha t  the  r i sk  –  

the  rand –  the  fo rex  r i sk  w i th  the  l ocomot ive  prov iders ,  no t  

w i th  Transnet .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson fo r  indu lgence  I  don ’ t  

unders tand the  quest ions.    
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  I  am not  very  good a t  

ask ing  quest ions  about  complex  f inanc ia l  t ransact ions,  

because i t  i s  no t  my s t rength  bu t  in  tha t  54b i l l i on  tha t  was  

adopted o r  sor ry  –  I  keep on say ing  54 ,  in i t ia l l y  BADC was 

52,  bu t  in  tha t  52  there  was an increase,  par t  o f  the  

increase f rom 38  to  52  was jus t i f ied  on  the  bas i s  i f  th is  i s  

the  number  we have to  pay to  make sure  tha t  our  purchase 

pr ice  can be in  rands not  in  do l la rs .   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rperson jus t  need a  b i t  o f  

cor rec t ion ,  I  th ink  ear l ie r  on  I  sa id  I  don ’ t  know much about  10 

the  numbers  tha t  have been spoken about ,  because  I  d idn ’ t  

go  in to  the  de ta i l  o f  the  bus iness case but  what  I  heard  Mr  

Chaska lson speak ing  about  i s  two numbers  54  and  52 and  

38 wh ich  i s  one o f  those is  the  base number.    I  jus t  want  

to  unders tand wh ich  o f  the  two,  52  or  54  we a re  ta lk ing  

about?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  t ru th  the  head ing  was  

i r re levant  to  the  d i f fe rence between 52 and 54,  i t  was 

re levant  to  the  d i f fe rence between 38 and e i ther  52  and 54.   

The u l t imate  pr ice  was 54,  what  the  BADC approved was  20 

52,  the  o ther  two are  re la ted  to  I  th ink  Transnet  

Eng ineer ing  cos ts  wh ich  were  comple te l y  un l inked to  

f inance.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  th ink  I  wanted to  he lp  

the  Commiss ion  because a t  some po in t  in  2018 I  was 
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requested to  look  a t  those numbers ,  so  I  wanted to  he lp  Mr  

Chaska lson on those numbers ,  i s  i t  52  or  54 ,  because the  

one number  tha t  I  was requested a t  some po in t  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in to  when the  Board  o f  Transnet  was 

appo in ted  in  2018 around May in  June they requested a  

presenta t ion  about  the  1064.   Wh i le  I  was not  pa r t  o f  the 

deve lopment  o f  the  bus iness case  and any o the r  numbers  

tha t  a re  around the  1064 the  then CEO at  the  t ime says  

can you he lp  us  to  unpack these  numbers  so  one  o f  the 

numbers  tha t  I  remember  very  we l l  i s  the  38b i l l i on  p lus  10 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  numbers  and 49b i l l i on  p lus  [ ind is t inc t ]  

numbers  so  those are  the  two numbers  tha t  I  can cand id ly  

he lp  you Cha i rpe rson to  t ry  to  unpack some o f  the  numbers 

around tha t ,  bu t  52 ,  54  is  no t  c lear  to  me wh ich  o f  those  

numbers  tha t  i s  why I  can –  I  m ight  be  cagey in  respond ing  

to  those ones,  bu t  here  I  want  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you Mr  Ramosebud i ,  I  

don ’ t  want  to  ge t  in to  the  prec ise  number  whether  i t  was 

49,  50  or  52  i t  i s  no t  re levant  fo r  p resent  purposes .   What  

i s  re levant  though is  tha t  the  purchase p r ice  ag reed by  the 20 

Board  in  2014 inc luded a  component  wh ich  had prov ided 

fo r  pu t t ing  the  fo rex  r i sk  on  the  purchasers ,  in  o ther  words 

i t  was the  purchasers ’ rand hedge cost .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    You are  cor rec t  there  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  in  tha t  purchase pr i ce  
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Transnet  had essent ia l l y  pa id  to  have a  pu rchase p r ice  tha t  

they cou ld  re ly  on  be ing  in  Rands.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    You are  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So the  e f fec t  o f  tak ing  ou t  the 

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan,  wh ich  was denominated in  

do l la rs  was to  undo what  Transnet  had pa id  fo r  by  

requ i r ing  a  purchase pr ice  in  Rands,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  le t  me put  th is  quest ion  to  

you,  i f  you  wanted to  pay fo r  a  rand hedge  to  the  10 

equ iva len t  o f  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs  in  2005 how much  wou ld  

tha t  have cost  you approx imate ly?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Wel l  2 .5  I  remember  a t  the  t ime 

Cha i rperson w i thout  you know abso lu te  f igure  fo r  2 .5b i l l i on  

do l la r  a t  the  t ime we a re  look ing  a t  about  I  remember  

someth ing  in  the  reg ion  o f  about  R30b i l l i on ,  when we were  

d iscuss ing  the  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank,  i t  jus t  ou t  o f  the  numbers  tha t  we band ied  around  

was about  R30b i l l i on  you know,  around there ,  because the  

Rand was between R11/R12 somewhere  there .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No I  am ta lk ing  about  a  Rand  

hedge,  no t  an  exchange ra te ,  I  am ta lk ing  about  a  Rand 

hedge.    You want  –  you have an exposure  o f  2 .5b i l l i on  

do l la rs ,  you want  to  pay tha t  in  Rands,  what  wou ld  i t  have  

cost  you in  te rms  o f  hedg ing  to  be  ab le  to  h i t ch  t ha t  over  
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the  l i fe  o f  the  Transnet ,  o f  the  locomot ive  loan.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson i t  i s  no t  a  –  I  hear  Mr  

Chaska lson what  he  is  ta lk ing  about ,  he  does not  want  a  

t rans la t ion  number,  he  wants  the  cost  cur rency  hedge 

number  wh ich  is  no t  a  s imp le  –  I  cannot  do  a  s imp le  

ca l cu la t ion ,  i t  needs a  mode l  tha t  needs to  be  bu i l t  w i th  

cash f lows and then I  can then exp la in  how much tha t  w i l l  

be  in  to ta l ,  bu t  f rom a  t rans la t ion  po in t  o f  v iew a t  the  t ime 

tha t  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  was a round R30b i l l i on  tha t  i s  the 

s imp le  answer  I  can g ive  now but  what  he  is  look ing  fo r  i s  10 

–  i t  needs a  mode l  to  be  bu i l t  and I  can show the  cash  

f lows and a l l  tha t  because i t  i s  a  15  year  o ld ,  we need 

in te res t  fo r  the  –  the  Ch inese in te res t  ra te  or  the  Do l la r  

in te res t  ra te  a t  the  t ime,  Rand in te res t  ra te ,  work  ou t  what  

the  cash f lows a re  and then what  wou ld  be  the  to ta l  in  

Rand te rms.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  wou ld  you accept  tha t  i f  

Transnet  had th i s  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  exposure  and i t  wanted  

to  conver t  tha t  in to  a  f i xed  rand exposure  a t  cu r ren t  rand  

ra tes  i t  wou ld  have cost  b i l l i ons  o f  rands not  m i l l ions .   The 20 

cost  o f  tha t  hedge wou ld  run  in to  b i l l i ons  o f  rands.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cha i rperson I  guess i f  you  have got  to  

exchange rands,  I  mean do l la r  to  rands o f  course  there  is  a  

cost  to  i t  and the  cost  to  i t  depends on the  d i f fe ren t ia l  o f  

the  in te res t  ra te  be tween the  do l la r  and the  rand so  tha t  i s  
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why I  am say ing  I  cannot  a t  th is  po in t  quant i f y  tha t ,  bu t  a l l  

I  can  say is  o f  course  i t  cos t  money,  even i f  you t rave l  you 

want  to  change  the  rands a t  the  a i rpor t  to  do l la rs ,  i t  w i l l  

cos t  you money.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  on  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs  over  

how long was the  te rm o f  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That  was a  15  year  loan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Over  15  years  and you want  a  

f i xed  rand exposure ,  a re  we ta lk ing  hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  

do l la rs  –  so r ry  hundreds o f  m i l l i ons  o f  rands,  b i l l i ons  o f  10 

rands?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson when we d i scuss the  

fund ing  and in  te rms o f  the  fund ing  p lan  you know which  is  

we l l  documented  in  the  PFMA document ,  o r  Treasury  

regu la t ion  i t  w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  any fund ing  tha t  you need to  

–  i t  needs to  comply  w i th  the  regu la t ion  and fund ing  – 

fund ing  sources are  vast ,  you can fund in  rand,  do l la r,  

Ch inese in  any o ther  count ry  cur rency as  l ong as  i t  meets  

your  requ i rements ,  so  the  f i rs t  de terminant  i s  to  what  

ex ten t  wou ld  tha t  bund l ing  or  fund ing  or  g row ing is  20 

comparab le  to  your  own fund ing ,  tha t  i s  when you  

determine whether  i s  i t  cos t ly  o r  no t  cos t ly  and then can 

you . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  w i th  the  cost  o r  no t  cos t ly,  so  i f  you  look  

a t  the  fund ing  f rom China Deve lopment  Bank Cha i rpe rson 

tha t  was a  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  we on ly  d rew 1 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 172 of 297 
 

bu t  the  cost  o f  tha t  when we changed i t  in to rand was  

rang ing  between . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  p lus  330  bas i s  po in ts  to  360 

bas is  po in ts  a t  a  15  year  loan.    Maybe the  quest ion  is  how 

comparab le  to  tha t  to  a  rand i f  you funded tha t  in  you r  

domest ic  market ,  maybe tha t  quest ion  you can ask  me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  we do know tha t  Transnet  

dec ided tha t  i t  d idn ’ t  want  the  do l la r  r i sk ,  wh ich  is  why i t  

took  the  one b i l l i on  C lub  loan to  negate  some o f  tha t  do l la r  

r i sk ,  i s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    One o f  the  key p r inc ip les  as  a  10 

t reasurer  i s  to  d ivers i f y  you r  sources o f  fund ing .   The o the r  

p r inc ip le  i s  to  make sure  tha t  you b lend your  cost  o f  

fund ing .   B lend ing  your  cost  o f  fund ing  is  to  make sure  tha t  

what  you bor row outs ide  the  count ry  and what  you bor row 

in  the  domest ic  market  the  overa l l  cos t  o f  fund ing  is  w i th in  

your  benchmark ,  and then tha t  i s  exact ly  what  we d id .   We 

had the  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  fac i l i t y  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank,  and then what  we d id  we then sa id  we cannot  bor row 

the  who le  lo t  a t  257  bas i s  po in ts  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] ,  ins tead le t  

us  see what  we can get  in  the  loca l  market  so  tha t  we can  20 

b lend tha t ,  tha t  i s  exact ly  what  we d id .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t  me put  to  you what  my 

concern  is .   Transnet  had a  Rand exposure  fo r  wh ich  i t  had  

pa id  b i l l i ons  o f  rands in  the  or ig ina l  bus iness case,  and in  

the  cont rac t  tha t  i t  conc luded  w i th  the  locomot ive  
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manufac ture rs ,  you w i l l  accept  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes I  do .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  then  took the  Rand exposure  

and conver ted  2 .5b i l l i on  o f  tha t  in to  a  do l la r  exposure  w i th  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank,  you accept  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Which  was  swapped back in to  Rand 

Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes a t  a  cost  each t ime.   

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Maybe the  quest ion  is  how re la t i ve  to  

the  bench mark  in  your  domest ic  market  cou ld  you have 10 

done 2 .5b i l l i on  Do l la r.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:     That  may be a  quest ion  bu t  why 

wou ld  you when you have a  Rand  exposure  bo r row,  ge t  a  

2 .5b i l l i on  fac i l i t y  and then a  few months la te r  swap one 

b i l l i on  o f  tha t  2 .5b i l l i on  fac i l i t y  back in to  a  rand  –  in to  a  

rand exposure ,  why wou ld  you go f rom rand 2 .5b i l l i on  

do l la rs  back to  1 .5b i l l i on  do l la rs  and the  equ iva len t  o f  one  

b i l l i on  do l la rs  in  Rand in  a  space o f  a  few months.   What  

log ic  was there?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rperson  tha t  i s  no t  how i t  works .   20 

We had 2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  fac i l i t y  w i th  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank,  ou t  o f  the  2 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  fac i l i t y  w i th  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank we dec ided tha t  we w i l l  on ly  d raw 

1 .5b i l l i on  do l la r,  we w i l l  leave the  one b i l l i on  do l la r  as  a  

s tandby fac i l i t y.   
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 However  tha t  one  b i l l i on  do l la r  we  w i l l  rep lace i t  in  

the  domest ic  market  w i th  a  rand equ iva len t ,  so  tha t  do l la r  

was not  swapped  back i n to  do l la r  and  back in to  rand.   The  

on ly  one wh ich  was swapped f rom do l la r  i s  1 .5b i l l i on  do l la r  

wh ich  we have d rawn and we swap  i t  back in to  Rand.   Why 

d id  we do tha t  Cha i rperson?  We d id  tha t  because South  

A f r i can regu la t ions,  Reserve  Bank Regu la t ions does not  

a l lowed S ta te  Owned Ent i t ies  even compan ies  in  South  

A f r i ca  to  t rade in  hard  cur rency so  you need to  swap back 

in to  Rand.   And why d id  we do tha t?    We needed to  make 10 

sure  tha t  we a f fo rd  an  oppor tun i ty  to  pay our  own  

ob l iga t ions in  te rms o f  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

tha t  we cont racted wi th CNR and CSR.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  what you cont racted for and 

what you paid was a pr ice in rands? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Precisely t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So i f  you had not  f i rst  taken out  

the dol lar exposure and then converted the dol lar exposure 

back into the rand exposure you could have borrowed in 

rands at  the beginning to pay for the locomot ives? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chairperson I  have been in th is  market  

for more than 25 years.   South Afr ican markets is not  deep 

and l iquid to an extent  that  i t  can provide in one part icular 

per iod of  t ime an inst i tut ion R30 bi l l ion at  a go.   So this 

market  is not  that  l iqu id.   To that  extent  for South Afr ican 
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inst i tut ions to  divers i fy  thei r  sources of  funding they need to 

explore other sources of  funding.   Mul t ip le inst i tut ions – we 

have seen government in the last  three couple of  months 

they went to  IMF and the World Bank and the Nat ional  – and 

the New Development  Bank.   I t  is  to divers i fy  the sources of  

funding.   That  is exact ly what we were t ry ing to do as 

Transnet at  that  point .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Why then pay b i l l ions of  rands in  

your  purchase to be able to pay in  rands not  dol lars i f  you 

are going to have to go and borrow dol lars to pay anyway? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  do not  understand Chair  – the quest ion 

Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  you say 49 – 49 bi l l ion.   Let  

us use your  49 b i l l ion number.   That  included a component 

which was the purchase – which was the manufacturer ’s 

hedge cost  included bi l l ions of  rands in  that  pr ice which were 

what the manufacturers demanded to be wi l l ing to sel l  

locomot ives in rand not  dol lars.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is t rue and i t  has to be that  way.   I t  

has to be that  way Chairperson.   Why because Transnet at  20 

the t ime they wanted to f ix their  obl igat ion.   Should they not  

f ix thei r  obl igat ion and leave thei r  pr ices in dol lars they not 

have appointed – afforded to pay – they were st i l l  paying 

even at  our next  – next  generat ion be paying for that .   

Instead what they did is  to  f ix the rand amount  of  the 
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contract  so that  they can pay i t  in rand wi thout  the 

f luctuat ions and currency.   One part icular example that  I  – 

maybe just  to  share i t  is we hear most ly  of  inst i tut ions that  

have borrowed – they went to buy arms deal  in dol lars and 

that  number today is [00:02:29]  because they did not  f ix in  

rand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  agree wi th you completely i t  

made a lot  of  sense to – for Transnet to requi re a rand 

purchase pr ice even i t  meant that  the purchases hedge cost  

would put  bi l l ions of  rands onto the purchase pr ice.  But  10 

having done that  i t  negated that  benef i t  by going out  and 

borrowing in dol lars which exposed i t  to the dol lar – the rand 

dol lar f luctuat ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  do not  see i t  that  way Chai rperson.  

Because the manufacturer pr ices in  rand f ixed Transnet goes 

and borrow in  dol lars and f ix i t  in rand and then there is  a  

match currency payment.   I  do not  see the negat ive of  the 

t ransact ion that  has been done with  that  one.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  has to repay China 

Development Bank in dol lars is that  not  correct? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Because of  the cross currencies 

t ransact ions that  was done with the bank Transnet pays the 

bank rand and the bank pays China Development Bank 

dol lars.   So there is no exposure to Transnet  on that  

part icular t ransact ion.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Transnet had to pay for a cross 

currency swap to be able to pay back – to pay rands to get  

dol lars.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I t  is a normal t ransact ion in the market  

and they are there.   The cost  associated wi th i t  they are very 

easi ly t ransparent  you can look at .   I  do think i t  is  

astronomical  f igures that  have been paid for for the cross 

currency.   The hedge that  was done at  337 basis points not  

even a single inst i tut ion could have afforded to f inance that  

t ransact ion at  that  level  at  the point  in t ime.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A l r ight  Mr Ramosebudi  let  me tel l  

you where I  want to go on th is.   Can I  take you to page 729?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   700? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   729.   In fact  start  at  727.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you wi l l  see that  on the 14 Apri l  

2015 middle of  the page to Wandross Gebresel lassi  that  was 

the man who went  wi th you to China is that  – or one of  them 

went wi th you to China emai led Eric Wood another member 

of  the China delegat ion saying:  20 

“Hi  Er ic,  p lease f ind at tached the draw down 

schedule under 1.5 bi l l ion China 

Development Bank loan Column G in the 

at tached Excel  spread sheet  provides the 

drawn down schedule.   Please note that  an 
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exchange rate of  R12 to the dol lar is used to 

determine the draw down schedule.   Regards 

Ted. ”  

 And i f  you go to the next  page 728 you wi l l  see the 

draw down schedule that  Mr Gebresel lassi  had produced.   

Do you see that /  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  can see i t  Mr Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then let  us go back up to 727 and 

you wi l l  see that  on the same day at  3:20 in the af ternoon 

Eric Wood forwarded message with  the draw down schedule 10 

to Sal im Essa.   Did Sal im Essa have any business deal ing 

wi th th is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am not  aware of  that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  us go down to 729 now.  And 

hal fway through the page we see Sal im Essa’s response to 

Er ic Wood.  Do you see the emai l  f rom Sal im Essa 15 Apri l  

2015 10:39 am to Eric Wood? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  see that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is  cc’d  to someone Walemse  or 

Walemse@gmai l .com do you know whose address that  is? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  do not  know that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry you say you do not  know? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  do not  know that  Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  I  put  i t  to you that  i t  is Mr Ashok 

Narayan – Ashok Narayan do you know Ashok Narayan is? 

mailto:Walemse@gmail.com
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  do not  know them. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hang on one second Mr Chaskalson I  th ink 

I  have lost  you.   I  thought you were at  a certain page and 

discovered that  I  d id not  have the r ight  page – just  te l l  me 

again.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   729.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh 729 okay I  have got  i t  now.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And we are on the second hal f  of  

the page of  729 Chai r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is an emai l  f rom Sal im Essa to 

Er ic Wood copied to Walemse@gmai l .com and in due course 

we wi l l  br ing evidence to show that  th is is  Ashok Narayan.   I t  

is has got  the same subject  as the previous emai l  and the 

body of  the emai l  says:  

“Si r  p lease add a column for what  our fees 

wi l l  be at  each draw down please.”  

 Was Sal im Essa due any fees in relat ion to the China 

Development Bank? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am not  aware of  that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  us go to the top of  the page 

st i l l  on the 15 Apr i l  2015 Eric Wood repl ies to Sal im Essa 

and Ashok Narayan and he says:  

“Wi l l  do but  please understand this is  only 

mailto:Walemse@gmail.com
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our f i rst  shot  a t  a proposed draw down 

schedule.   This st i l l  has to be agreed by both 

Transnet and CDB before i t  becomes the 

f inal  agreed cash f lows.   Regards Eric  

Wood.”  

 Can we then go down to page 731 towards the foot  of  

the page – there is another emai l  st r ing.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   700? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   731.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am here Chai r  – Chai rperson.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And do you see an emai l  f rom 

Louis Skut ter to Wandross Gebresel lassi  and Eric Wood 17 

Apri l  2015 09:41 am.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you know who Louis Skut ter is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja he used to work for Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   And i t  is copied to someone 

cal led Grant  Joseph do you know who he is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  do not  know Grant  Joseph.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Any Mr Skut ter says:  20 

“Hi  Er ic,  p lease see the fee table below. I  

have used two methods for reconci l iat ion 

purposes.   Del ta  of  each draw down as a 

loan t imes 15 basis points and 15 basis 

points on the outstanding nominal  of  each 
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draw down as a loan.   The lat ter is s l ight ly 

lower but  more accurate. ”  

 And then do you see a table underneath on page 

732? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And do you want to expla in to the 

Chair  what th is table – what th is table does? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   This table shows the cash f lows draw 

down per month f rom the 1 May 2015 down to the 2 May 

2017 in dol lar terms and what the rand equivalent  o f  that  is  10 

going to be.   So that  is what the draw down are on the f i rst  

three columns. And then the next  columns shows the – the 

basis points that  they have been paid on a PV basis for the 

loan which was – here I  see two numbers.   One is 166 

mi l l ion the other one I  see 175 mi l l ion.   And then the last  two 

columns also show the 15 basis points on the outstanding 

numbers or the outstanding not ional  numbers to be drawn.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the PV and the FV are present  

value and future value.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  let  us look at  Del ta t imes 15 

basis points PV.   Do you see that  total  at  the bot tom 

166 019 505? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  see that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Does that  f igure r ing a bel l  to you? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja I  see i t  is  equivalent  to  you know 

without  comparing the exact  numbers i t  looks l ike the fee 

that  was owed by Regiments on this  – on the loan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Were you aware at  th is stage 

that  Regiments was going to earn a fee of  R166 mi l l ion on 

the loan?  I  am talking about 17 Apri l  2015.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   17 Apri l  2015 no I  was not  aware.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   You were not .   Can we go back up 

to 731 – the top of  731?  I t  is Sal im Essa he has seen the 

table and later in the day he wri tes to Er ic Wood.  10 

“Hi  Er ic th is is for  one stream what about  the 

other two.   The $1 bi l l ion CPI and the hedge 

on the $1.5 bi l l ion.   Thanks S. ”  

 Can you tel l  the Chair  what he is saying there?  What  

– do you understand what he is referr ing to there? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   So here he is ta lk ing about  the two 

t ransact ions that  are outstanding.   There is $1 bi l l ion CPI 

and the hedge on the $1.5 bi l l ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And how do those f i t  in?  Do you 

know how they f i t  in? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Come again.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you know how they f i t  in?  Do 

you know what the $1 bi l l ion CPI was and what the hedge on 

the $1.5 bi l l ion was? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  wi l l  not  know which one was this one.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you do not  know what he is 

referr ing to? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  – wel l  let  us go down.  Wel l  

before we go down.  Would i t  –  let  me put  to you what I  read 

there.   Sal im Essa has seen the table produced by Louis 

Skut ter wi th i ts draw schedule and the fee for Regiments PV 

on Del ta t ime 15 basis points at  R166 mi l l ion and then he 

says but  th is is just  one of  three t ransact ions we are going to  

do what about  the other two.   The $1 bi l l ion CPI  and the 10 

hedge on the $1.5 bi l l ion.   Is that  a fa i r  – is that  how you 

read  i t  too? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is how I  read i t  Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So he is  saying where are my 

other two fees is that  not  what he is  saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is what I  see here yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   And were you aware that  

Sal im Essa was going to get  any fees in  relat ion to th is 

t ransact ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  am not  aware of  that .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So let  us go to page 735 and i t  

starts  wi th an Essa emai l  but  that  response – there is a  l ine 

that  says:  

“On 18 Apri l  2015 at  9:31 Eric Wood wrote.   

Wi l l  get  the team to draf t  the draw down 
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schedule for the ZAR syndicated loan and 

send through. ”  

 That  – what is the ZAR syndicated loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Probably he is ta lk ing about the – the 

ant ic ipated club loan that  was the $1 b i l l ion that  we were 

talk ing about here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Mr Wood knew that  there was 

a club loan coming and the c lub loan would at t ract  a fee 

would i t  not? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is what i t  is yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   And Sal im Essa’s response 

at  932 on the 18 Apri l .  

“Cool  i f  they can spl i t  a l l  three st reams 

please. ”  

 So he wants to see each of  the three t ransact ions 

wi th a fee in respect  of  each st ream is that  not  correct?  Is 

that  not  how you read i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is how I  read i t  yes Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  take you then to page 595?  

And that  is the spread sheet  that  we discussed yesterday in 20 

re lat ion to the fees that  went in to Regiments and out  to  

var ious shel l  ent i t ies cont rol led by Sal im Essa.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Page 595 you see the very top l ine 

on that  l ist  i t  says:  
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“2 June 15 TRXF 00000 1 China 

Development Bank. ”  

 You see that  l ine? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  see that  l ine.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   The amount inclusive of  VAT 

R189 200 – R189 240 000.00.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  see that  Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then i f  you go across you wi l l  

see an ent ry under Albert ime R147 607 607 200.   Do you 

know who Albert ime are? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No we st i l l  started ta lk ing about i t  

yesterday I  do not  know who Albert ime is.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Wel l  Albert ime is  run by 

someone cal led Mr Kuvan Moodley and he would usual ly  

take a smal l  cut  relat ive to the cut  taken by Mr Essa’s 

company.   So i f  we look for instance down the table i t  says:  

“For sure or Hustaf  or Magool ”  

 You wi l l  see that  the corresponding ent ry on 

Albert ime is usual ly 10% of  the ent ry for the cut  of  the – by 

the shel l  company nominated by Mr Essa.  But  in th is  20 

part icular case Albert ime took the pr imary cut  and the 

secondary cut  and i f  you look at  that  number 147 607 000 

inclusive of  VAT you wi l l  see that  i t  comes to 75% plus 3% - 

78% of  what Transnet paid Regiments.   And in due course 

evidence wi l l  be shown how 122 mi l l ion plus VAT of  th is 147 
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mi l l ion was laundered onto Sahara Computers.   Were you 

aware that  – of  the fee that  Transnet  was going to pay 

Regiments for the China Development Bank 122mi l l ion would 

go to Sahara Computers? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  was not  aware of  that  Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Let  us look at  what was happening 

above ground in  relat ion to  these t ransact ions as opposed to 

in the emai ls between Mr Essa and Mr Wood.  Can we go 

now to page 300?  And in fact  i f  we can go – yes page 300 is  

correct .    10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am at  page 300.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there you wi l l  see an emai l  

f rom Mr Wood addressed on the 22 Apri l  and I  just  want to 

remind you again of  the dates of  the emai l  correspondence 

that  we have previously been going through that  was 15 to  

18 Apri l .   But  now we have gone forward to 22 Apri l  and Mr 

Wood wri te to Anoj  Singh,  yoursel f  and he copies Mr 

Gebresel lassi  at  Regiments and he says:  

“Hi  Anoj  and Phetolo I  have at tached the JP 

doc wi th discussed updates.   Regards Eric. ”  20 

 Do you recal l  get t ing this emai l  f rom Mr Wood? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  cannot recal l  but  I  – I  see i t  came to 

me so i t  means I  d id receive i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  you go a page down you wi l l  see 

what the memo is  that  he at tached.   I t  is dated 21 Apri l  2015 
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and what i t  is is essent ia l ly a fa i r ly detai led i f  possibly 

spurious mot ivat ion for paying Regiments a success fee in 

re lat ion to the China Development  Bank of  15 basis points 

which wi l l  correspond to 166.3 mi l l ion.   You wi l l  see that  at  

page 303.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you… 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  see i t  here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes do you.   Do you remember 

that?  I  mean do you remember receiving a mot ivat ion for 10 

Regiments to pay – to be paid 166.3 mi l l ion in relat ion to the 

China Development Bank? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  guess i t  came to me I  might  have 

received i t  but  I  do not  remember of  – th is one.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  one second Mr Chaskalson.   Yes we 

may proceed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   I f  we then – wel l  

-   go to page 339 there is a document which bears your  

signature and maybe i f  I  can take you to the signature i t  is at  20 

page 347 i t  is not  just  your signature.   I t  has your signature,  

Gary Peter ’s s ignature,  Anoj  Singh’s signature and 

Siyabonga Gama’s signature and what i t  is is a mot ivat ion to  

do two things.    

 The one is to pay Regiments this 166 mi l l ion and the 
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other is to appoint  JP Morgan on conf inement to do var ious 

t ransact ions in relat ion to the China Development Bank loan.  

 Let  us start  a t  1.1.   Approve the conf ined 

appointment of  JP Morgan to hedge the f inancial  r isks,  

interest  rate credi t  and currency r isk emanat ing f rom the US 

Dol lar 1.5 bi l l ion China Development Bank load back into 

ZAR.  

 So Transnet now wants a rand exposure not  a dol lar  

exposure a l though or ig inal ly i t  had only a rand exposure and 

i t  is going to pay JP Morgan to orchestrate that .  10 

 1.2  Approve the conf ined appointment of  JP Morgan 

to lead and underwri te the equivalent  syndicated ZAR loan of  

$1.5 bi l l ion.   That  would become the club loan is that  not  

correct?  Mr Ramosebudi .   That  was what eventual ly became 

the c lub loan.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Approve the contract  extension 

f rom 99.5 mi l l ion to 265.5 mi l l ion for the appointment of  

Regiments Capi tal  for t ransact ion advisory serv ices and 

support  to  Transnet on the 1064 locomot ive t ransact ion.  20 

 So that  di fference f rom 99.5 for the advice that  had 

been giving Transnet  in relat ion to the locomot ives 

procurement to 265 was going to  be the 166 mi l l ion that  

would be paid to Regiments and laundered out  v ia A lbert ime 

to Sahara Computers in respect  of  the China Development  
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Bank loan.   Is that  where – is that  the di fference the 166 

mi l l ion there?  Is that  – that  explains the di fference between 

99.5 and … 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes i t  increases 166 mi l l ion yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Can I  ask you – let  us go to  

1.1 and 1.2.   Did JP Morgan ul t imately complete the task in 

re lat ion to hedging the f inancial  r isk interest  rate credi t  and 

currency r isk in re lat ion to the China Development Bank 

loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes they did Chai r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So they did these cross-currencies 

swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   They d id Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Did they lead and underwri te the 

equivalent  syndicated ZAR loan of  1.5 bi l l ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No they d id not .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see.   Let  us maybe see why that  

happened.  Why they did not .   Can I  take you to page 384.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Page? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   384.     20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am on page 384.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   384.   There you wi l l  see an emai l  

f rom yoursel f  at  Transnet  to yoursel f  and copied to Er ic  

Wood and i t  says:  

“Let ter to JP Morgan” 
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 And i t  is a draf t  let ter because obviously i t  is not  

being sent  to JP Morgan i t  is being sent  to yoursel f  and Eric 

Wood and i t  says:  

“Dear Mark,  re coordinat ion of  ZAR 

syndicat ion loan and the br idging faci l i ty.   

Further to your previous engagements and 

the request  to coordinate the ZAR 

syndicat ion loan wi th Regiments Capi tal  

Transnet has real ised that  i t  made a wrong 

assumpt ion that  the lead coord inator wi l l  10 

provide the underwri t ing faci l i ty on the 

balance of  the US 1 dol lar – 1 bi l l ion.   Now 

the expectat ion is  not  in l ine wi th JP Morgan 

posi t ion Transnet  has decided i t  w i l l  pursue 

the current  offer received f rom the bank of  

China and any other avai lab i l i ty faci l i ty and 

balance wi l l  be drawn f rom the US 1 dol lar  

bi l l ion standby faci l i ty therefore the 

coordinat ion of  the ZAR loan wi l l  not  be 

requi red.   Transnet therefore regret  to  20 

terminate the coordinat ion arrangement of  

the ZAR syndicat ion loan wi th JP Morgan.”  

 Do you recal l  wr i t ing this emai l  or  wri t ing this draf t  

emai l  because i t  was not  yet  sent  to JP Morgan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  was wr i t ing on behal f  of  the Group 
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CFO yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And the Group CFO was Anoj  

Singh? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you explain to the Chai r  what  

was being said here? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   In the simplest  terms Chairperson the 

previous memo was saying we approve the – on 1.2 on page 

339 i t  says:  

“We approve the conf inement of  JP Morgan 10 

for the lead and underwri t ing of  the 

equivalent  syndicated ZAR loan of  1.5 bi l l ion 

dol lar. ”  

 But  th is let ter was terminat ing that  conf inement.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  why was i t  terminat ing the 

conf inement? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I t  is because there was a 

misunderstanding wi th JP Morgan when we were to advance 

the discussion wi th the underwri t ing of  the- of  the 1 bi l l ion 

dol lars you know syndicated loan.   In rand terms JP Morgan 20 

was not  in capaci ty to do that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry I  d id not  hear that .   JP 

Morgan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Was not  in – did not  have the capaci ty  

to do – underwri te  that  1.5 bi l l ion dol lar.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So JP Morgan could not  underwri te 

a 1.5 bi l l ion faci l i ty.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   1 bi l l ion dol lar actual ly yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   1.5 bi l l ion dol lar fac i l i ty in rands.   

What is interest ing there is what you say in th is draf t .    

“Transnet  has decided i t  wi l l  pursue the 

current  offer  received f rom the Bank of  China 

and any other avai labi l i ty faci l i ty and balance 

wi l l  be drawn f rom the US 1 bi l l ion dol lar 

standby faci l i ty.   Therefore the coordinat ion 10 

of  the ZAR loan wi l l  not  be requi red.”  

 So you are saying there we are not  going to do – use 

any rands as an equivalent  for that  1 bi l l ion standby faci l i ty  

and we do not  need anyone to coord inate i t  we wi l l  go wi th  

our 1 bi l l ion dol lar  faci l i ty.   Is that  not  what you are saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No that  is not  what i t  says here.   What i t  

says here is that  we wi l l  pursue the current  offer that  we 

have received f rom China Development Bank – sorry China 

Bank – Bank of  China not  China Development Bank.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Bank of  China.  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   So China Development Bank are two 

inst i tut ions.   So we wi l l  pursue that  and any other  that  is 

avai lab le you know.   So what we then did was that  the 

persons or the companies that  was appointed wi th JP 

Morgan at  the t ime we wi l l  pursue other al ternat ive 
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opportuni t ies since JP Morgan was not  wi l l ing to underwri te 

that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes but  i t  is – but  in that  second 

paragraph – or second paragraph you are not  ta lk ing about  

underwri t ing you talk ing about coordinat ing.   You say:  

“Therefore the coordinat ion of  the ZAR loan 

wi l l  not  be requi red.”  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   From JP Morgan yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   From JP Morgan.   Was somebody 

else going to do that  coordinat ion? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes who was that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   In th is case i t  was Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i f  th is draf t  is being wri t ten by 

you to Regiments to set t le or was i t  wr i t ten on the inst ruct ion 

of  Anoj  S ingh? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The terminat ion of  the coordinat ion,  

yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The terminat ion of  the 20 

coordinat ion agreement or arrangement wi th JP Morgan was 

Anoj  Singh’s decision,  you say? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  was Transnet ’s decision because 
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Dicken(?) Owen(?) was no longer offer ing the. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Who at  Transnet took that  

decision? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  is Transnet at  the t ime. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  I  am asking which individuals 

at  Transnet  was the one who took that  decision? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Anoj  Sing.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Anoj  Sing,  yes.   And this let ter,  

th is draf t .   Did you just  f rame i t  was i t  f ramed in consul tat ion 

wi th Anoj  Sing? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  wrote i t  and checked with him. 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then,  i f  we go down to 386,  we 

see another emai l  which you wri te  f rom Transnet f rom your  

Transnet address formal ly to Er ic,  saying:  

“Hi  Er ic.   Do you mind reviewing this as per Anoj ’s  

requisi t ion.”  

 And underneath,  on page 387,  there is let ter that  is  

going to be send to JP Morgan,  terminat ing thei r  

appointment.    

 And i t  is essent ia l ly the same.  In fact ,  I  am not  sure i f  20 

there are mater ia l  or there is no mater ia l  d i fferences but  i t  

corresponds to your  draf t  that  you sent  to Er ic Wood a l i t t le  

whi le ear l ier.   Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is correct ,  Chai r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The previous day.   I  am sorry.   I t  
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is 8 June and 9 June.   And was the appointment of  JP 

Morgan then terminated? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  i t  was terminated.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you recal l  when i t  was 

terminated? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot  recal l  but  i t  should be 

immediately af ter,  you know, af ter they received the let ter.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Short ly thereaf ter.   I t  was short ly  

af ter 8 June.   8 June or thereabouts.   Would that  be a fai r  

assumpt ion? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  Mr Ramosebudi .   I  just  want 

to get  the date.   So i t  would be shor t ly af ter 8 June? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  I  said short ly af ter they 

received the let ter  being terminated.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we go to . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry.   Just  to  conf i rm.  So the let ter  

carrying that  page 385,  is i t  draf ted by you Mr Ramosebudi  

or Mr Singh. . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .who then does the let ter at  387? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay al r ight .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can we go to  three. . .   Sorry,  to 

444? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And that  is an emai l  f rom Eric 

Wood to yoursel f ,  copied to what was Gabro(?) Selasi (?) and 

Nswana(?) Mwango(?).   Who is Nswana Mwango? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  is one of  the employees of  

Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Employee of  Regiments.   

Thursday,  27 August  2015  A memo in respect  of  Regiments ’ 

ro le on 1064 Locomot ive Club Loan Funding.   And the body 

of  the emai l  says:  10 

“Hi  Phetolo.   As discussed,  I  have at tached the 

requested 1064 Club Loan memo.  Please let  me 

know your thoughts.   Regard Eric. ”  

 And then what fo l lows is a memorandum that  is  be ing 

draf ted in the name, in your name,  to go to Gary Peter.   And 

the subject  is. . .   Sorry,  that  is at  445.   Advisory support . . .    

 Sorry,  let  me take a step back.   Do you recal l  receiv ing 

this emai l  wi th  a draf t  memorandum from Erich Wood on or 

around 27 August  2015? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  guess so.   I  cannot just  remember.   I t  20 

has been some t ime.  But  I  might  have received i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You have got  no reason to bel ieve 

you did not  receive i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  said I  might  have received i t .   I  

cannot remember.   I t  is a long t ime ago.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  but  I  mean, is there anything 

in here that  makes you think that  you did not  receive i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  am not  saying I  d id not  receive i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   So there is th is draf t  in your  

name to Gary Peter.   And was i t  the pract ise of  Regiments to  

wri te draf ts in your name to go to other Transnet  execut ives? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  i t  is a t radi t ion in Transnet that  you,  

you know, as a head of  a funct ion,  al l  memos wi l l  come f rom 

my name as a compi ler.   And then,  where you have worked 

wi th other teams, they also have to come in and they wi l l  be 10 

there,  support ing or recommending and then we wi l l  

recommending upwards.   That  is how – i t  is a t radi t ion,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And is th is a memorandum, 

essent ia l ly,  a mot ivat ion for Regiments to  be paid a fee of  

R 75 3 mi l l ion for  rais ing the Club loan?  Is that  what i t  is?  

You wi l l  see that  at  the bot tom l ine at  page 448.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  i t  looks l ike i t  is some mot ivat ion,  

yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And you wi l l  see,  i f  you go 

back up to page 447,  there is  a table suggest ing that  20 

Regiments has saved Transnet R 763 mi l l ion in th is exerc ise.   

You wi l l  recal l  or just  remember that  number 763 mi l l ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  then down a page.. .   Sorry,  

down to page 453.    
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there you wi l l  see an emai l  

f rom yoursel f  to Er ic Wood on the same date,  27 August .   

And i t  says:  

“Hi  Er ic.   I f  a quest ion ar ises,  what is your  

comparable pr ic ing on the current  debt  that  Transnet  

ra ised?  Would i t  not  be bet ter to compare this wi th  

the current  China development  loan than what would 

JP Morgan achieve?” 

 What are you saying there? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  here I  am saying,  I  th ink i t  is bet ter 

to compare apples wi th apples than comparing apples wi th 

oranges.   So i f  you look at  the in i t ia l  proposal  that  was 

submit ted by JP Morgan,  i t  was a ten year bond which is  

bul let  and the pr ic ing was about – minus or  plus 316 above 

basis points.    

 So i f  you look at  the ten year bul let  bond pr ice at  that  

level  and a 15-year wi th  a f ive year grace per iod in 

amort iz ing,  these two are not  the same 

 This other one is  amort iz ing.   So i t  means i t  is paying 20 

down to the matur i ty.   The other one is not  paying down to 

the matur i ty.   You only pay at  the end of  the per iod.    

 So the pr ices are not  – they are not  comparing apple 

wi th apple.   So what I  said is.   Take the current  exist ing bond 

loan wi th China Development Bank which is 15-year,  f ive 
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year  grace per iod and compare wi th that ,  so that  at  least  we 

compare apples wi th apples.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So can I  then take you down to 

page 465 because i t  seems that  Regiments took heed of  your  

suggest ion.   There you wi l l  see an emai l  f rom Nswana(?) 

Mwango(?) dated 2 September 2015 addressed to yoursel f  

and i t  has got  a revised fee.    

 And you wi l l  see much of  the narrat ive is st i l l  the same 

but  i f  you got  to page 469,  there is a new table.   The table 

that  you wanted.    10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oka you can go 469.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    469? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [No audible reply]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  see this .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there you wi l l  see that  the 

saving that  you said was the bet ter measure,  is not  

R 763 mi l l ion which is in the table below, i t  is R 502 mi l l ion.   

I  want  to say the al leged. . .  

 You wi l l  see that  when you – they did the compar ison 20 

which you said they should do.   They came up wi th a number 

of  R 502 mi l l ion and not  R 763 mi l l ion.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Is that  correct? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  see that .   Then i t  must .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  you recal l  receiv ing this 

memorandum? 

[Speakers are not  c lear. ]    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    . . .say someth ing,  yes,  but  -  I  have seen 

this memo.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And the date of  the memo, i t  

comes under cover of  an emai l  of  2 September,  i f  we go back 

to 465.   2 September.   And al l  of  these savings that  we are 

talk ing about are savings that  the good people at  Regiments 

have made for Transnet .   Can we go down to 11 September 10 

and 486? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    486? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Oh, sorry.   Before we get  

there.   Can we go to 472? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  we start  at  the middle of  the 

page, we see that  same emai l  f rom Nswana Mwango that  

was sent  to you on 2 September 2015 with  the rev ised fee 

memo that  that  emai l  wi th the revised fee memo has been 

forwarded by Eric Wood to Asher(?) Kenar ian(?)  20 

miwal lance@gmai l .com(?) is Asher Kenar ian.  

 Do you know who Asher Kenarian is? 

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    He was a former advisor to the 
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Premier of  the Free State,  who later went on to do big things 

in the Gupta Enterpr ise.   I f  we go down to page 486.   This is 

af ter Asher Kenarian has received the revised memo.   

 We now see a document that  you sent  to someone cal led 

– an emai l  that  you sent  to someone cal led Betsy van 

Heerden on 11 September 2015.  And you say underneath i t :   

Prepare for s ign off .   

 And i t  says:  

“Request  to appoint  Tr i l l ian (04). ”  

 And what i t  is,  i t  is  a  memorandum is in Siyabonga’s 10 

name this t ime at  page 487.   And i t  now says:  

“Request  to appoint  Tr i l l ian as lead manager in  

R 18 bi l l ion in club loan. ”  

 Who were Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Come again? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Who were Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Tr i l l ian were the Supply Development of  

Regiments . . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Have you met anyone f rom 20 

Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Who? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Daniel  Roy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Daniel  Roy? 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 202 of 297 
 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And did you meet anybody else 

f rom Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did you meet anyone other than 

Mr Roy f rom Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Daniel  Roy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So Mr Roy was the only person 

f rom Tr i l l ian that  you have met? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    When was this work on the club 

loan done? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The work on the club loan was done on 

the – the t ime I  jo ined in March of  2015 as part  of  that  

delegat ion to go to China later.   I  am not  sue i f  i t  was March 

or  Apri l .    

 One of  the things we went for was to negot iate wi th  

China Development Bank for the sp l i t  of  the 2.5 bi l l ion Dol lar 

so that  the part  of  the 2.5 bi l l ion is used for syndicated 

Zalo(?) which is the ul t imate club loan.    20 

 So through that  per iod,  Regiments were working on the 

Zalo immediately when the terminat ion wi th JP Morgan.  So 

there was this fu l l  speed-on on the work of  the club loan to  

syndicate wi th the local  inst i tut ion.  

 And some of  the those is per as the foreign inst i tut ion at  
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Bank of  China but  we were talk ing to Bank of  China here in 

the country unt i l  there was part  where Tr i l l ian came in before 

we f inal ised the t ransact ion,  were part  of  the t ransact ion and 

unt i l  we paid out  the club loan to Tr i l l ian.   That  is  when the 

t ransact ion was done.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So when was the f i rst  t ime you 

met Mr Roy? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot remember very wel l  but  around 

July/August .   Somewhere there.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    July/August .   And when was the 10 

f i rst  t ime you heard of  Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink i t  was the simi lar t ime because 

he cal led me and he said:   Let  us meet and discuss what you 

are tel l ing me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Let  us meet and discuss. . .?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Because he was tel l ing me that  he was 

part  of  the t ransact ion.   I  said:   Come in so that  we discuss 

this and so that  we are on the same page.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  take you back to pages. . .   

Wel l ,  let  us go back to page 444.   That  is the emai l  f rom Eric  20 

Wood, 27 August  2015 with a detai led memo suggest ing that  

Regiments should be paid this fee of  R 76.3 mi l l ion.    

 And then on page 453 – and there is no ment ion of  

Tr i l l ian in that  memo.  At  page 453 you respond to Er ic Wood 

and you say:  
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“ I f  a quest ion ar ise what your comparable pr ic ing on 

the current  debt  at  Transnet raised,  would i t  not  be 

bet ter to compare th is wi th you current  CBD l ine 

than what would JP Morgan achieve?” 

 You do not  ment ion Tr i l l ian on 27 August .    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there is no ment ion of  Tr i l l ian 

in the memo.  At  that  stage,  the fee is going to Regiments.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    When d id you f i rst  decide the fee 10 

should go to Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    When did you decide that  you 

were going to make a mot ivat ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  d id not  decide.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Oh,  that  you were going to make a 

mot ivat ion that  the fee should go to  Tr i l l ian.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  d id not  make a – I  d id not  decide to 

make a payment to Tr i l l ian.   I  th ink dur ing that  t ime, there 

was a discussion in terms of  the requirements that 20 

Regiments needs to meet in  terms of  the suppl ier 

development.    

 As part  of  the appointment of  Regiments,  they also had 

to meet the supply developments.   I  th ink they were 

discussing around that  t ime, which they did not  inc lude me at  
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the t ime.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  who would they have 

included? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They would have included,  at  the t ime, 

the CFO which was Anoj  Singh and Dereck Peter who was in  

the procurement,  the procurement  off icer  at  the t ime and 

Eric.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So Regiments had to f ind i tsel f  a 

supply development partner? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  was a requirement  for the 10 

appointment of  Regiments,  yes.   Of  the supply development.   

So there was some push-back f rom Transnet in  paying 

Regiments for  what they were requi red to br ing in  the supply 

development.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And presumably,  the supply 

development partner would have to  be a B-BBEE partner.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is what i t  is.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Did you ever get  a  B-BBEE 

cert i f icate f rom Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The documents were suppl ied to us,  20 

which were forwarded to Procurement.   So I  do not  know that  

detai ls of  the B-BBEE cert i f icate is.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Right .   Did you know who owned 

Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did you know who owned Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not .   Tr i l l ian,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   Al l  you knew was Daniel  

Roy.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Who came to me, yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And how did he come to you? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know how he came to me but  

he came into my off ice,  whether he drove or. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    [ laughs]  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know but  he came to my off ice 10 

at  the t ime to have a discussion wi th me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Ja,  I  am not  ta lk ing about  h is 

mode of  t ransport .   I  mean, did he get  an int roduct ion to 

you?  Did somebody say . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    . . .expect  a meet ing f rom Mr Roy? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   I  just  got  a cal l  f rom him.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You got  a cal l  f rom him.  And what  

did he say to you? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  I  cannot remember.   I  20 

think i t  was 2015, somewhere there,  whether  – how he 

introduced himsel f .   But  he u l t imately came in,  int roduced 

himsel f  and then we had a chat .   I  brought in one of  my 

col leagues.   He met h im and then he lef t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And did he suggest  that  he should 
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be the person or  his company,  Tr i l l ian,  should be the one 

get t ing paid for the club loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink among the discussion,  the 

posi t ion was beyond my salary scale.   That  could have been 

discussed that  that  is where,  you know, Tr i l l ian should be 

paid instead of  Regiments because they are supply 

development.   They should have met.   That  is requi red 

requi rement.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And but  when Mr Roy announced 

for the f i rst  t ime or arr ived at  the f i rst  t ime and you are l ike. . .   10 

How did he descr ibe himsel f?  What did he say he being 

doing? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  I  wi l l  be ly ing i f  I  can tel l  

you.   But  he gave me his company’s prof i le.   He te l ls  me that  

asset(?) management,  they want th is deal .   But  the detai ls,  I  

cannot te l l  you exact ly what i t  was al l  about .   Yes,  he 

int roduced his company,  what they do and thei r  role in the 

t ransact ion but  further than that ,  I  would be ly ing 

Chairperson.   I  real ly want to assist  th is Commission.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And do you recal l  what  he said 20 

about the role that  his company played in the t ransact ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    What did he say they had done in  

re lat ion to the t ransact ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  was about a syndicat ion of  the money 
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that  needs to be raised.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    A syndicat ion of  the money that 

needs to be raised? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And did he descr ibe,  you know,  

what work had been done by Regiments,  what work had been 

done by Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  d id not  get  to that  level .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Who told you that  Tr i l l ian are the 

ones to be paid? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Gary Peter to ld me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did Gary Peter te l l  you? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So let  us then move on.   Oh,  

before we move on.   Let  us look at  that  memo that  you 

wanted signed off  on 11 September 2015.   So at  486.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    486 was the covering emai l  and 

the memo starts at  487.   And I  want to put  to you that  what  

th is memo does,  he simply takes the previous memo and 20 

wherever Regiments is ment ioned . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sorry Mr Chaskalson.   Did you say 

087?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    487.  

CHAIRPERSON :    487?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    487 Chair.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The – for  the most  part ,  what  th is 

memo does,  is i t  cuts and pastes Tr i l l ian for Regiments f rom 

the previous memos.  So that  is – let  us look at  i t .    

 Under the heading Tr i l l ian,  paragraph 2:  

“Transnet had signed the mandate for  US Dol lars 

2.5 bi l l ion,  15-year loan f rom China Development  

Bank to f inance 232 and 359 Locomot ives f rom 

China North Rai lways and China South Rai lways 10 

respect ively.  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

 Paragraph 3:  

“The board approves the t ransact ion dur ing 

August  2014.”  

 Paragraph 4:  

“Transnet decided to spl i t  the t ransact ion into two 

t ranches of  the US Dol lars 1.5 bi l l ion t ranche and 

standby faci l i ty of  US Dol lars,  one bi l l ion t ranche. 

When Morgan was appointed to lead the ZAR Club 20 

as a subst i tute of  US Dol lar one bi l l ion standby 

faci l i ty the costs wi th the t ransact ion lower.   How 

they fai led to secure the 15-year at  the appropriate 

pr ic ing.  

Tr i l l ian approach wi th reversing inqui ry for  c lub loan 
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deal  at  a pr ice and tender which was more 

comparable to the CDB loan.”  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

 Did Tr i l l ian approach with that  inqui ry or did Regiments 

approach? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    To the best  of  your knowledge? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rman, . . . [ indist inct ]  wi th the c lub 

syndicated loan.  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry?  Tr i l l ian approached the 

club loan,  not  the syndicated loan.   But  who made the f i rst  

approach on the c lub loan,  was i t  Regiments or Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The club loan was Tr i l l ian but  the 

syndicated loan was Regiments.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The syndicated loan was 

Regiments,  you say? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Tr i l l ian,  the magic that  Tr i l l ian 

brought was the c lub loan.    20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    What was the di fference between 

the c lub loan and the syndicated loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The di fference between the two is  the 

part ic ipat ion,  the quantum amounts.   So in a syndicate,  you 
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have – Chairperson,  in a syndicate you wi l l  have equal  

part ic ipants wi th equal  amounts in the syndicat ion.   But  in a 

club loan,  you know, I  can come with a rand,  the other one 

wi l l  come with a ten rand.   The other one comes with a 

bi l l ion rand.   You simply club them together.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   Can I  ask you to go back to  

the 2 September vers ion of  th is memo?  Go to page 466.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And here you are talk ing about  

st i l l  paying – wel l ,  let  us go to the end.   This is  st i l l  a 10 

mot ivat ion for Regiments to be paid for  organising the club 

loan.   And r ight  through th is i t  is al l  about  club loan.   And 

Regiments are going to be paid.    

 There is no ment ion of  Tr i l l ian whatsoever.   Why would 

that  be the case i f  the club loan was Tr i l l ian’s idea? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  at  th is stage,  I  cannot 

explain the arrangements between the Tr i l l ian and 

Regiments,  you know, af ter Transnet  to ld  them about  the 

supply development.   How they,  f rom there,  they moved, I  do 

not  know.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   So – but  a short  whi le ago,  

you ment ioned to me that  Tr i l l ian was the one who came up 

wi th the idea of  the club loan and . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No.   Yes,  you are r ight .   But  you are 

simply referr ing Chairperson here on that  i t  is for Regiments.   
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But  I  am saying the or ig inal  arrangement that  I  had 

. . . [ indist inct ]   

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The commercial  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Between(?) Regiments.  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  but  whose idea was the club 

loan?  Was i t  Regiments or Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  as I  said,  the club loan,  i t  

was Tr i l l ian ’s idea.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Then why would you pay 

Regiments for something that  was Tr i l l ian ’s idea? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink there was a t ime where,  as I  – i f  

– you might  recal l  Chai rperson,  that  there was a discussion 

between Gary and Anoj  Singh and Regiments guy(?),  in 

part icular Er ic about  payments.   And then Transnet the 

requi rement of  supply development  which Regiments,  at  the 

t ime, were not  br inging them forth.    

 So probably f rom that  point  of  v iew, th ings started 

changing.   As I  said,  i t  was beyond my.. .   I  was not  part  of  20 

that .  

[Speaker is not  c lear. ]    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Were you aware at  the t ime that  

Er ic Wood had fa l len out  wi th h is partners at  Regiments and 

was in the process of  leaving Regiments to start  Tr i l l ian? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  was not  aware.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   Can we then cont inue on 

this Tr i l l ian memo that  is  large cut  and paste of  Regiments in  

a previous memo.   Let  us look at  the cut  and paste.   Can you 

go to page 491? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And do you see at  491,  the f i rst  

paragraph on the page 36:   Whoever was preparing this  

document,  forgot  to change one of  the Regiments to Tr i l l ian.  

 So 36 says:  10 

“Regiments va lue-add to Transnet  in relat ion to the 

1060 four locomot ives,  ZAR club loan funding can 

be summarised in the fol lowing tab le.”  

 Do you see that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja.   Chai rperson,  but  when I  look at  

th is,  i t  is  st i l l  a draf t  document.   As the Chai rperson says,  i t  

is a document that  comes f rom Regiments.   And when you 

look at  i t ,  i t  is st i l l  a draf t  document.   I t  does not  have even 

– there is a lot  o f  spel l ing errors and a whole lot  o f  th ings 

here.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  i t  is a draf t .   But  the point  

that  I  wanted to  make is that  i t  was real ly a cut  and paste 

draf t .   So where the previous document said Regiments,  th is  

one now says Tr i l l ian.     

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is precisely what I  said.   I  mean, I  
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do not  – I  cannot even vouch for th is.   I t  is a draf t  document.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  want  to look at  the tab le under 

paragraph 39.   And here we are talk ing about what  success 

fees are going to be paid to Tr i l l ian in  va luab le  cont r ibu t ion  

tha t  they have made and i t  says :  

“Success fee  in  percent  ZAR 12 b i l l i on  10%,  

success fee  in  rands,  ne t  p resent  va lue  50 .2  

m i l l ion . ”  

And where  50 .2  m i l l ion  comes f rom is  i f  you  go up to  

parag raph 36 i t  is  the  compar i son tha t  you sa id  was the  10 

appropr ia te  compar i son.   The compar ison not  compar ing  

app les  and oranges but  compar ing  app les  and app les  o f  

compar ing  the  a l leged sav ing  on  the  c lub  loan w i th  the  

comparab le  p r ic ing  o f  the  Ch ina  deve lopment  bank loan  

wh ich  is  a l leged ly  R512 mi l l ion  and 10% of  tha t  i s  50 .2  

m i l l ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So even assuming tha t  these  

f igures  about  sav ings are  cor rec t  on  the  log ic ,  on  your  

log ic  o f  what  an  appropr ia te  compara to r  wou ld  be  and an 20 

appropr ia te  success fee ,  the  fee  wou ld  have been 50.2  

m i l l ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    That  i s  what  has been ca l cu la ted  to  

50 .2  m i l l i on ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.   And the  da te  o f  tha t  
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document  i s  11  September.   Can we then go to  page 499?  

And there  you w i l l  see  an emai l  tha t  you sent  to  E r ic  Wood  

on 14 September  2015.   That  i s  th ree  days la te r  and i t  has 

go t  an  a t tachment ,  Smhpinn ica ldms.co .za   ASP veh ic les ,  

cus tomer  orders  pr in t  and i f  we go down to  page 500 we 

see a  veh ic le  o rde r  fo r  a  Land  Rover.   Do you reca l l  

send ing  th is  emai l?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  cannot  reca l l  on  th is  pa r t i cu la r  one 

but  I  reca l l  hav ing  a  d iscuss ion  w i th  the  guys a t  Reg iments  

fo r  purchas ing  o f  a  ca r.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  hav ing  a  d iscuss ion?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Wi th  Reg iments  about  purchas ing  a  

ca r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    About  purchas ing  a  ca r.   I f  one 

looks a t  th is  o rder  on  page 500,  i t  i s  a  veh ic le  o rder  fo r  

you,  Mr  Pheto lo  Ramosebod i .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes,  tha t  i s  p rec i se l y  t rue .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And I  unders tand in  the  end you 

d id  no t  pu rchase th is  veh ic le ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Because i t  was expens ive ,  yes .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  cou ld  no t  a f fo rd  i t  here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Why were  you send ing  i t  to  Er ic  

Wood?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Because one o f  h is  par tners ,  Mr  L i tha  
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Nyhonyha is  a  par t -owner  o f  Water fo rd  Range Rover  in  

Fourways so  I  thought  maybe,  you know,  there  is  

someth ing  tha t  he  can do fo r  me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Hang  on  a  m inute ,  Mr  

Ramosebod i ,  you were  in  the  process o f  mak ing  

recommendat ions  to  pay a t  th is  s tage a  fee  o f  50 .2  m i l l i on  

to  an  en t i t y  l inked to  Mr  Wood and you a re  hop ing  tha t  he  

or  h is  par tne r  can get  you a  good dea l  on  a  Land Rover.   

Do you th ink  tha t  i s  appropr ia te?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Because there  was no untoward (?)  to  10 

anyth ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  there  was no?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    The t ransact ion  tha t  we were  do ing  

w i th  them,  accord ing  to  me was fa i r  and above the  board .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  wh ich  t ransact ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    The cap loan –  no ,  the  CDB loan CDB 

loan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Fa i r  and above board?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  am say ing  i t  was fa i r  and above 

board .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  do  you not  th ink  tha t  

there  i s  some impropr ie ty  about  …[ in tervenes]  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You do not?    

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  I  was go ing  to  pay the  ca r  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 217 of 297 
 

th rough …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one sec,  le t  h im f in ish  the  

propos i t ion  he  wants  to  pu t  to  you,  Mr  Ramosebod i .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you  not  th ink  there  i s  some 

impropr ie t y  about  be ing  in  a  pos i t ion  where  a  dec i s ion  is  

about  to  be  made  to  pay somewhere  be tween R50 and R90  

mi l l ion  to  cer ta in  peop le  or  the i r  company and a t  the  same 

t ime ask ing  peop le  assoc ia ted  w i th  tha t  company to  

o rgan ise  you a  dea l  on  a  Land Rover?  10 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson,  to  speak over… 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Ja .   No,  I  do  no t  –  no ,  because one,  I  

th ink  i f  -  on  th is  par t i cu la r  day  I  remember  ve ry  we l l ,  

somewhere  around th is  par t i cu la r  day,  cou ld  be  the  7 t h  o f  

the  10  September,  I  had an acc ident ,  so  I  had no  car  to  

t rave l  to  work  and so  I  was look ing  fo r  a  car  to  rep lace the  

car  tha t  had an acc ident .  

 And the  second th ing  is  I  d id  no t  see i t  tha t  way 20 

because f i rs t l y,  I  am not  an  au thor i t y,  you know,  to  –  I  had 

no author i t y  to  approve fund ing ,  I  mean to  approve 

fund ing ,  f i rs t  o f  a l l ,  and to  approve any payment  o f  tha t  

s ize  o f  the  t ransact ion .  

 The th i rd  th ing  is  tha t  accord ing  to  me,  the i r  
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appo in tment  i s  aboveboard ,  so  there  i s  no th ing  to  h ide .   

You know,  I  have the  r i gh t  to  source  fund ing  fo r  my car  

anyway I  want  to .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebod i ,  I  have  to  pu t  i t  

to  you tha t  i t  i s  improper  bu t  you can comment  on  tha t ,  I  do  

no t  p ropose tak ing  i t  fu r ther.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rperson,  i t  cou ld  have been  

improper  shou ld  they have pa id  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    What  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  wou ld  unders tand.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  you not  want ing  them to  

organ ise  you a  good dea l  on  the  car?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  I  cou ld  have got  i t  somewhere  

e lse  bu t  I  though t  i t  wou ld  be  eas ier  fo r  them to  g ive  me a  

d iscount  on  a  ca r  as  compared to  o the r  dea lers  because 

they m ight  have o ther  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  they are  ge t t ing  

f rom [ ind is t inc t ]  06 .30 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  the  d iscount  wou ld  have 

been a  benef i t  to  you wou ld  i t  no t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Which  I  wou ld  d isc lose .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  I  know you wou ld  have 

d isc losed i t  bu t  I  am put t ing  i t  to  you tha t  the  mere  tha t  i t  

wou ld  no t  have been h idden i f  i t  was not  go ing  to  be 

h idden does not  remove the  impropr ie ty.   

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rpe rson,  we a re  ta lk ing  
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someth ing  tha t  d id  no t  happen.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  i t  d id  no t  happen not  

because o f  your  dec is ion  because  o f  the i r  dec is ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  i t  i s  because o f  my dec is ion ,  I  

cou ld  no t  a f fo rd ,  the  pr i ce  was too  much.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  t hey d id  no t  g i ve  you the  

d iscount  you wan ted,  i s  tha t  no t  r i gh t?   They d id  no t  g ive  

you a  good enough d iscount .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rpe rson …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  what  Mr  Chaska lson is  say ing  is  th is  10 

was a  case where  you were  in  a  pos i t ion  to  be  par t  o f  

those who wou ld  make a  recommendat ion  on  a  t ransact ion  

invo l v ing  them and i f  now you wanted them to  g ive  you a  

d iscount  on  a  persona l  th ing ,  they cou ld  have been  

in f luenced by  the  fac t  tha t  they a lso  wanted to  ge t  the 

recommendat ion  and you were  go ing  to  be  par t  o f  those 

who wou ld  recommend,  so  i t  cou ld  have been seen as  we l l ,  

you  know,  i f  you  g ive  me a  good  d iscount  may I  w i l l  a lso 

make a  recommendat ion .   I f  you  do not  g ive  me the  

d iscount ,  we l l ,  I  do  no t  know what  I  w i l l  do .   Mr  20 

Chaska lson,  d id  I  pu t  i t  the  way or…? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You d id ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rperson,  I  was par t  o f  the  dea l  

cha in  in  the  recommendat ion  o f  the  t ransact ion  bu t  desp i te  
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tha t ,  they  d id  no t  g ive  me,  so  i t  means there  is  no  

assoc ia t ion  w i th  tha t .   The t ransac t ions were  two un re la ted  

t ransact ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  Mr  Chaska lson says you t r ied  to  ge t  

a  d iscount  and they res i s ted ,  they d id  no t  g ive  you the  

d iscount .   I f  they  had g iven you  the  d iscount  then you 

wou ld  have taken the  dea l .   So the  e f fec t  o f  th is  

p ropos i t ion  i s  you t r ied .   The fac t  tha t  i t  d id  no t  happen 

does not  mean tha t  the  a t tempt  was not  improper.   That  i s  

no t  how you saw i t?  10 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  tha t  i s  no t  how I  am see ing  i t ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Ramosebod i ,  can we then go  

down to  503?  I t  i s  an  emai l  to  you on 16 September  f rom 

Edward  Thomas a t  Transnet  cop ied  to  Gary  Pete r.   I t  i s  in  

response to  tha t  d ra f t  memo tha t  you c i r cu la ted .   Do you 

reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l  f rom Edward  Thomas? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe befo re  tha t ,  Mr  Chaska lson,  

p lease do not  fo rge t  your  quest ion .   You have sa id  tha t  –  I  20 

am go ing  back to  the  quest ion  tha t  Mr  Chaska lson was  

dea l ing  w i th  the  issue o f  the  car,  the  dea l ,  the  d i scount .   

You may have seen i t  in  a  cer ta in  way.   A t  the  moment  how 

do you see i t?   Do you see i t  the  same way as  you saw i t  

then or  do  you ge t  a  d i f fe ren t  perspect ive  now? 
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MR RAMOSEBODI:    Now I  am – Cha i rperson,  I  am see ing  

i t  w i th  the  eye o f  the  Commiss ion ,  I  am not  see ing  i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    A t  the  t ime I  d id  no t  see because  

accord ing  to  me every th ing  was aboveboard .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:   You know,  i t  i s  a  f ree  market  soc ie ty  

and you are  w i l l i ng  to  do  bus iness w i th  who as  long as  i t  i s  

aboveboard .   Tha t  i s  how I  saw i t  a t  the  t ime.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine ,  I  was jus t  in te res ted  

in  see ing  tha t  because –  and you –  obv ious ly,  you must  no t  

say  you see i t  i f  you  do not  see i t ,  bu t  I  jus t  was jus t  

in te res ted  in  see ing  whether  maybe now tha t  the  issues are  

be ing  ra ised you  might  beg in  to  see d i f fe ren t ly  than you 

saw i t  a t  tha t  t ime.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  you gave and answer  bu t… 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I f  I  th ink  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  s t i l l  see  i t  the  same way fee l  f ree  20 

to  say so .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:     No …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    But  i f  you say look… 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  no ,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    …maybe there  is  a  d i f fe ren t  perspect ive  



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 222 of 297 
 

then i t  i s  up  to  you to  ind ica te .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I f  a t  the  t ime I  am in  the  cu r ren t  

s i tua t ion  I  wou ld  no t  have done i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ld  no t  have done i t .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  wou ld  no t  have done i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Okay,  thank you.   Mr  

Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Mr  

Ramosebod i ,  can  you go to  page 503?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  am a t  tha t  page.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Edward  

Thomas to  you,  16  September  2015 cop ied  to  Gary  Peter.   

Do you reca l l  rece iv ing  th is  emai l?   Mr  Thomas sor t  o f  cu ts  

and  paste  w i th  some very  b ig  p r in t  so  i t  may have s tuck  ou t  

in  you r  memory.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  cannot  reca l l  the  emai ls  bu t  I  see  

the  message.   I t  m igh t  have ar r i ved -  you know,  th rough  

yourse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  why I  am say ing  I  cannot  reca l l  

some o f  these th ings,  you may f ind  tha t  i t  was opened by  

my secre tary  then she gave me a  paper  and says  p lease 20 

a t tend to  th is .   So a t  the  t ime I  am not ,  I  d id  no t  rece ive  an  

emai l ,  so  I  rece ived a  copy o f  an  emai l ,  so  I  am a t tend ing  

the  message a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.   So I  am aware  o f  what  

Edd ie  Thomas wro te ,  yes ,  I  am aware  o f  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And –  we l l ,  le t  us  see what  –  le t  
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us  take  the  Cha i r  th rough wha t  he  wro te  and  he is  

respond ing  to  tha t  d ra f t  memorandum:  

“H i ,  here  are  coup le  o f  quest ions tha t  need to  be  

answered based on the  prev ious submiss ion  and the  

new submiss ion . ”  

P rev ious submiss ion  was tha t  JP Morgan Reg iments  

submiss ion  tha t  we d i scussed a  wh i le  back.  

“The f inanc ia l  were  as  fo l lows…” 

And he is  quot ing  f rom the  prev ious.  

“G iven the  inva luab le  cont r i bu t ion  Reg iments . . . ”  10 

And unfor tunate ly,  the  cu t  and pas te  has gone o f f  the  page 

but  I  th ink  the  po in t  i s  tha t  he  is  mak ing  the  po in t  tha t  the  

inva luab le  cont r i bu t ion  i s  f rom Reg iments  and JP Morgan.   

He says:  

“The  ADC approved the  fo l low ing:  

I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  ADC approve the  

conf ined appo in tment  o f  JP Morgan to  hedge tha t  

in te res t  ra te  c red i t  and cur rency  r i sk ,  approve the  

conf ined appo in tment  o f  JP Morgan. ”  

E tce tera .  20 

“Approve the  cont rac t  ex tens ion  appo in tment  o f  

Reg iments…”  

That  was f rom 99 .5  to  166 mi l l ion  more .   And then:  

“De legate  au thor i t y  to  the  Act ing…” 

I  suspect  i t  wou ld  have been the  CFO.  
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“…to  g i ve  e f fec t  to  the  conf inement . ”  

You reca l l  tha t  recommendat ion  to  the  BADC which  was 

adopted and wh ich  we have seen p rev ious ly,  remember  the  

one tha t  re la ted  to  Reg iments  and JP Morgan.  

“F rom our  d i scuss ion  the  f i rs t  po in t  i s  s t i l l  i n  p lace  

and JP Morgan is  s t i l l  p rov id ing  the  serv ice  and the  

fees as  descr ibed  above w i l l  s t i l l  be  va l id . ”  

So tha t  wou ld  be  the  cross-cu r rency swaps.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The second po in t :  10 

“Where  JP Morgan had to  lead and underwr i te  the  

synd ica ted  loan  is  where  JP Morgan fa i led  to  

de l i ver.   The document  i s  s i len t  on  the  fees fo r  th is  

and i t  assumed tha t  i t  wou ld  be  inc luded in  the  

market - re la ted  costs  o f  the  fund ing .   I f  the  fees fo r  

the  lead and underwr i t ing  i s  no t  inc luded in  the  

market - re la ted  costs  o f  the  fund ing  and there  is  a  

spec i f i c  fee ,  i s  the  one we want  to  pay Tr i l l i an ,  and  

tha t  w i l l  a lso  have to  be  d isc losed  to  the  ADC as an  

omiss ion  f rom the  f i rs t  submiss ion . ”  20 

Because when JP Morgan was go ing  to  do  the  job  they  

wou ld  jus t  pu t  an  ex t ra  10  bas i s  po in ts  o r  whatever  on to  

the  spread and there  wou ld  no t  be  a  spec i f i c  fee  fo r  th is  

exerc ise ,  tha t  i s  what  he  says.  

“Does Tr i l l i an  have the  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  to  
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underwr i te  the  loan?”  

Can I  s top  you there?  D id  Tr i l l i an  have the  capac i ty  and  

capab i l i t y  to  underwr i te  the  loan?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  no t  underwr i te  the  loan.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  i t  cou ld  no t  underwr i te .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Not  underwr i t e ,  no .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And JP Morgan was go ing  to  be  

pa id  fo r  underwr i t ing ,  no t  jus t  a r rang ing .  

“ I s  Tr i l l i an  go ing  to  p rov ide  the  exact  same serv ices  

tha t  JP Morgan was go ing  to  p rov ide  and why i s  10 

there  is  th is  po ten t ia l l y  d i f fe ren t  than tha t  o f  JP 

Morgan?”  

Or  was Tr i l l i an  go ing  to  p rov ide  the  same se rv i ces  as  JP 

Morgan or  no t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Too d i f fe ren t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Obv ious because i t  was go ing  to  

do  no  underwr i t ing .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  Transnet  wou ld  have  –  we l l ,  

no  secur i t y  o f  an  underwr i te r  in  th i s  a r rangement .  20 

“The Reg iments  fee  was fo r  the  successfu l  

conc lus ion  o f  the  fund ing  t ransact ion .   I  wou ld  

in te rpre t  tha t  be ing  the  hedg ing  an loan based on  

how I  am see ing  Tr i l l i an  be ing  pa id .   I s  tha t  no t  

dup l i ca te  as  to  what  was pa id  Reg iments?”  
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He is  say ing  when you mot iva te  a t  Reg iments ,  he  sa id  par t  

o f  what  they are  do ing  is  hedg ing  as  we l l  as  ra i s ing  and i s  

no t  what  you are  pay ing  Tr i l l i an  now a l ready inc luded in  

what  you had pa id  Reg iments .   I s  tha t  no t  what  he  was 

say ing?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  may be wrong,  bu t  i s  tha t  no t  

what   he  was say ing?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I t  i s  no t  what  I  am say ing .   No,  i t  was  

–  i t  i s  no t  a  dup l i ca t ion .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  so  –  now I  know you are  

say ing  i t  i s  no t  a  dup l i ca t ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  he  was say ing  i t  was a  

dup l i ca t ion .    

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No,  he  was ask ing  me quest ions 

whethe r  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.    

“The foo ter  in  the  document  must  re fe rence the  

cor rec t  va lue  o f  the  loan.   I f  d i f fe ren t ,  I  w i l l  t rack  20 

changes in  the  memos,  the  areas where  you w i l l  

have to  p rov ide  fu r the r  in fo rmat ion . ”  

And then a t  the  end he says:  

“See ing  tha t  we  are  on ly  chang ing  the  ex is t ing  

supp ly  fo r  the  loan on a  p rev ious l y  approved  
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con f inement ,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  we have to  res ta te  

the  grounds fo r  conf inement  and can thus de le te  t he  

who le  sect ion  on  the  grounds fo r  conf inement  and 

conf ident ia l i t y  in  the  PPM.   Gary,  p lease comment . ”  

What  i s  he  say ing  in  tha t  las t  parag raph? 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    He is  ta lk ing  procurement  language  

here  wh ich  I  do  no t  unders tand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  he  no t  –  we l l ,  le t  me see how 

I  unders tand –  le t  me put  to  you how I  unders tand  i t  and 

maybe tha t  w i l l  e luc ida te  th ings.   He is  say ing  when we  10 

mot iva ted  fo r  Reg iments  to  ge t  the i r  fee  prev ious ly,  we  

sa id  we wanted a  –  so r ry,  where  i n  tha t  Reg iments  and JP 

Morgan on tha t  o r ig ina l  memorandum we sa id  th is  needed 

to  be  a  conf inement  appo in tmen t .   A l though we are  now 

get t ing  r id  o f  bo th  Reg iments  and  JP Morgan,  we do not  

need to  ask  fo r  the  conf inement  o f  Tr i l l i an  th is  t ime 

because we have  a l ready asked fo r  conf inement  las t  t ime 

so  we can choose who the  conf inement  benef ic ia ry  i s .   I  

th ink  tha t  i s  wha t  he  is  say ing .   Does tha t  make sense to  

you?  20 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Yes,  I  th ink  so ,  i t  makes sense .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you go down to  page 514? 

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  Mr  Chaska lson,  we are  a t  f i ve  

past  f i ve ,  we can  s t i l l  con t inue f rom my s ide  bu t  I  want  us  

to  have the  same idea in  te rms o f  how long we w i l l  be .   
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Yesterday we had been to ld  tha t  we shou ld  –  the  w i tness,  

the  even ing  w i tness shou ld  be  about  two hours ,  we ended 

up,  I  th ink ,  w i th  much more  than tha t ,  we f in ished  a t  10  

p .m.   What  i s  you r  es t imate  o f  how much more?  I  th ink  we  

might  need to  take  a  break now bu t  I  th ink  a t  s ix  o r  quar te r  

past  we might  have to  ad journ ,  f rom my s ide .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  w i l l  cer ta in ly  a t tempt  to  

f in ish  by  s ix .  

CHAIRPERSON:    By  s ix ,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Or  w i th in  an  hour  a f te r  our  10 

resumpt ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  Oh,  okay,  a l r igh t .   So maybe le t  us 

take  a  shor t  b reak now,  maybe ten  m inutes ,  and then we  

can resume and then cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  a l r igh t?   Okay,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  le t ’s  p roceed.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Page  514,  your  response to  

Edd ie  Thomas’s  emai l  and we may need to  go  back to  tha t  

emai l  on  page 503 to  unders tand your  answers ,  so  the  f i rs t  

po in t  was –  tha t  Edd ie  Thomas made,  so r ry  –  i s  these CPI  

swaps a re  s t i l l  i n  p lace  and J  P Morgan s t i l l  p rov id ing  the  
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serv i ce  and fees  are  presc r ibed above w i l l  s t i l l  be  va l id ,  

and your  answer  was yes tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Do you see tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Jus t  sw i tch  on  your  m ic .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Sor ry  Cha i rperson,  yes ,  I  see i t ,  yes  

indeed the  f i rs t  po in t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  second po in t  was tha t  

the  J  P Morgan fees wou ld  no t  be  d isc losed but  wou ld  be  

inc luded w i th in  the  cost  o f  fund ing  and Edd ie  Thomas had 

sa id  t he  document  i s  s igned fo r  t he  fees fo r  th is  and  i t  i s  

assumed tha t  i t  wou ld  be  inc luded in  the  market  –  oh  sor ry  10 

–  second po in t  where  J  P Morgan had to  lead and 

underwr i te  the  synd ica ted  loans where  J  P Morgan fa i led  to  

de l i ver  the  document  i s  s igned on  the  fees fo r  th is  and i t  i s  

assumed i t  wou ld  be  inc luded in  the  market  re la ted  cost  o f  

fund ing ,  and your  response to  t ha t  was the  fees were  no t  

d isc losed,  th is  i s  why we are  now d isc los ing  the  fees fo r  

Tr i l l i an ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  tha t  c losed is  supposed to  be  20 

d isc losed.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  i t  was supposed  to be  

d isc losed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh ja ,  on  the  second bu l le t  po in t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes Cha i r,  tha t  i s  what  Mr  
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Ramosebud i  conc luded.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I t  was supposed to  say d i sc losed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.    Yes cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then on the  th i rd  bu l le t  po in t  

you sa id  i f  he  fees fo r  the  l ead  and underwr i t ing  is  no t  

inc luded in  the  market  re la ted  cos ts  o f  the  fund ing  there ’s  

a  spec i f i c  fee ,  i s  the  one we wan t  to  pay to  Tr i l l i an  then  

tha t  w i l l  a lso  have to  be  d isc losed to  the  ADC as an  

admiss ion  f rom the  f i rs t  submiss ion  and I  th ink  your  second  

bu l le t  po in t  covers  the  answer  to  tha t ,  wou ld  tha t  be  10 

cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Cor rec t  s i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And your  th i rd  bu l le t  po in t  –  

sor ry  h i s  th i rd  quest ion  was,  does Tr i l l i an  have the  

capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  to  underwr i te  the  loan,  and your  

answer  was,  Tr i l l i an  has the  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y,  was 

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I t  was not  en t i re ly  co r rec t  because  

. . . [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  to  underwr i te  …[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  f i rs t  do  you conf i rm tha t ,  tha t ’s  the  20 

answer  you gave and tha t…[ in tervenes] .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That ’s  the  answer  I  gave ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You can ta lk  about  whether  what  you  

sa id  i s  cor rec t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja  tha t ’s  the  answer  I  gave bu t  I  don ’ t  
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th ink  I  captured the  essence o f  the  quest ions f rom h im fo r  

…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l  can we agree tha t  Tr i l l i an  

cer ta in ly  d idn ’ t  have the  capac i ty  o r  capab i l i t y  to  

underwr i te  the  loan?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Underwr i te  the  load,  they d idn ’ t  have 

the  capac i ty.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and we know a t  tha t  s tage  

Tr i l l i an  was l i t t le  more  than an idea in  the  head  o f  E r ic  

Wood.   Can we –  so  what  d id  you th ink  Tr i l l i an  d id  have the  10 

capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  to  do?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They had the  capac i ty  to  a r range fo r  

fund ing  o f  tha t  na ture  w i th  us  a t  management  yes,  no t  

underwr i t ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  who had tha t  capac i ty?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    B ig  banks they can have the  capac i ty,  

bu t  they were  no t  w i l l i ng  to  o f fe r  the  capac i ty  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  b ig  banks,  cer ta in ly  can do  

tha t  bu t  Tr i l l i an ,  who a t  Tr i l l i an  had –  who wou ld  have the  

capac i ty  to  engage…[ in tervenes] .  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :  You need a  bank w i th  a  ba lance sheet  

to  underwr i te .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and Tr i l l i an  cer ta in l y  d idn ’ t  

have a  ba lance sheet  o f  a  bank to  underwr i te .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  what  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  

d id  Tr i l l i an  have?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They had a  Tr i l l i an  to  a r range fo r  the  

C lub  loan type o f  t ransact ion  w i th  var ious asset  managers .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And as  fa r  as  you were  

concerned the  on ly  pe rson,  you ’d  met  a t  Tr i l l i an  was Dan ie l  

Roy.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  met  Dan ie l  Roy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And d id  he  have the  capac i ty,  

s ing le  headed ly  to  a r range…[ in tervenes] .  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    When I  look  a t  the  pro f i le ,  they  gave  

me,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  bu t  who ’d  done the  

ar rangement  on  th is  loan,  who  had ac tua l l y  done the  

ar rangement  on  th is  loan as  fa r  as  you were  concerned?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The peop le  tha t  I  worked w i th  in  the  

leg is la tu re  was Er ic  Wood wi th  Mose lo  and Ntswana .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and they were  a l l ,  a t  tha t  

s tage pa r t  o f  Reg iments ,  i s  tha t  so? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Had you seen anybody f rom 

Tr i l l i an  ac tua l l y  a r rang ing  th is  loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    A t  the  beg inn ing  when we dea l ing  w i th  

th is  they were  no t  there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  they weren ’ t  there ,  and the  
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a r rangements  were  made by  peop le ,  then a t  Reg iments .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  p rec ise ly  t rue .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  so  when you sa id  Tr i l l i an  

has capac i ty  and capab i l i t y,  why d id  you say tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  when I  –  a f te r  I ’ ve  met  Dan ie l  

Roy and he prov ided me wi th  h is  f i l e .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you thought ,  one man,  Mr  

Roy,  cou ld  ar range a  R12b i l l i on  loan fo r  Transnet?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  d id  no t  ask  h im,  what  the  number  o f  

peop le  tha t  he  worked w i th…[ ind i s t inc t  -  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  you  do accept  now,  tha t  your  

answer  to  the  quest ion ,  does Tr i l l i an  have the  capac i ty  and 

capab i l i t y  to  underwr i te  the  loan was incor rec t ,  they  d idn ’ t  

have the  capac i ty?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  was not  the  in fo rmat ion  he  gave 

me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  was not  the  in fo rmat ion  he  gave 

me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no  the  capac i ty  and  20 

capab i l i t y  to  underwr i te  the  loan,  you never  be l ieved tha t  

they cou ld  underwr i te  the  loan?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  sa id  to  myse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  I  sa id 

th is  was not  the  in ten t ion  o f  how to  respond to  th is  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one sec,  I  thought  ear l ie r  on ,  
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you  d id  say,  tha t  Tr i l l i an  d idn ’ t  have the  capac i ty  and 

capab i l i t y.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    To  underwr i te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To  underwr i te .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  no t  have the  capac i ty  to  

underwr i te .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Thomas ’ next  quest ion  is ,  i s  

Tr i l l i an  go ing  to  p rov ide  the  exac t  same serv ice  tha t  JP 

Morgan was go ing  to  p rov ide  and  why is  the i rs  po ten t ia l l y  

d i f fe ren t  f rom JP Morgan,  and your  answer  to  tha t  was,  

Tr i l l i an  w i l l  p rov ide  the  same se rv ices ,  you see tha t  on  

page 514,  was Tr i l l i an  go ing  to  p rov ide  the  same serv ices?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No,  I ’ ve  a l ready s ta ted  in  the  above  

tha t ,  ac tua l l y  they don ’ t  have the  capac i ty,  so  they were  

no t  go ing  to  p rov ide  the  same se rv i ce .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  i t ’s  two answers  in  a  row 

tha t  a re  bo th  incor rec t  and both  c rea te  the  same incor rec t  

impress ion ,  i s  tha t  no t  co r rec t  –  wou ld  you accept  tha t ,  

tha t  bo th  o f  those answers ,  Tr i l l i an  has capac i ty  and  

capab i l i t y  and  Tr i l l i an  w i l l  p rov ide  the  same se rv i ces  were  
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bo th  wrong?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    A t  the  t ime when I  looked a t  th is ,  I  

was not  aware  tha t  i t  i s  l i ke  th is  bu t  now I  can see tha t  I  

shou ldn ’ t  have wr i t ten  i t  tha t  way.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  you shou ld  have sa id ,  no  

Tr i l l i an  does not  have the  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  and no,  

Tr i l l i an  w i l l  no t  be  prov id ing  the  same serv ice?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  shou ld  have ind ica ted  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  i s  go ing  to  g ive  a  d i f fe ren t  serv ice  than what  JP 

Morgan was go ing  to  g ive .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  and i t  d idn ’ t  have the  

capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  to  p rov ide  the  serv ices  tha t  JP 

Morgan was go ing  to  p rov ide?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The underwr i t ing  capac i ty.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  now on a  loan o f  R12b i l l i on  

underwr i t ing ,  I ’d  imag ine ,  i s  qu i te  impor tan t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  i s  –  i t  was qu i te  impor tan t  bu t  a t  

the  t ime they were  no t  w i l l i ng  to  o f fe r  tha t  ba lance sheet .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  they were  no t  w i l l i ng?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    To  o f fe r  the  ba lance sheet .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    JP Morgan was not  w i l l i ng  to  

o f fe r  the  ba lance sheet?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So ,  JP Morgan were  no t  p repared  

to  do  the  underwr i t ing?  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:    P rec ise ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Was tha t  because they 

cons idered i t  too  r i sky?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  th ink  i t  was  because o f  the 

concent ra t ion  because they were  do ing  the  cross-cur rency  

swap on the  CD be low.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see ,  bu t  Tr i l l i an ,  who were  no t  

go ing  to  underwr i te  a t  a l l  were  w i l l i ng  to  come in  and 

ar range,  apparen t ly?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :   They d idn ’ t  have the  requested 10 

ba lance sheet  to  underwr i te  tha t  much.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  they d idn ’ t  have  –  they  

d idn ’ t  have ba lance sheet  to  underwr i te  tha t  much,  yes ,  

tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Because  the  precursor  to  the  

t ransact ion  to  the  Tr i l l i an  t ransact ion  was Reg iments  wh ich  

has a l ready done a  lo t  o f  work ,  so  there  was no  

requ i rement  fo r  the  underwr i t ing .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  was the re  any underwr i t ing  

prov ided on th is  c lub  loan?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No there  was no underwr i t ing  

prov ided.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Le t ’s  look  a t  the  next  quest ion  

f rom Mr  Thomas and he sa id ,   

“The Reg iments  fee  was fo r  the  successfu l  
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conc lus ion  o f  the  fund ing  t ransact ion ,  as  I  in te rpre t  

tha t  be ing  the  hedg ing  and loan based on how I  am 

see ing  Tr i l l i an  be ing  pa id ,  i s  tha t  no t  dup l i ca te  to  

what  was pa id  to  Reg iments”?    

So,  he ’s  say ing ,  a re  you not  pay ing  Tr i l l i an  fo r  

someth ing  tha t  you have a l ready  pa id  Reg iments?   Your  

answer  i s ,  no  dup l i ca t ion  w i th  Reg iments  and why is  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Because Reg iments  d id  the  CDB loan 

and the  adv i so ry  on  the  cost  cur rency t ransact ion ,  so  th is  

was a  c lub  loan fo r  the  R12b i l l i on .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see ,  and the  las t  quest ion  we 

needn ’ t  concern  ourse l ves w i th  because i t  jus t  dea ls  w i th  

amounts .   Can I  take  you to  517…[ in tervenes]?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  Mr  Chaska lson,  be fore  you 

move away f rom page 514,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  those two  

answers  tha t  you gave,  tha t  a re  no t  cor rec t ,  as  I  

unders tand the  pos i t ion  th is  i s  no t  a  case where ,  a t  tha t  

t ime,  when you  gave those answers  you thought  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  d id  have  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  and tha t  Tr i l l i an  

wou ld  prov ide  the  same serv ices  bu t  s ince  then you have  20 

d iscovered tha t  they d idn ’ t  have,  am I  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes,  you ’ re  qu i te  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  how d id  i t  come about  tha t  you 

gave answers  tha t  were  no t  in  l ine  w i th  your  knowledge o f  

Tr i l l i an ’s  capab i l i t y  and the  serv ices  tha t  they  wou ld  
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p rov ide?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No,  Cha i rpe rson,  i t  was  not  a  

quest ion  o f  t ry ing  to  g i ve  a  d i f fe ren t  answer  because the  

issue was tha t  Tr i l l i an  was go ing  to  do  th is  synd ica t ion  o f  

the  c lub  loan i t  was not  about  the  underwr i t ing  because in  

the  appo in tment  o f  JP Morgan  i t  was not  exc lus ive ly  

say ing ,  i t ’s  an  underwr i t ing  i t  was ra i s ing  a  b i l l i on  do l la r  

equ iva len t  in  rand and underwr i t ing  and synd ica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe le t ’s  take  those answers ,  one a t  

the  t ime.  The th i rd  bu l le t  po in t ,  page 514 to  the  quest ion  10 

whethe r  Tr i l l i an  had the  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y  you sa id ,  

Tr i l l i an  has capac i ty  and capab i l i t y,  based on what  –  on 

your  p rev ious answer  to  me,  i t  seems to  me tha t  you 

shou ld  no t  have  sa id  tha t  because tha t ’s  no t  what  you 

be l ieved to  be  the  pos i t ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    the  capac i t y  I  was ment ion ing  he re  

was not  necessar i l y  f rom a  ba lance sheet  po in t  o f  v iew 

because I  knew f rom day one,  a t  the  t ime tha t  Tr i l l i an  

doesn ’ t  have the  su f f i c ien t  ba lance  sheet ,  the  capac i ty  was 

tha t  they have the  competenc ies  and sk i l l  requ i red  fo r  the  20 

type o f  t ransact ion  tha t  we want  to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  tha t  I  know i t  was  cor rec t  

because a  who le  lo t  o f  work  was a l ready done,  you know,  

as  I  sa id ,  p r io r  to  the  changeover  o f  Reg iments  and  Tr i l l i an  
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th rough the  SD requ i rements ,  tha t  work ,  a l ready was done,  

so  tha t  capac i ty  f rom a  competency po in t  o f  v iew,  tha t  was 

a l ready ach ieved.  So,  tha t ’s  why I  was casua l ly  say ing  i t ’s  

okay i t ’s  the  same se rv i ce  i t ’s  the  same capac i ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  now,  le t ’s  take  i t  –  was i t  t rue ,  was  

i t  cor rec t  to  respond to  the  quest ion  by  say ing ,  Tr i l l i an  had  

capac i ty  and capab i l i t y,  was i t s  cor rec t  bear ing  in  m ind 

what  the  quest ion  was?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    To  leave i t  a t  tha t  leve l  i t ’s  no t  

cor rec t…[ in tervenes] .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t ’s  no t  cor rec t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  shou ld  have expanded.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t  and as  you  sa id ,  you 

are  no t  jus t  say ing ,  i t ’s  no t  cor rec t  because you,  

subsequent ly  d iscovered tha t  they d id  no t  have capac i ty  

bu t  a t  tha t  t ime you thought  they  had.   You knew a t  tha t  

t ime tha t  they d id  no t  have capac i t y?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    From a  ba lance sheet  po in t  o f  v iew,  

yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wh ich  is  what  was requ i red ,  i sn ’ t  i t?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  so  my quest ion  is ,  how d id  i t  come 

about  tha t  you gave an answer  tha t  was not  in  accordance  

w i th  your  knowledge o f  the i r  capac i ty  and capab i l i t y?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I ’m  say ing ,  th rough  myse l f  
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Cha i rperson,  tha t  I  shou ld  have  expanded to  say,  they  

don ’ t  have the  su f f i c ien t  –  they don ’ t  have the  ba lance 

sheet  fo r  underwr i t ing  bu t  they  have capac i ty  and the  

competenc ies  to  do  the  work ,  tha t  i s  what  I  shou ld  have 

done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How d id  i t  come about  tha t  you d idn ’ t  

add tha t  qua l i f i ca t ion  to  make su re  tha t  i t  accorded w i th  

your  knowledge,  how d id  tha t  come about  tha t  you d id  no t  

add tha t  qua l i f i ca t ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  th ink  i t  was jus t  a  casua l  m ishap 10 

tha t  I  le f t  i t  and not  tha t  i t  was in ten t iona l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then on the  next  one,  Tr i l l i an  w i l l  

p rov ide  the  same serv ices ,  how d id  tha t  come about  tha t  

you sa id  Tr i l l i an  wou ld  prov ide  the  same serv ices  in  

c i rcumstances where ,  as  I  unders tand your  ev idence,  you  

knew a t  the  t ime tha t  Tr i l l i an  wou ld  no t  p rov ide  the  same 

serv i ces?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  jus t  –  I  app l ied  the  same –  I  can say 

I  app l ied  the  same argument ,  you know,  f rom the  above.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm,  okay,  Mr  Chaska lson?  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Can we go to  

page 517 and tha t ’s  an  ex t rac t  f rom the  m inutes  o f  the 

Board  acqu is i t ions  and d isposa ls  Commi t tee  on  1  October  

wh ich  reso lved the  fo l low ing:  

“The appo in tmen t  o f  Tr i l l i an  to  rep lace JP Morgan  
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as  lead manager  o f  the  US Do l la r  1b i l l i on  ZAR 

equ iva len t  c lub  l oan wh ich  was p rev ious ly  conf ined 

to  JP Morgan.   The te rm inat ion  o f  JP Morgan on the  

ZAR synd ica t ion  loan and de legat ion  to  the  Group 

Ch ie f  Execut ive  to  approve and s ign  a l l  the  

documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  th is  conf inement ” .  

 So,  the  Board  acqu is i t ion  and d i sposa ls  Commi t tee ,  

on  1  October,  gave the  appo in tment  to  Tr i l l i an .   Le t ’s  look  

a t  the  m inutes ,  the  na r ra t i ve  o f  those minutes  i t  s ta r ts  a t  

page 518.   F i rs t ,  we see who was present  the re ,  Mr  S tan 10 

Shane was the  Cha i rpe rson,  Ms E ls ie  Mabaso  was a  

member,  Mr  ZA Nagd i  [? ]  anothe r  member  and Mr  Se leke 

who was a  member.   Mr  Se leke,  I  unders tand a t  one s tage,  

became DG of  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises ,  a re  you aware  o f  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I ’m  aware .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Nagd i ,  do  you know o f  h im? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  can ’ t  reca l l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  I  th ink  some in te res t ing  

ev idence about  Mr  Nagd i  in  the  fo r thcoming weeks,  Mr  

Mabaso or  Ms Mabaso?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  remember  her.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  about  Mr  SD Shane?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  remember  h im.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Who was he?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  remember  h im.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    D id  he  d isc lose  any re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Tr i l l i an  tha t  you reca l l  were  you aware  tha t  he  had any  

re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Tr i l l i an?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  don ’ t  know tha t ,  when I  came to  the  

meet ing  i t  was a l ready …[ in te rvenes] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see…[ in tervenes] .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    [ Ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Was tha t  in  your  encounters  w i th  

Mr  Shane,  d id  he  ever  d isc lose  tha t  he  had a  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  Tr i l l i an?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Unfor tunate ly,  I  never  in te rac ted  w i th  

Board  members .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see ,  he  never  ment ioned,  fo r  

ins tance,  tha t  he  had a  Tr i l l i an  emai l  address?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  never  in te rac ted  w i th  Board  

members  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  see  and i f  we see  par t ia l  

a t tendance under  parag raph 1 .3  down a t  the  bo t tom,  th ree 

f rom the  bot tom,  Mr  P i r i  Ramosebud i ,  Group Treasure r.   

So,  you were  a t  the  meet ing ,  a t  least  in  par t?  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :      I  came in  to  p resent  tha t  

submiss ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  le t ’s  look  a t  tha t  

submiss ion ,  le t ’s  go  to  526 and page 526,  parag raph 5 .8 ,  

“Change in  lead  manager  fo r  ZAR c lub  loan,  Mr 
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Ramosebud i  jo ined the  meet ing  a t  17h15.   

Management  took the  Commi t tee  th rough the  

submiss ion  as  conta ined in  the  meet ing  pack” ,  

 When they say management ,  wou ld  tha t  be  you?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    “The submiss ion  was taken as   

read,  the  purpose  o f  th is  submiss ion  was to  request  

the  Commi t tee  to  approve the  fo l low ing.   The 

appo in tment  o f  Tr i l l i an  in  p lace  o f  JP Morgan as  

lead manager  o f  the  USD 1b i l l i on  rand equ iva len t  10 

c lub  loan wh ich  was p rev ious l y  conf ined to  JP 

Morgan.  The te rm inat ion  o f  JP Morgan on the  ZAR 

synd ica t ion  loan,  de legat ion  o f  au thor i t y  to  the  GCE 

to  approve a l l  documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  th is  

conf inement .   Management  ind ica ted  tha t  the  

company had s igned the  mandate  le t te r  and te rm 

sheet  fo r  the  USD 2 .5b i l l i on  15-year  amor t i s ing  loan 

f rom China Deve lopment  Bank to  f inance 232 and 

359 locomot ives  f rom China Nor th  Ra i lways and 

Ch ina  South  Ra i lways,  respect ive l y.  The Commi t tee  20 

noted tha t  the  company dec ided to  sp l i t  the  

t ransact ion  in to  two t ranches,  namely  the  USD 

1 .5b i l l i on  t ranche  and the  s tandby fac i l i t y  o f  USD 

1b i l l i on  t ranche.   JP Morgan was appo in ted  th rough  

a  conf inement  approved by  the  Commi t tee  to  lead 
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the  ZAR c lub  loan as  a  subst i tu te  fo r  the  USD 

1b i l l i on  s tandby fac i l i t y  to  lower  the  overa l l  cos t  o f  

the  t ransact ion  and to  avo id  fo rex  exposure  and the  

need fo r  c ross-cur rency swops.  The Commi t tee  

no tes  tha t  Tr i l l i an  i s  a  b lack  owned  company” ,  

 Can I  jus t  s top  there ,  you presen ted th is ,  have you 

seen any ev idence tha t  Tr i l l i an  was a  b lack  owned 

company?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson I  can ’ t  reca l l  me 

present ing  in  tha t  fash ion .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  you can ’ t  reca l l  you  

present ing  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Ja  because there ’s  a  submiss ion  tha t  

was submi t ted  so  tha t ’s  what  I  was  tak ing  them through,  so  

I  can ’ t  reca l l  th is  i s  what  was wr i t ten  there .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You ’ re  no t  su re  tha t ,  tha t  was  

wr i t ten  on  the  submiss ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  cannot  reca l l  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You can ’ t  reca l l?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Can you reca l l  whethe r  you wou ld  have  20 

sa id  i t  even i f  i t  wasn ’ t  in  the  submiss ion  or  no t ,  o r  tha t  

you may have sa id  i t  even though t  i t  m igh t  no t  have been  

in  the  wr i t ten  submiss ion?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    No,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  p resent  th ings tha t  

I ’ ve  wr i t ten  down or  th ings tha t  I ’ve  gone th rough  in  the  
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submiss ion ,  so  I  can ’ t  –  un less  we have tha t  submiss ion  

here  tha t  w i l l  te l l  you  th is  i s  what  i s…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course  you may have had no 

re ference in  the  wr i t ten  submiss ion  to  Tr i l l i an  be ing  a  b lack  

owned company but  i f  somebody in  the  meet ing  asked the  

quest ion ,  you may have –  you might  have g i ven in fo rmat ion  

tha t  was not  in  the  wr i t ten  submiss ion ,  I  wou ld  imag ine ,  i f  

you  had knowledge o f  what  they were  ask ing ,  I  take  i t? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  know I  p resent  th ings tha t  I  have 

knowledge o f  and  I  –  because I  m ight  have read i t  th rough  10 

the  document ,  tha t ’s  what  I  wou ld  have done but  where  I ’m  

s i t t ing  now,  I  can ’ t  reco l lec t  tha t  th is  i s  what  I  sa id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and you don ’ t  know whether  you 

knew a t  tha t  t ime,  you knew Tr i l l i an  to  be  a  b lack  owned 

company,  you don ’ t  remember  how your  knowledge was as  

to  whether  i t  was a  b lack  owned company?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    The fac t  tha t  Edd ie  Thomas,  who I  

in te rac ted  w i th  in  the  prev ious emai l  was respons ib le  fo r  

p rocu rement ,  he  cou ld  have ver i f i ed  tha t  in fo rmat ion  i f  i t  

was in  the  submiss ion  i t se l f .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you don ’ t  know whether  –  what  you 

knew and what  you d idn ’ t  know a t  the  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    You know,  when we dra f t  submiss ions,  

Cha i rperson,  there ’s  a  who le  lo t  o f  o ther  peop le  tha t  he lp ,  

you know,  cont r ibu te  and i f  you look a t  i t  f rom th is  d ra f t ,  I  
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can  see i t ’s  myse l f ,  h imse l f ,  Edd ie  Thomas and Gary  Peter  

and …[ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  who s igned o f f .   So,  

Edd ie  Thomas wou ld  have cont r ibu ted  f rom a  procurement  

perspect ive  in  –  fo r  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  he  presented  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  we shou ld  speak to  Mr  

Thomas about  the  BEE credent ia ls  o f  Tr i l l i an?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja ,  tha t ’s  i t ,  he  can comfo r tab l y  speak 

on the  procurement  i ssues and BEE issues.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you.   There  are  some 

th ings tha t  you can speak on though,  le t ’s  ge t  to  those.    

“Tr i l l i an  i s  the  b lack  owned company and supp ly  and 

deve lopment  par tner  o f  Reg iments  Cap i ta l ,  the 

fund ing  adv iso r  on  the  1064 locomot ives  

t ransact ion .   Tr i l l i an  was found capab le  o f  

de l i ver ing  on  the  requ i red  c lub  loan dea l  a t  more  

comparab le  pr i ce  than the  JP Morgan p roposa l  

resu l t ing  in  a  sav ing  o f  approx imate ly  820mi l l ion 

w i th  10% fees be ing  payab le  t o  Tr i l l i an  fo r  the 20 

t ransact ion  82mi l l ion” .  

 So,  le t  me ask you two quest ions ,  you ’ l l  reca l l  tha t  

Tr i l l i an ’s  appo in tment  –  so r ry  Reg iments  appo in tment  on  

the  1064 locomot ives  t ransact ion  was someth ing  tha t  the  

BADC had a l ready cons idered and  had put  a  budge t  on .  I t  
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used to  be  90  –  remember  we looked a t  i t  ea r l ie r  I  th ink  i t  

was 95 then i t  jumped up by  another  166 on the  Ch ina  

Deve lopment  Bank loan wh ich  fac i l i ta ted  a f te r  –  w i th  that  

about  147mi l l ion  go ing  to  A lber t ine  and then on to  Sahara  

bu t  tha t  mandate  had a  number  on  i t ,  i t  was –  they ’d  been  

increased to  265mi l l ion  tha t  i s  what  Transnet  had a l loca ted 

fo r  tha t  adv i sory  funct ion .   On what  bas is ,  was  i t  now 

poss ib le  to  f ind  another  82mi l l ion  fo r  tha t  mandate?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rpe rson,  and I  th ink  I ’ ve  a l ready 

ind ica ted  in  the  prev ious quest ion  tha t ,  I  cannot  10 

competent ly  d i scuss o r  respond on procurement  members  

or  p rocurement  p rocesses a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime because I ’m 

not  fu l l y  conversant  w i th  them.   Shou ld  there  be  –  or  had 

an oppor tun i ty  to  p rocure  someth ing  i t  was a lways re fer red  

to  the  procurement  and then they w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  

procu rement  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  unders tand Mr  Chaska lson ’s  

quest ion  no t  to  be  a  procurement  quest ion ,  i f  I  can  put  i t  

tha t  way,  I  unders tand i t  to  be  a  f inanc ia l  one in  the  sense  

tha t  he  is  say ing ,  how –  what  wou ld  have been the  bas is  to  20 

f ind  anothe r  R82mi l l ion ,  Mr  Chaska lson you must  te l l  me i f  

I  m isunders tood you?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    That ’s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t ’s  no t  a  p rocurement  i ssue to  

say,  can you do  th is ,  can you not  do  th is ,  jus t  say  what  
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wou ld  have been  the  bas i s  fo r  f ind ing  the  R82mi l l ion  in  

add i t ion  –  anothe r  R82mi l l ion  a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Cha i rperson,  Mr  Chaska lson is  ta lk ing  

about  an  ex tens ion  o f  cont rac t  w i th  Reg iments  to  200  

numbers ,  a  35  number  and th i s  i s  a  payment  to  Tr i l l i an 

wh ich  is  no t  l inked to  tha t  ex tens ion  cont ract .  So,  I  jus t  

don ’ t  unders tand why he is  lean ing  to  the  two t ransact ions.  

MR CHASKALSON SC:    As  I  unders tand,  the  way Transnet  

budgets  in  re la t ion  to  i t s  p rocu rement ,  i s  in  re la t ion  to  any 

g iven procurement  there  is  a  budget  g iven  to  the  10 

procurement  as  a  who le  wh ich  w i l l  inc lude the  pr imary  

cont rac tor  and the  supp l ie r  deve lopment  par tner  and tha t  

budget ,  I  was to ld ,  o r  we saw prev ious ly,  had in i t ia l l y  been 

99 then i t  jumped to  265,  I  th ink  i t  was,  have I  

m isunders tood how Transnet  budge ts?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  don ’ t  know because I  was not  par t  o f  

the  budget ing  process around cont rac to rs ,  ma in  

cont rac tors ,  and  sub-cont rac to rs ,  tha t  I  have no c lue .   

That ’s  why,  in  th i s  t ransact ion  Edd ie  Thomas was  brought  

in  to  dea l  w i th  those spec i f i c  i ssues.  20 

MR CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe we ’ l l  have some 

conversa t ions w i th  Mr  Thomas but  there  i s  someth ing  about  

wh ich  you very  much d id  know about .   Look a t  tha t  las t  

phrase,  

“Tr i l l i an  was found capab le  o f  de l i ver ing  on  the  
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requ i red  loan dea l  a t  a  more  comparab le  pr i ce  than  

the  JP Morgan proposa l  resu l t ing  in  a  sav ing  o f  

approx imate l y  820mi l l ion  w i th  10% fees be ing  

payab le  to  Tr i l l i an  fo r  the  t ransact ion  82mi l l ion” ,  

 Now where  on  ear th  does tha t  f igure ,  120mi l l ion  

come f rom,  you p resented th is?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    Yes,  I  p resented th is  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you remember  what  your  las t  

memo in  re la t ion  to  sav ings and app les  and o ranges  was? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  remember  the  dra f t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:  So let  me take you back there 11 

September.   I t  is at  page 491.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am at  491.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you see that  table – do you 

remember that  tab le? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  remember the table.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there are two tables on the top 

hal f  of  the page.  The one says Savings achieved by 

securing club loan at  68 basis points cheaper than the 

equivalent  dol lar funding f rom CDB.   I t  says Savings in ZAR 20 

478 mi l l ion which then becomes 502 mi l l ion I  am – how does 

478 becomes 502? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chairperson you know i t  is di ff icul t  to  

discuss a draf t  because i f  you look at  th is th is was my f i rst  

draf t  that  I  sent  to Gary’s off ice and f rom Gary’s off ice there 
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is a lot  of  people who have cont r ibuted into this draf t .   So as 

is in f ront  of  me I  see a draf t  so I  cannot comparably say this  

draf t  is what has gone to the ADC for approval .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  am sure i t  d id  not  go to the ADC 

for approval .   But  i f  you remember the genesis of  th is draf t  

Regiments gave you a draf t  that  compared this new c lub loan 

wi th the JP Morgan deal  and found a saving of  about  763 

mi l l ion and you said that  is apples and oranges.   Rather  

compare this new deal  wi th the China Development Bank 

deal .   Do you remember that? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  remember that  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So you wanted apples compared 

wi th apples? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  remember that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And when the apples came back 

compared with apples f rom Regiments the saving was 502 

mi l l ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes I  remember that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then when we go to  apples 

against  oranges we see 763 mi l l ion.   But  nowhere do we see 20 

820 mi l l ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I t  was – that  as a draf t .   That  was a 

draf t  which was st i l l  to be worked and the f inal  draf t  is not  

what I  see here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes I  know the f inal  draf t  is not  
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what  you see here but  we know that  you mot ivated a saving 

of  820 mi l l ion.   Do you have any recol lect ion of  how you 

mot ivated that  820 mi l l ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   There was a f inal  draf t  which was 

worked out  and that  f inal  draf t  I  th ink the people who 

contr ibuted to  i t  you know they worked out  you know the 

numbers properly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And who were those people then? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  know I  worked wi th my team in the 

Treasury and then another person that  I  worked with here for 10 

the Development  of  th is document is – is Eddie and then 

there was Helen Walsh who worked on this document 

actual ly.   Helen Walsh worked on the f inal  document and 

then there was a lady also in f inance who worked on these 

documents cal led – I  forget  but  her surname is Chukudu.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry Chukudu? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And as you stand now you just  do 

not  know how th is  f igure of  820 mi l l ion arose? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   And the f ina l  document which is – but  i f  20 

you look at  i t  i t  is very di fferent  f rom th is one.   This is  the 

f inal  document Chair  that  I  had.   I t  is the one that  went to 

the ADC.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh is  i t  a document that  we do not  have in 

the bundle? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  th ink i t  is a document you do not  have.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   So I  am sure Mr Chaskalson 

would love to get  a copy.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Could I  have a look at  i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:    I  wi l l  share wi th you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you very much.  Can I  just  

glance at  i t  and then I  – you keep i t  and I  wi l l  make – I  wi l l…  

Chair  I  wonder i f  we could have copies made of  th is  

document for yoursel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So that  when I  ask the quest ions 

you can at  least  see i t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes no.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   In the meant ime I  wi l l  move on so 

that  we do not  waste t ime.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes that  is f ine.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  we wi l l  come back to i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So we wi l l  come back to how 50.2 

became 82 but  let  us then see what happened af ter th is 20 

meet ing.   On – this meet ing was on 1 October – can we go to 

545?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you say 545? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   545 Chai r  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   545? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   545.   And there on 16 November 

you wi l l  see an emai l  f rom yoursel f  to yoursel f  at taching a 

document cal led Tr i l l ian Mandate.   And i f  you go to the next  

page 546 you wi l l  see a draf t  of  a mandate to  Tr i l l ian and i t  

runs for I  th ink seven pages.   And i f  you go to 560 you wi l l  

see the signed vers ion of  i t  on 18 November 2015 – wel l  

sorry I  am just-   i t  is late in the day.   Can I  go back to 16 

November do you recal l  sending this draf t  mandate to 

yoursel f  on 16 November?  Do you re – yes wel l  that  is the 10 

f i rst  quest ion.   Do you accept  that  you – that  th is emai l  

where you at tach the draf t  mandate send i t  to yoursel f  was 

something that  you did on 16 November? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  cannot recal l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cannot recal l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Did you draf t  the draf t  mandate? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So who draf ted the draf t  mandate? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  th ink i t  was picked for me.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry you th ink i t  was? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   This was picked – this was – this they 

draf ted themselves.   I  shared the – I  shared the generic 

mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Sorry you shared? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI:   A gener ic mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   A generic mandate.   So th is would 

have come from Transnet Legal? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  would have come… 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No,  no this one was discussed between 

Transnet and Tr i l l ian.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I t  is a document that  you have in  

draf t  form.  Let  us go to page 546 i t  says Print  on Tr i l l ian 

headed note paper.  And you have the draf t .   How did – how 10 

would a draf t  that  says Print  on Tr i l l ian headed note paper 

get  to you? 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Chaskalson did you say we 

should go to 506? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Oh sorry 546 Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   546.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   546.   How would a draf t  which 

says Print  on Tr i l l ian headed note paper get  to you? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Because we deal  wi th var ious 

inst i tut ions.   They do not  want to deviate f rom the standard 20 

clauses that  a cl ient  has so you share them with them – a 

draf t  term sheet  or  a draf t  legal  document or a draf t  faci l i ty  

agreement to put  on their  let terhead i f  they feel  conf ident  

that  i t  capture – i t  captures thei r  interest .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And who would the re levant  
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inst i tut ion be here who would be concerned about? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   We deal  wi th – we have deal t  wi th  

[00:09:26]  sel f  Chairperson.   We are a number of  counter  

part ies in our  – in  ei ther syndicated loans or c lub loans or bi -

lateral  loan or fac i l i ty agreements you know that  I  have deal t  

wi th most  inst i tut ions.   And we exchange and share faci l i ty  

agreements or draf t  faci l i ty agreements or draf t  b i - lateral  

loan agreements to the extent  that  sat isf ies me and them 

then i t  gets concluded by the legals.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  so that  I  understand.   The mandate 10 

would have been Transnet ’s mandate to Tr i l l ian is  i t  not?  

The mandate that  we talk about .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I t  could be Transnet ’s mandate,  i t  could 

be a draf t  mandate that  we have used for  the di fferent  

cl ients.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes but  what I  am talk ing about  

ul t imately.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   U l t imately.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The mandate would – that  we talk ing about 

would have been Transnet ’s mandate to Tr i l l ian.  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I t  wi l l  be a mandate between Tr i l l ian and 

Transnet ul t imately.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  Yes but  somebody must give a 

mandate.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes you are r ight .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and that  would be Transnet.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No you could g ive any.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Huh.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   We could give any.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  who was going to be – I  mean was 

Tr i l l ian not  go ing to be rendering a serv ice or doing work for  

Transnet and Transnet therefore had to say this is the scope 

of  your mandate.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Ja they… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I f  I  employ you as my f inancial  advisor I  10 

decide the scope of  your  mandate.   I f  I  employ Mr 

Chaskalson as my advocate and I  say deal  wi th th is cr iminal  

matter his mandate fal ls wi thin the cr iminal  matter he cannot 

start  deal ing wi th my commercial  matters.   I  decide the 

scope of  the mandate.   And he can say i f  he – i f  he is happy 

wi th i t  that  is f ine i f  he is not  happy wi th i t  I  wi l l  go and look 

for somebody who wi l l  be happy wi th i t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No the scope of  the mandate is  what  

would have been agreed which should be ref lected in the 

mandate i tsel f .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  the pr inciple as i t  were is i t  not  the 

pr inciple  who says this  is what I  want  you to do?  Then you 

can say I  am happy wi th that  or you might  say Wel l  I  would 

l ike you to  give me more – bigger  scope of  the mandate for 

reason ABCD and then the pr inciple  says okay I  wi l l  g ive you 
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more or no I  am not  g iv ing you more.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No the scope is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Or is there some… 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Sorry Chairperson that  I  ta lk over you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   No,  no,  no I  am saying is there 

something I  am missing? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No the scope would have been agreed 

up f ront .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Huh-uh.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   But  the nature of  the mandate could be 10 

anywhere – coming f rom anywhere.   You can f rom a – f rom 

the suppl ier or the service or i t  could be f rom the cl ient  who 

is wi l l  be receiving the serv ice.   But  ul t imately we need to 

negot iate the terms and – of  that  mandate to be agreed upon 

and sign off .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr Chaskalson cont inue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Wel l  I  am not  

going to push this  further but  can I  ask you then to go down 

to page 562?  And there we see the signed version of  the 

mandate signed by Siyabonga Gama, Gary Peter and Daniel  20 

Roy for Tr i l l ian on 18 November 2015.  Is  th is  what was then 

the cont ract  between Transnet and Tr i l l ian? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is the signed cont ract  between 

Transnet and Tr i l l ian.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  take you to page 568.   That  
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s igned contract  is  dated 18 November 2015.  Tr i l l ian wasted 

very l i t t le t ime on the same day they issued an invoice to 

Transnet for R82 mi l l ion plus VAT coming to R93 480 000.00.   

The signatures on that  invoice that  I  see do you ident i fy  

them as Gary Peter and Siyabonga Gama? 

CHAIRPERSON:   And what page is that  Mr? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   At  568.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you ident i fy those two 

signatures as Gary Peter and Siyabonga Gama? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So those – those would have been 

the people inside Transnet  who author ised payment of  th is  

invoice? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And i f  we go to 569 we see a 

payment advice issued the fol lowing day 19 November 2015 

to pay Tr i l l ian Asset  Management R93 480 000.00 is i t  again 

Gary Peter and S iyabonga Gama whose signatures we see 

author is ing that?  Mr Ramosebudi .  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is thei r  s ignatures yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  is their  s ignatures.    Is i t  the 

pract ice of  Transnet  usual ly to pay on 1 day – 1 day af ter  

invoice? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  would not  know Chai rperson the 
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ar rangement between the cl ient  or the suppl ier and the 

cl ient .   I  – these things they had – they have happened you 

know outside my area of  payment.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see.   Wel l  the evidence wi l l  show 

that  the amount of  R93 480 was paid into Tr i l l ians bank 

account on 4 December 2015.   Are you aware that  four days 

later  80% of  that  amount being R74 784 was t ransferred to 

Albert ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am not  aware Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And you were not  aware – you are 10 

not  aware now and you were not  aware then? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  was not  aware then and I  am just  

coming to be aware now from this f rom the evidence leader 

Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Now can you think of  any 

reason why – did Albert ime play any role whatsoever in the 

club loan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chai rperson that  is beyond the – my 

comprehension in  terms of  who was paid out  of  the payment 

that  went to Tr i l l ian.   I  d id not  know that .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  what  Mr Chaskalson seeks to 

establ ish is whether to your knowledge Albert ime had any 

ro le to play in regard to th is t ransact ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No they did not  have a role to play in – 

wi th me di rect ly.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Had you encountered Albert ime at  

al l  in? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  have never encountered Albert ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Nobody ment ioned Alber t ime to 

you at  the t ime? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   You ment ioned the name yesterday and 

I  started seeing him from your 10.64 Di rect ive.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And Mr Kuban Moodley did anyone 

ment ion his name because? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  started seeing the name from the 

media and then you ment ioned the detai ls here as f rom 

yesterday.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   But  at  the t ime nobody ment ioned 

his name.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  never heard of  him at  the t ime.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   We have to move I  am afraid to  

one more of  these spinning t ransact ions and for that  can I  

take you to page 570? And let  us just  recap a l i t t le bi t  before 

we get  to 570.    20 

 We start  off  wi th Transnet  having a rand base l iabi l i ty  

in relat ion to the purchase of  locomot ives.   Transnet then 

changes 2.5 b i l l ion of  that  rand based l iab i l i ty into a dol lar 

based l iabi l i ty wi th the China Development Bank and in the 

process 189 mi l l ion goes to  Regiments Capi tal ,  78% of  which 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 261 of 297 
 

immediately passed on to Albert ime who in turn t ransfer that  

in almost  the ent i re amount to Sahara Computers.  

 Then we have Transnet deciding that  af ter al l  they 

want to turn some of  thei r  do l lar l iabi l i ty back into a rand 

l iabi l i ty and a club loan gets arranged.  In i t ia l ly that  was 

going to JP Morgan then i t  became Regiments and eventual ly  

i t  becomes Tr i l l ian who at  that  stage seems to be Daniel  Roy 

in terms of  interact ion wi th Transnet and for that  Tr i l l ian get  

paid inc lusive of  VAT R93 480.000 to turn 1 bi l l ion dol lars 

worth of  loan exposure into the equivalent  rand exposure 10 

and wi thin a couple of  days 80% of  the 93 mi l l ion goes to  

Albert ime.  

 We now have a si tuat ion where there is a R12 bi l l ion 

exposure on the c lub loan.   Mr Ramosebudi  was that  a f ixed 

or a f loat ing exposure? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   This was a f loat ing exposure.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Right .   And ear ly in December 

bearing in mind that  the ink was barely dry on the Tr i l l ian 

invoice for R93 mi l l ion f rom 18 November for the club loan 

someone got  the idea of  actual ly swapping the interest  rate 20 

exposure on the club loan f rom f loat ing to f ixed.   And 

whoever that  someone was told Danie Smit  at  Transnet and 

do you know who – can you tel l  the Chair  who Danie Smit  is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Chairperson Danie Smit  was one of  the 

persons working in Treasury he was responsible for an area 
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in Treasury cal led Risk Management and Compl iance.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can I  ask you to go to page 570?   

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am at  570 Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And there you wi l l  see that  on 2 

December Danie Smit  sent  an emai l  to you and to Gary Peter 

in relat ion to the interest  rate r isk on the R12 bi l l ion club 

loan.   Do you recal l  – oh sorry the narrat ive is:  

“Hi  Gary and Phetolo my humble opinion on the interest  rate 

r isk exposure of  the club loan.   Kind regards Danie”  

 Do you recal l  receiving that  emai l?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  cannot recal l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Wel l  maybe i f  you read the 

memorandum i t  wi l l  ref resh your mind.   I t  is draf ted in your 

name to go to Gary Peter and i t  explains why Danie Smit  

th inks i t  would be a very bad idea to swap interest  – f loat ing 

interest  on the club loan to f ixed interest  wi th an interest  

rate swap.  Let  us look at  the conclusion at  572? 

“Conclusion i t  is recommended that  the club 

loan not  be switched to a f ixed rate exposure 

by means of  an interest  swap due to the 20 

fol lowing:  

I f  there was a def in i te need to f ix the rate 

dur ing f inal isat ion of  the club loan the loan 

should have been deal t  as f ixed as any swap 

wi l l  create an amount of  vo lat i l i ty in the 
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income statement due to fa i r  value 

movements which could be minimised by the 

appl icat ion of  hedge account ing. ”  

 So can I  – can I  just  put  to you my understanding of  

what Danie Smit  is saying there.  

 I f  we thought we needed f ixed when we were rais ing 

the club loan we should have raised f ixed on the club loan 

not  f loat ing.   Is that  not  what he is saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  am not  too sure of  that  Chai rperson I  

th ink Danie is just  s imply saying he is not  – he is not  10 

recommending that  … 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   No I  do not  want you to express a 

view on whether Danie was r ight  or wrong but  I  just  want us 

to understand what Danie is saying.   So is he saying in the 

f i rst  instance i f  we want i t  f ixed for  the club loan we should 

have raised f ixed on the club loan and not  f loat ing.   Is that  

not  what he is saying? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No that  is t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Second point  he says:  

“ Interest  rate swaps wi l l  use massive credi t  20 

l ines f rom banks which is not  that  f reely  

avai lab le over a f i f teen year tenure and 

these l ines are required to hedge forex 

re lated exposures due to MDS requi rements.”  

He is saying:  
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“ I f  we do this interest  rate swap we are going 

to t ie up a whole lot  – a big proport ion of  the 

credi t  l ines that  we need. ”  

 That  is what he is saying is i t  not?  I  am not  asking 

you to express an opin ion on whether i t  is r ight  or wrong.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   This one he says yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Then he says:  

“Swaps wi l l  come at  a cost  which need to be 

determined in the market . ”  

I t  is going to cost  us to do these swaps.   Do you remember 10 

what i t  u l t imately  did cost  us to do these swaps?  Do you 

remember? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Come again.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Do you remember he says swaps 

wi l l  come at  a  cost  which need to be determined in  the 

market .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is what he says here.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes and do you remember what the 

cost  u l t imately turned out  to be? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No I  do not  – I  cannot remember.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I f  I  were to say to you R229 mi l l ion 

would you be able to cont radict  me? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is  the number you saw 

Chairperson.   I  d id not  have that  exposure.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   I  see.    
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“L iquidi ty for the 12 bi l l ion wi l l  have to be 

tested in the market .   There is current ly a  

gap of  around 200 basis points between the 

cost  of  a f loat ing rate loan and the indicat ive 

cost  to f ix and based on the forecast  of  VER 

and the addi t ional  pressure the cost  of  

swapping to f ix  wi l l  create on the cash 

interest  cover rat io.   I t  is not  recommended 

to swap the club loan f rom f loat ing to f ixed. ”  

What is he saying there? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   He says the di fferent ia l  between the 

f ixed and the f loat ing rate is 200 basis points.   I t  is 2%.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is what he says.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And that  is going to put  – the extra 

2% is going to put  pressure on the cash interest  cover  rat ios.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   [Talk ing over one another]  cash interest  

cover rat io.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   That  is what i t  says ja.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So let  us look at  what happens.   

Gary Peter f i rst  responds.   Go to page – can you go to page 

577?  577.   Gary Peters response to th is memo was 

“Thanks Danie i t  is wel l  wr i t ten and I  

understand the logic.   Phetolo are you in 
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agreement that  we do not  enter  into the 

swaps?” 

Do you recal l  receiving th is f rom Gary Peter? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  see i t  here ja so i t  means i t  came to 

me.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Maybe th is wi l l  ref resh your 

memory.   Can you go to page 578?  This is an emai l  f rom 

you to Er ic Wood.  I t  forwards Gary Peter ’s emai l  and i t  

says:  

“ I  need to sort  th is one out . ”  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   True.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   What were you saying to Er ic  

Wood? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  th ink subsequent to that  I  got  a cal l  

f rom – f rom Er ic Wood to say that  Danie is not  cooperat ing 

on what he was requested to do.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   Was Eric Wood going to be 

the one who was going to  be paid R229 mi l l ion i f  th is  

t ransact ion went through? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Regiments was working on the 20 

t ransact ion.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   And he said Danie is not  

cooperat ing and you said I  need to sort  th is one out .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Precisely t rue.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Why did you say I  need to sort  th is 
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one out? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   As the head of  the funct ion I  cannot  you 

know al low somebody in my funct ion or in my area not  to be 

happy of  something that  needs to  be done.  So I  need to 

understand the reason why – the reason why he was not  

happy about i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry can I  ask you to  repeat  that  

answer but  face this side I  do not  –  I  d id not  hear properly.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Sorry Chai rperson.   I  said that  is t rue I  

wanted to make sure that  I  resolve the issues between Er ic  10 

and Danie so that  I  can – we can have a common ground on 

the expectat ion that  needed to be done.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  or maybe I  should let  you Mr 

Chaskalson deal  wi th the – what – what Er ic Wood meant by 

saying Mr Danie Smit  was not  cooperat ing or do you want me 

to do that? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Chair  I  am – I  am – i t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   What did he mean by saying Mr Danie Smit  

was not  cooperat ing? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   I  th ink i f  I  can recol lect  wel l  because 20 

Danie and Eric were communicat ing about the cash f low 

prof i le that  needed to be swapped at  the t ime.  And there 

was a -  probably whatever Er ic requested f rom Danie at  the 

t ime Danie was not  happy about i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  obviously Er ic would maybe wanted 
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the swap.  Did he not  want the swap? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   No he wanted a cash f low prof i le to do 

the swap.  Because you cannot do a swap without  having the 

cash f low prof i le.   You need to have the cash f low prof i le to 

then be able to  then model  out  what the interest  rate prof i le  

is going to be.   What are the cash f low prof i le going to be,  

what are the interest  rate is going to be der ived f rom the 

[00:29:22]  that  we are us ing.  So that  is what I  th ink they had 

an issue between the two of  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  did you get  to  understand exact ly what 10 

the nature of  Mr Smit ’s non-cooperat ion was as far as Eric  

Wood was concerned? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   Yes Chairperson which is [00:29:44]  i t  

into this memo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What was i t  – what was the nature of  his  

non-cooperat ion? 

 MR RAMOSEBUDI:   He d id not  want to give Eric the 

prof i les.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI:   And then when he did not  want  to give 20 

him the prof i les or  the cash f low prof i le in th is memo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  what he was saying in th is 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 269 of 297 
 

memo has got  nothing to do wi th cash f low prof i les.   I t  says 

the swap is  a very bad idea.   We do not  need to do th is.   I t  is 

going to cost  us.   I t  is go ing to put  st ress on our interest  

rat io.   I t  is bad for  a range of  di fferent  reasons.    

 And when Gary Peter read i t ,  he agreed.   So i t  has 

nothing to do wi th whether or not  he is giv ing cash f low 

prof i les to Mr Wood.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chai rperson,  I  am giving you the 

genesis of  the issues,  why I  said I  wi l l  sort  i t  out  because I  

wanted to go and talk to Daniel  about  i t .    10 

 Let  me give you the Genesis of  the – we saw i t  March 

t ime.  In one occasion -  I  cannot remember exact ly wel l  -  in  

one occasion,  I  was asked about. . .  

 Every quarter we present  a r isk management report  to  

board,  the sub-commit tee which was Risk Commit tee.   I  

forgot  the exact  name.   

 And in that  presentat ion,  we did proffer our exposures in 

interest  rate,  extend rate,  commodi t ies because Transnet is  

exposed to commodit ies.    

 And the quest ion arose at  one of  the meet ings,  which I  20 

cannot recal l  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  is  the Audi t  and Risk Commit tee,  I  

suppose? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.   The quest ion ar ise:   What  is your  

interest  rate st rategy?  You know.  They were having a r isk 
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management st rategy in detai l .   And through that ,  the CFO, 

at  the t ime was Gary Peter,  who requested the Pheto lo:   Can 

you do me a r isk management st rategy?  You know.   

 Seeing that  we have raised a whole lot  of  funding in  14 

rates and f ixed rates.   And when I  looked at  one of  the 

submissions,  when there was a recommendat ion for the 

funding of  the locomot ive.    

 There was a submission which detai ls that  we need to 

move our rand f rom wherever  i t  was to something 40 to 60 

fees 40.   And we were not  there.   We were si t t ing around a 10 

very low level  of  around 20% of  14.   I  mean f ixed.    

 A whole lot  of  funding was in 14.   So we developed a 

document to deal  wi th the management st rategy.    

 Chairperson,  as the head of  the funct ion.   With over  30 

employees,  I  cannot si t  and wri te a document that  deals wi th  

Treasury.   I  have got  respect ive heads.   I  empowered them.   

 And one of  those was Danie.   And Danie had over  40 

years wi th Transnet  and he was 12 years older than me.  I  do 

not  th ink I  would be inst ruct ing him to do things that  he was 

not  wi l l ing to do.    20 

 When I  got  to Danie,  I  involved him because he is the 

real  of  expert ise.   Whi le th is – my - also – my head of  

expert ise that  is –  because he is the head of  that  funct ion.    

 I  gave him the duty to work on the interest  rate st rategy.   

He developed i t  in the document.   And in the document,  we 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 271 of 297 
 

presented i t  to Gary.   I  th ink i t  a lso went to Risk and 

Management Commit tee.    

 I f  he himsel f ,  Danie,  recommended to do an interest  rate 

swaps.   I  d id  not .   He did i t .   So sort ing out  was – Danie,  is 

there any other th ing that  we could do other than. . .?   

 Because we have developed i t .   We have missed. . .   I t  

means,  i f  we do not  do i t ,  we have mislead the board and 

that  is not  what I  wanted to do.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi ,  I  have to put  to  10 

you that  that  answer is s imply fa lse.   Can I  take you to page 

580? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And there is an emai l  that  you 

sent  to Gary Peter at  12:15.   And I  just  want to put  that  in 

perspect ive.   Your one-l iner to Er ic Wood:  Need to sort  th is 

one out .   I t  was 12:32.   So 18 minutes later,  you sent  an 

emai l  to  Gary Smi t(sic) of  the. . .   Sorry,  Gary Peter.   Copying 

in Danie Smit .  

“Hi  Gary.   I  guess this is t rue i f  the club loan is the 20 

only t ransact ion Transnet is doing for the ent i re 

MDS period and that  the vo lat i le economic 

environment ahead of  us wi th h igher inf lat ionary 

environment,  i t  is  important  to managed the interest  

rate expectat ions going forward to create that  
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certainty in Transnet ’s interest  expense for the 

management of  the CIC.  

I t  is,  therefore,  prudent in  a high- inf lat ion 

environment and volat i le exchange rate to f ix most  

of  the commitment for the same reasons.  

This wi l l  he lp us to reduce the number of  var iables 

to manage the decl in ing levels.  

I  am sorry you received the conf l ict ing message 

f rom Danie,  who d id not  consul t  wi th  me on this.  

As Head of  Treasury,  I  am concerned with the 10 

exchange rate and the inf lat ion expectat ions and i t  

is prudent to manage this r isk appropriately.  

A proper submission is on the way for approval . ”  

 So that  is what you wrote to Gary.   Do you accept  that  is  

what you wrote to  Gary? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is what  I  wrote to Gary.   Yes,  I  

accept .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And what you were saying is,  as 

Head of  Treasury:   I  need an interest  swap.   Is that  not  

r ight? 20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Because of  what we have already 

promised that  we need to do.   We need to hedge our  

exposures to interest  rate in  a prosperi ty swap – 

t ransparency r isk.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  i f  you d id not  want a f loat ing 
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exposure.   Why had you incurred a R 12 bi l l ion f loat ing 

exposure the previous month,  which you are now swapping 

to a f ixed exposure at  R 229 mi l l ion cost  that  was going to  

be paid to Regiments? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  is known Chairperson in  the market  

that  is very di ff icul t  to get  funding in a f ixed rate in the 

market  over the simi lar s izes that  we have raised(?) in the 

market .    

 You know, even f rom a personal  po int  of  v iew, just  to  go 

and ra ise a loan in the market ,  I  mean the model  is bought.  10 

I t  do not  give you a f ixed rate.   They give you 14 rate.    

 Because the banks,  the fund managers,  thei r  easy 

funding rate is a 14 rate.   I t  is easy for them to expand that 

to a cl ient  than a f ixed rate because what i t  ca l ls for,  is that  

they must  go and had i t  wi thout  in appropriate counter party 

on the other side.    

 So what they could want to do is to avoid that  so that  

they can pass the rais ing costs f rom one ent i ty to the other 

wi thout  being involved in that  t ransact ion.   And that  is what 

happens in the market .    20 

 I  have indicated,  I  have over 25 year in th is market .   I  

have worked for  Nat ional  Treasury.   I  d id the same 

transact ion.    

 I  have worked for the Development Bank.   I  have worked 

for Nat ional  Housing Finance.   I  worked for ABSA, SAA and 
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Transnet on two occasions.   And those are the t ransact ions 

that  we have been doing.   They are not  pecul iar.    

CHAIRPERSON :    But  do you. . .   What do you say to 

Mr Danie Smit ’s point  in that  emai l  that  he sent  where he 

said i f  Transnet  wanted a f ixed rate,  interest  rate,  that  

should have been done at  the beginning?  I f  I  remember 

correct ly.    

 The emai l  that ,  I  th ink,  Gary Peter responded to by 

saying i t  is wel l -wri t ten.   I t  is l ike I  can understand the logic.   

Remember,  the point  that  Danie Smi t  made in that  emai l?  10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  I  remember some points.   And some 

points that  he raised were around - a swap comes at  a cost .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   You did not  respond to him or did  

you? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  d id not  respond to him.   

CHAIRPERSON :    You did? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  d id not  respond to h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  he made a certain point  and he was 

against  th is proposal .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And Gary Peter agreed with him.  So my 

quest ion is.   How do you meet his point  or how did you meet 

his point? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  the issues that  he was rais ing here.   

He was raising this issue of  swap, wi l l  come at  a cost .   
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Whether you raise a f ixed rate today,  the bank wi l l  pr ice you 

f rom a 14 rate to a f ixed rate.   They wi l l  add the cost .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Chaskalson.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    So that  cost  wi l l  be there.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The gap of  200 basis points between 

the cost  of  a f loat ing rate and f ixed rate,  that  is what is  in  

the bucket .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And you – in actual  fact ,  what we have 10 

achieved on an average – I  do not  th ink we have achieved 

over  200 basis points.   They have been less than 200 basis 

points.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr Chaskalson,  I  do not  know whether  

Mr Ramosebudi  answered your much earl ier quest ion,  when 

you said,  the explanat ion he gave was fa lse.   And then you 

referred him to his emai l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So,  I  am just  ment ioning that  and I  am 

leaving i t  to you to – i f  you want to  go back to i t  or you want  20 

to move on.   He did not  – he does not  seem to remember 

that  he. . .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  I  put  i t  to him that  the 

explanat ion about  Danie not  sending cash f low values to Er ic 

Wood and problems of  that  nature,  was simply fa lse.   I  do 
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not  propose to take i t  further.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi ,  do you know what  

these swaps had cost  Transnet as of  today? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  have – I  am more than two years 

out  of  Transnet .   I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  a t  the point  that  you have 

lef t  Transnet ,  was Transnet t ry ing to  get  out  of  the swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  Transnet was not  t ry ing to get  out  

of  the swaps.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  certa inly is now.  These swaps 

has cost  Transnet  more than one and a hal f  b i l l ion rands.   

Can you contradict  that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know.  I  have never checked,  

you know, the valuat ions of  those swaps.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Sorry,  you . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  have never  seen the valuat ions of  

those swaps.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   So,  i f  I  put  i t  to you that  

these swaps are more than R 1.5 b i l l ion underwater f rom the 20 

Transnet ’s side at  th is point .   Can you – you cannot 

contradict  that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot cont radict  because the interest  

rate has gone down now, you know.   There was an off ic ia l  

cut t ing of  interest  rate which is not  necessari ly what was 
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happening in the market  to,  except  to take care of  the 

chal lenges that  we were facing f rom a Covid point  of  v iew.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   Wel l ,  let  us just  f in ish off  

here.   I f  we go to  page 582.   I f  Danie Smit  was less resolute 

than we would hope him to be.   There was an emai l  back to  

you on 2 December,  13:40.  

“Hi ,  Phetolo,  I  am real ly sorry that  I  created a 

conf l ict ing message.  This was never the intent ion.   

My understanding f rom you ear l ier  was to do the 

memo which I  need to give to you and Gary.  10 

My sincere apologies.   I  do not  want to a si tuat ion 

where the two of  us are not  working together.  

I  want  to cooperate wi th you al l  the t ime.  

Please let  us discuss how I  can change the memo to 

ensure that  you are comfortable to take to Gary.  

I  wi l l  a lso apologised to Gary.   I  have no problem 

with that .   I  wi l l  come and discuss when you are 

avai lab le. ”  

 Wel l ,  do you recal l  receiving that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot recal l  receiving that  but  I  know 20 

me and Danie were there.   We had a good relat ionship.   He 

might  have wri te – read i t  back to me.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  see.   And then i f  we go down to 

584,  we see a new memorandum that  says exact ly the 

opposi te of  what Danie Smit  had in tended to say.    
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 And the purpose is – the purpose of  th is memorandum is  

to obtain approval  f rom the act ing Group Chief  Financia l  

Off icer to hedge the interest  rates exposures f rom a f loat  for 

f ixed basis for  the amount of  R 12 bi l l ion to  inst ruct  

Regiments Capi ta l  as per the 1064 Locomot ives’ mandate.   

To execute the hedges wi th  Transnet ’s approved 

counterparts.    

 And 1.3,  the execut ion cost  of  hedges by Regiments 

Capi tal  wi l l  be al l  inclusive in the rate of  the interest  swap.  

So I  can I  put  to you what was going to happen?   10 

 You were now recommending that  interest  swaps take 

place and that  the cost  of  those swaps in terms of  the fee to  

Regiments would be hidden in the rate of  the interest  rate 

swaps.    

 So there would not  be a payment to Regiments that  

anyone at  Transnet  would see.   Al l  that  would happen is that  

the spread on the swap would go up by 20 basis points at  

Transnet ’s expense.   Is that  what was being suggested 

there? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    That  is  how pr ic ing of  these types of  20 

t ransact ions – of  instruments happen in the market .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   But  in terms of  procurement, 

you wi l l  recal l  that  th is 1060 Locomot ive’s  mandate that  I  

th ink in i t ia l ly started out  under twenty mi l l ion and then grew 

and grew and became ninety.    
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 And then had a 166 added onto i t  for the China 

Development Bank to become 265 and then had another 

ninety – eighty-two added onto i t  to accommodate Tr i l l ian’s  

82 mi l l ion bonanza on the club loan.    

 Was now going to have to accommodate the present  

value of  a 20 basis point  fee to Regiments Capi ta l  i f  that  

went to the board at  the BADC.   

 I t  would have to be 229 mi l l ion added to the 265 plus 82 

that  we had seen al ready.   Do you think you would have got  

that  passed the BADC? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  am asking you a quest ion.   

Would you – what  do you think the BADC, even that  BADC, 

would have approved another 229 mi l l ion on the 1064 

Locomot ives’ mandate for Regiments Capi ta l?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Because this system Chai rperson,  they 

are done under that  mandate.   So i t  means that  mandate is  

approved.   The management of  r isk . . . [ indist inct ]  that  

emanate f rom the funding of  1064.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  but  i f  you had to pay 20 

229 mi l l ion out ,  the BADC would have to look at  i t  and would 

have to put  thei r  names to another 229 mi l l ion to Regiments.   

Do you think that  -  was there a r isk that  they would not  have 

done that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is a quest ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    To the extent  that  the mot ivat ion talks 

of  the cost  and benef i t  of  the t ransact ion.   I  guess the 

decision would depend on what value or cost  are der ived 

f rom – what value is der ived f rom the cost  that  is going to be 

spend f rom that  type of  a t ransact ion.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Did this ever go to the BADC? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The 1064 mandate approval ,  I  th ink i t  

went  to the BADC.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  am not  ta lk ing about the 1064 10 

mandate approval .   I  am talk ing about th is payment to 

Regiments that  was going to have a present  value of  

229 mi l l ion.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  guess i t  was covered in that  mandate 

for the funding and the r isk management.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    No,  Mr Ramosebudi ,  your  answer 

is incorrect  because we have seen what the mandate was 

f rom our previous vis i t  to the BADC.  Pr ior to  Tr i l l ian,  that  

mandate had been f ixed at  265 and there had to be a special  

decision of  the BADC to get  i t  up to 265.  20 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The scope of  work was covered in  the 

mandate.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  but  the money was not .   Was 

i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    The scope of  work was covered in  the 



27 NOVEMBER 2020 – DAY 314 
 

Page 281 of 297 
 

mandate in the mandate Chai rperson.   So the speci f ic 

t ransact ions in terms of  how they are done – because they 

are not  paid out  o f  the budget of  Transnet ’s point  of  v iew.   

 And not ,  i t  is because they wanted to be that  way but  i t  

is the way of  the nature of  the instrument  pr ice is in the 

market .   I t  is not  covered in the budget f rom a procurement 

point  of  v iew but  f rom an interest  cost  l ine at  the budget 

level .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  I  want  to put  to you that  th is 

part icular payment Regiments Capi tal  or which was 10 

supposed to be Regiments Capi tal  was certainly not  covered 

by any budget in 1064.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Chairperson,  that  l ine budget  of  

interest  expense,  is the component of  what funding were 

going to be done in the market  and how i t  is going to change 

the prof i le of  the revenue stream and i t  has to be captured 

appropriately in that .    

 And these inst ruments or th is funding or th is  

integrat ing(?) instruments and the funding associated wi th i t ,  

has been part  of  what we cal l  the project  fact (?)  in the 20 

company,  led by the CFO.   

 Each and every individual  was making sure that  we – 

each and every one manages thei r  budget l ines in terms of  

what they are doing to make sure that  we meet  our  cost  –  

the cash in th is cover rat io.    
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 We meet our – the levels and we make sure that  we do 

not  breach the conveyance with f inancial  inst i tut ions where 

we have borrowed money f rom.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So the f i rst  two swaps 

Mr Ramosebudi  were wi th Nedbank as Transnet ’s  d i rect  

counterparty.   Are you aware that  Nedbank had back- to-back 

swaps in relat ion to these swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Regiments were doing the t ransact ions 

and I  just  know that  the counterparty between – wi th 

Transnet is Nedbank.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    So you did not  know that  Nedbank 

had mirror image swaps with another party? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    And that  is what happens in the market ,  

Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l  . . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    They have done so.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  can I  te l l  you the pecul iar i ty of  

th is mir ror image swap?  Not qui te a mir ror image but  i t  was 

three basis points stayed wi th Nedbank.   This mir ror – th is 

back-to-back was wi th the Transnet ’s second def ined benef i t  20 

fund.   Do you know who that  fund is? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  know the fund Chairperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And do you know who was 

represent ing the Transnet  second to fund benef i t  fund on this 

t ransact ion? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I f  I  recal l  Chai rperson,  I  th ink i t  was 

Shane(?).  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  you are r ight .   Chai rperson,  i t  

was Shane(?).   But  who were the fund managers who did 

these back-to-back swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  is Regiments Fund Managers.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Regiments Fund Managers.   You 

are correct .   Yes.   So Regiments were represent ing the one 

party on the side of  the back-to-back swap.  And Regiments 

were also represent ing Transnet.    10 

 Do you know that  Regiments Fund Managers took in a 

course of  the four  swaps 229 mi l l ion out  of  the pension fund 

to pay for th is fee that  was to go to Regiments Capi tal ,  

according to  Transnet.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You did not  know that? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  I  can tel l  you that  they did.   

And that  they have set t led l i t igat ion last  year  where they 

were forced to pay that  back as wel l  as a bigger  amount 20 

which they had misappropriated in the course of  bond and 

t ransact ions around these swaps. 

 But  for now, I  want to raise one last . . .   Wel l ,  no,  one 

second last  point  wi th you.   Can you go to page 589? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Maybe before we go there Chai rperson.   
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May I  ask a quest ion?  Because I  . . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sorry? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Before he goes to the next  page? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    May I  ask you a quest ion? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you want some clar i f icat ion? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Ja,  just  c lar i f icat ion.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja.   What clar i f icat ion would you l ike? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Is – when a t ransact ion is done. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H’m? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Should there not  be a fee?  Because I  

am just  wondering whether  there is  a certain  percentage of  a 

fee that  was supposed to be add(?)?  Because I  am 

quest ioning mysel f  whether th is  t ransact ion that  was 

happening,  is the fee – was i t  not  supposed to be add or was 

i t  a re lat ively number(?) that  was supposed to be add which 

was not  that? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Of  course,  you were involved and none of  

us were involved.    

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Oh.   No,  no.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   I  th ink. . .   Cont inue Mr 

Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Wel l ,  let  me ask you another  

quest ion.   Are you aware that  th is fee that  your memo 

thought was going to go to Regiments Capi tal ,  the 
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229 mi l l ion present  value,  was actual ly paid in i ts  ent i rety  to  

Tr i l l ian in  Alberton and not  to Regiments Capi tal?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know that .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    You did not  know of  i t?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  ask you to go to page 589? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Do you recognise the let ter on 

page 589? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  do recognise i t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I t  is a  let ter that  you wrote to 

Moss Brickman of  Nedbank.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  I  d id.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And i t  says:  

“ In  terms of  the interest  swap t ransact ions entered 

into wi th Nedbank and/or around 8 March 2016.. . ”  

 Would that  be the second t ranche,  is for t ranches of  

interest  swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Let  me make i t  easier for  20 

you. . . [ intervenes]   

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    No,  I  remember this.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   So i t  is the second t ranche 

interest  swaps? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

“Transnet  is aware that  these t rades were pr iced at  

a peer mid-market  rate of  approximately  11.42% 

NASCQ. 

Our team is further aware and agree that  these 

t rades were executed at  a level  of  12.37 NASCQ 

which resul ts in a di fference of  95 basis points over  

mid-market  value. ”  

 Can you explain to the Chai r  what that  means? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  Chai r.   I f  you recal l ,  on Danie’s  10 

memo, he said the interest  rate swap wi l l  come at  a  cost  of  

200 basis points.   And I  said:   No,  we have achieve less than 

200 basis points.   So i t  means we d id wel l .    

 So now the interest  rate swap has come at  a cost  of  95 

basis points,  0.95% instead of  2%.  So in th is case,  i t  means 

we relat ively achieved bet ter than what at  the t ime Danie 

was expect ing f rom the market  focus.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    What is mid-market  value? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Mid-market  value is – you take the off  

on the big pr ice,  the two – you d iv ide by two and then you 20 

f ind the mid-pr ice.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And your pr ice is 95 basis 

points worse than that  mid-market  pr ice,  is i t  not? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Which. . .   worse is a di ff icul t  name – 

word to use.   I t  came above 95 basis points to the mid-
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market  level .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Why do you think Moss Brickman 

wanted you to wri te a let ter l ike this? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  do not  know.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can I  put  i t  to you that  he wanted 

a let ter l ike this to protect  him because people would ask 

quest ions about a swap that  was pr iced at  95 basis point 

over mid-market  value and he wanted conf i rmat ion that  

Transnet was aware that  th is was the case and agreed to i t .  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    He did not  share that  wi th me.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    We may have that  opportuni ty.   

Mr Ramosebudi ,  in. . .   Oh,  we have got  to get  back to 

. . . [ intervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    We are at  quarter  to seven.   [ laughs]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Chai r,  we have one. . .  just  th is 

document that  is coming.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I  must  say,  i t  certain ly has been a 

long day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  that  is  f ine.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And Mr Ramosebudi ,  here is your 

submission that  you presented to the board and the 

explanat ion for the 82 mi l l ion fee appears – in fact ,  i t  is  

going to page 4,  though i t  is not  legible on my copy.   I t  is at  

paragraph 27.   Can you go to paragraph 27? 
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MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe, so that  we do not  forget  

Mr Chaskalson.   Maybe we should admit  th is and put  i t  at  

least  in the bundle.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  i t  p lease.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Before we forget .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes,  Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We can st i l l  make holes but  let  us admit  i t .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And I  forget  where we are in terms 

of  annexures Chai r.   This wi l l  be BB four point  someth ing but  10 

I  am not  sure.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Ja,  maybe – wi l l  your junior  

check then?  When you are f in ished with the quest ions,  they 

can tel l  you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Can you go to paragraph 27,  

Mr Ramosebudi?  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  am on paragraph 27,  Mr Chaskalson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    And here is the mot ivat ion.   The – 20 

i t  says:  

“Saving achieved by securing club loan at  52.5 basis 

points including cost ,  cheaper than the equivalent  

Dol lar funding f rom China Development Bank. ”  

 And you have sa id that  is 418 mi l l ion.   And i f  I  recal l  
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correct ly,  that  is the apples and apples comparison,  is i t  not? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  Chai rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   And then as the apples and 

oranges ca lculat ion underneath which is:  

“Saving achieved by securing club loan at  a hundred 

basis points inc luding costs cheaper than the 

equivalent  Dol lar funding f rom JP Morgan, which is  

now being inf lated to 796 mi l l ion and i t  has also had 

some fees thrown in at  24 mi l l ion.”  

 Do you know how i t  got  to 796 mi l l ion on this number? 10 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot remember.   I  was not  working 

on this submission.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    But  you do remember i t  is an 

inappropriate number because i t  is apples and oranges? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    [No audible reply]   

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Mr Ramosebudi? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    Yes,  f rom the previous submission,  yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    Yes.   But  i t  is that  number that  is 

used af ter the addi t ion of  24 mi l l ion in fees.   Do you know 

why 24 mi l l ion in fees was added here?  Was i t  not  the very 20 

point  by JP Morgan that  their  fees were going to be included 

in the spread of  thei r  of  their  rate? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I  cannot recal l  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    I f  you go back to  those 

memoranda and Eddie Thomas’ quest ion,  I  th ink you wi l l  f ind 
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that  JP Morgan’s fees were going to be included in the 

spread.   I t  was going to be a cost  or a cost  of  f inancing or 

cost  of  funding.  

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    I t  could not  have worked.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC :    The JP Morgan? 

MR RAMOSEBUDI :    There was no way that  that  fee could 

have been included in the rate because funding and fees 

were coming f rom di fferent  sources.   Funding was going to  

be syndicated f rom somebody, some other people,  the fee 

tha t  JP Morgan was charg ing  was f rom somewhere  e lse .   10 

So when you pay  A you cannot  pay s imu l taneous ly  w i th  B .   

So th is  was go ing  to  be  an  upf ron t  payment  o f  24  m i l l ion  

and those were  go ing  to  be  payment  as  per  the  schedu le  o f  

payment  un t i l  the  loan matures .   I t  cou ld  no t  have worked.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  cou ld  no t  have worked.   But ,  

in  any event ,  i t  was an app les  and o ranges compar i son,  

was i t  no t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    That  i s  wha t  the  supp l ie r,  you know,  

brought  to  us .   They sa id  no ,  you do not  fo rge t  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  tha t  i s  what  the  20 

supp l ie r…?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    They sa id  do  not  fo rge t  what  we save 

you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Ja .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  you are  there  to  look  a f te r  

Transnet ,  no t  to  look  a f te r  the  supp l ie r,  a re  you not?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    P rec ise ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Bu t  the  numbers  ta l ks .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ye t  bu t  the  number  tha t .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  cou ld  no t  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  the  number  tha t  you sa id  

was the  cor rec t  compar ison …[ in te rvenes]  10 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    They a rgued w i th  me  together  w i th  

the  team tha t  I  was present ing  th is ,  th rough yourse l f ,  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes bu t  when we ta lked  ear l ie r  

about  app les  and app les  and app les  and oranges,  the  

number  tha t  wou ld  have been appropr ia te  wou ld  have been  

the  418 mi l l ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    I  th ink ,  Cha i rperson,  you unders tood 

my pos i t ion  where  I  was.   I  came wi th  a  po in t  o f  compar ing  

app les  w i th  app les  bu t  u l t imate ly  t hey were  no t  happy w i th  20 

what  I  p resented  and those peop le  tha t  were  work ing  w i th  

me,  we conc luded th is  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  th ink  Mr  Chaska lson wants  to  –  

e f fec t i ve l y  what  he  is  say ing  is ,  ea r l ie r  you had sa id  th is  i s  

compar ing  app les  w i th  o ranges,  how come you now have 
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no  p rob lem wi th  compar ing  app les  w i th  o ranges?  Mr  

Chaska lson,  do  I  rep resent  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Abso lu te ly,  Cha i r,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  the  ques t ion .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    You are  r igh t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  and i t  i s  

p rec ise ly  the  pos i t ion  I  took  in i t ia l l y.   You have seen when  

they prov ided they came up w i th  776 o r  763 mi l l ion ,  I  sa id  

i t  cannot  work ,  where  I  know we need to  move f rom a  po in t  

o f  compar ing  app les  w i th  app les  bu t  then they say bu t  

these are  the  e lements  tha t  we have saved you fo r  and I  10 

was not  a lone on th is  par t i cu la r  ma t te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So does tha t  mean tha t  because  o f  what  

they sa id  you a re  prepared to  compare  app les  w i th  o ranges  

ins tead o f  s t i ck ing  to  compar ing  app les  w i th  app les? 

MR RAMOSEBODI:    No.   My pos i t ion  was –  f rom the  

beg inn ing  was to  compare  app les  w i th  app les  and  then I  

changed tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes bu t  Mr  Chaska lson says what  you 

have on th is  document ,  wh ich  I  th ink  you sa id  was your  

f ina l  document ,  re f lec ts  i n  th is  regard  a  compar ison 20 

compar ing  app les  w i th  o ranges.   A re  you say ing  tha t  i s  no t  

the  case?  I  thought  you conceded  tha t .  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    That  we ach ieved because I  d id  tha t .   

I  came wi th  tha t  pos i t ion ,  I  ach ieved tha t  bu t  th is  memo 

was not  compi led  by  me a lone and  the  d iscuss ion  be tween  
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Reg iments  and Tr i l l i an  and Transnet  a t  the  t ime was not  – 

because i t  was not  d r iven f rom my po in t  a lone.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  I  cannot  take  tha t  po in t  

any fu r ther  bu t  I  do  what  to  make the  observa t i on  tha t  

nowhere  in  th is  document  i s  anyth ing  about  the  b lack  

owned s ta tus  o f  Tr i l l i an  ment ioned.   Can I  assume then 

tha t  you wou ld  no t  have to ld  the  BADC tha t  Tr i l l i an  was 

b lack  owned?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    As  I  sa id  in  the  beg inn ing ,  10 

Cha i rperson,  I  sa id  I  p resented what  was wr i t ten  in  the  

document .   I f  i t  was not  in  the  document  i t  means I  d id  no t  

p resent  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  we  w i l l  have to  ask  one o f  

those BADC members  where  tha t  came f rom.   Cha i r,  I  am 

r igh t  a t  the  end,  I  th ink  in  fa i rness  to  Mr  Ramosebod i ,  I  do 

have to  pu t  some o f  the  adverse  submiss ions tha t  I  w i l l  be  

mak ing  a t  the  end.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And Mr  Ramosebod i ,  I  do  no t  20 

en joy  do ing  th is  bu t  I  have to  pu t  to  you tha t  I  w i l l  be  

submi t t ing  a t  the  end o f  the  Commiss ion  tha t  you were  

gu i l t y  o f  cor rup t ion  in  your  dea l ings w i th  Nedbank and  

ACSA,  in  your  dea l ings –  sor ry,  take  tha t  back,  I  keep on –  

I  must  apo log ise  to  Nedbank fo r  tha t  –  in  your  dea l ings 
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w i th  Reg iments  a t  ACSA,  in  your  dea l ing  w i th  Reg iments  a t  

SAA in  re la t ion  to  the  tender  fo r  work ing  cap i ta l  

management  and  a t  Transnet ,  Mr  Ramosebod i ,  I  have to  

pu t  to  you tha t  you were  g ross ly  neg l igent  in  re la t ion  –  you 

were  a t  best  g ross l y  neg l igent  in  re la t ion  to  your  conduct  

re la t ing  to  the  fund ing  fo r  the  1064 locomot ives .   Do you 

have any response to  tha t?  

MR RAMOSEBODI:    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  th ink  so .   I  

abso lu te l y  do  no t  th ink  so .   My submiss ion  and my 

responses are  very  c lea r.   They cou ld  have made no 10 

neg l igence whatsoever  a t  Transnet .   My de legat ion  o f  

au thor i t y  s t ipu la te  exact ly  my l im i ts  in  te rms o f  what  I  can 

and what  I  canno t  do .   The r i sk  management  po l i cy  tha t  I  

was fo l low ing fo r  any t ransact ion  tha t  we were  do ing ,  I  

fo l low i t  fo r  the  team.   For  a l l  the  t ransact ions tha t  I  have  

done,  I  d id  no t  b reach my respons ib i l i t i es  and  

accountab i l i t i es .   I  do  no t  unders tand the  conc lus ions o r  

the  in fe rences f rom what  had been present ing .    

ACSA,  I  rea l l y  fa i l  to  unders tand why there  was a  

cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  be tween me and Reg iments .   I  ac tua l l y  20 

am baf f led .   Where  I  am s i t t ing  today I  am baf f led  now.   

Reg iments  came in to  ACSA in  2006/2007,  I  came in  ACSA 

in  2007.   When  they wanted to  do  some work  re  the 

mandate  tha t  they purpor t  tha t  they had,  I  myse l f  sa id  I  do  

no t  have tha t  capac i ty  to  do  tha t  w i th  there .   Came in  the  
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FD on the  pa r t i cu la r  da te  wh ich  I  cou ld  remember  t i l l  today.   

They came in  in  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  FD,  i t  was a  Tuesday o f  

Apr i l  a f te r  the  Monday o f  Easte r  Monday,  I  was  coming 

f rom L impopo.   My sec re ta ry  –  I  had a  meet ing  w i th  my FD 

a t  ten  o ’ c lock .   When I  was supposed to  have a  meet ing  

w i th  the  FD a t  ten  o ’c lock  and then she te l l s  me tha t  they 

have been meet ing  w i th  peop le  f rom Treasury.   I  asked –  I  

went  to  the  o f f i ce  and then the  secre tary  says she has a  

meet ing  w i th  these peop le .   I t  was Reg iments .   And I  sa id  

okay,  I  w i l l  wa i t  when they a re  f in ished.    10 

I  went  to  the  o f f i ce  and then I  asked why do you  

have meet ings w i th  peop le  when we have got  a  t ime fo r  ten  

o ’c lock  w i thout  te l l ing  me tha t  do  no t  wor ry,  we w i l l  

pos tpone your  meet ing .   She sa id  tha t  i s  none o f  –  i t  i s  

none o f  our  bus iness and we have got  i ssues w i th  you on  

these par t i cu la r  i ssues and you w i l l  coopera te  w i th  those  

peop le .  

How do I ,  f rom tha t  t ype o f  a  re la t ionsh ip ,  do  I  have  

a  co r rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Reg iments?   The fac t  tha t  I  d id  

no t  respond on quest ions does necessar i l y  mean tha t  I  am 20 

gu i l t y  o r  cha rged,  no t  a t  a l l .  

S im i la r  to  SAA – I  cannot  go  on  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  

we have the  who le  day he re  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  have no  
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fu r ther  quest ions and thank fo r  say ing  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r i gh t .   I  see  your  jun io r  

wants  to  g ive  you  someth ing  the re .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   The f ina l  

submiss ion  can be VV4.4 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The document  tha t  Mr  Ramosebod i  has  

handed up w i l l  be  admi t ted  as  EXHIBIT VV? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    4 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    4 .   And then your  team …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    4 .4 ,  Cha i r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    4 .4 .   Your  team wi l l  then put  i t  in  the  

r igh t  p lace  and pag ina te  i t  appropr ia te ly .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  counse l  fo r  the  w i tness,  d id  you  

in tend re-examin ing  or  no t  rea l l y?  

ADV NAIDOO:    I  d id  no t  in tend to ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  thank you.   Mr  Ramosebod i ,  

thank you ve ry  much fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f .   I  am go ing  to  

excuse you now.   Shou ld  a  need a r ise  fo r  us  to  ask  you to  

come back we w i l l  ask  you but  hopefu l l y  i t  w i l l  no t  be  20 

necessary.   Thank you ve ry  much ,  you are  now excused.   

Thank you.   Thank you to  everybody inc lud ing  the  w i tness  

counse l  fo r  –  coopera t ion  fo r  us  to  s i t  t i l l  l a te .   Thank you 

to  you,  Mr  Chaska lson and your  team and to  everybody fo r  

be ing  ab le  to  work  t i l l  th is  t ime.   Thank you very  much.   
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Next  week -  th i s  i s  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c ,  next  

week on Monday  I  w i l l  hear  Mr  Gordhan,  w i l l  be  cross-

examined by  counse l  fo r  Mr  Moyane and then I  w i l l  hear  

some wi tnesses connected w i th  SARS for  most  o f  next  

week.   I  th ink  on  Fr iday,  Mr  Chaska lson,  there  i s  a  w i tness 

tha t  i s  connected  w i th  money f lows but  w i l l  be  led  by  Ms  

Hofmeyr.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  no ,  bu t  i f  maybe you and I  

can have th is  conversa t ion… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  tha t  w i l l  be  a l r igh t .   Okay,  no ,  10 

tha t  i s  f ine ,  we can ta lk  about  i t  a t  the  r igh t  t ime,  I  jus t  

thought  I  d id  no t  want  to  m isrepresent  tha t  a l l  the  ev idence 

I  w i l l  be  hear ing  is  SARS-re la ted  in  case on one day i t  i s  

no t  SARS-re la ted .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  happ i ly  take  

Fr iday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  I  need to  speak to  you about  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Okay,  we are  20 

go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  the  day.   We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 30 NOVEMBER 2020  


